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Five Years Financial Summary

EIFMBERE

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
total equity/(capital deficiency) of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the Group’s audited financial

statements, is set out below:

(A) RESULTS 2 4%

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-BLFE

AT RAKREBEREMBRFREZE QM
XE AE ABERRAER (BAAE
AMBERE DREBEEAEEZKEZM
B -

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-)\F ZE—+F ZZE—RF ZT-hF ZT-0OF
FExT FET FET FBT FHET

Revenue g 961,440 529,884 718,879 721,810 481,571
Loss before income tax KRBTSR A E 1B (154,893) (196,614) (264,330) (385,109) (377,592)
Income tax credit FrigfiE o 2,261 - 3,304 14,777 3,925
Loss for the year FREE (152,632) (196,614) (261,026) (370,332)  (373,667)
Loss attributable to non-  FEIZAR HEZS FE(S

controlling interests B8 9,885 17,756 24,831 35,015 26,335
Loss attributable to the ViN/NETE 2N )

owners of the Company &8 (142,747) (178,858) (236,195) (335,317) (347,332)
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(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)

Five Years Financial Summary

EIFMBERE

(B) ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY/

¥E BERREER (4B

Al

As at 31 December

R+=-—H=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
“E-N\F ZF—+F —T-RFT-1F —F-NOF
FTHERT FET FET FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 863,625 674,564 680,166 902,177 1,266,545
Current assets mENEE 1,207,277 1,411,855 1,243,954 1,466,044 1,140,579
Total assets BEE 2,070,902 2,086,419 1,924,120 2,368,221 2,407,124
Current liabilities mEIEE 2,095,718 2,030,037 1,731,112 1,887,862 1,513,545
Non-current liabilities B =K 138,651 132,970 92,593 102,531 118,201
Total liabilities wWEE 2,234,369 2,163,007 1,823,705 1,990,393 1,631,746
(Capital deficiency)/Total (BAREAL)

equity R A 1 25 (163,467)  (76,588) 100,415 377,828 775,378

— attributable to the —KRNREB A
owners of the Company FEAg (105,654) (8,666) 152,044 403,125 763,188
- Non-controlling interests ~ —3F#E AR #s  (57,813)  (67,922)  (51,629)  (25,297) 12,190
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®/E

Chairman’s Statement

| am pleased to present on behalf of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) to the shareholders the report
on the results on Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year").

MARKET REVIEW

Looking to the coal market of the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") during the Year, we considered that the overall
performance was favorable to the coal mining companies,
although the industry is still facing different kinds of
challenges. The following areas were the facts which coal
mining companies have encountered during the Year:

(1) Keeping stable growth in coal production by
depressing the coal production volume

During the Year, the coal production in the PRC has
been kept at a stable growth level. In general, the coal
industry has achieved a balance of supply and demand
during the Year. However, the coal industry is still facing
the risk of over production.

Since the publish of a notice issued by the State
Council of the PRC in year 2016 in relation to the
reduction of production volume of coal, the revolution
on coal demand and supply has been commenced.
The total coal volume in the PRC has been reduced by
approximately 540 million tons for year 2016 and 2017.
With the government and market’s effort on depressing
the coal production volume in the past few years, coal
industry has gradually achieved the target from the
“short term reduction in total production volume” to
the “long term structural volume reduction”.

Under the continuous pressure from the government
policies and stringent directions in volume reduction,
environmental protection and coal mine safety, etc.,
the coal supply in the PRC local market has been
successfully depressed. On the other hand, rapid growth
of imported coal which could compensate the reduced
local coal supply volume, consequently, the coal industry
could have a healthy growth and a balance of demand
and supply of coal.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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(2)

(3)

Demand from downstream industries has been
improved

From the perspective of demand and supply of coal,
although industries which consume coal in the PRC
have multiple characteristics, they mainly come from
the industries of electricity, iron and steel, building
materials, chemicals, etc. Amongst the different
downstream industries, coal consumption by power
plants has been increased significantly during the
Year, which was principally because of the demand in
downstream consumption market condition has been
kept to improve. However, due to the environment
protection policies are being carried out stringently,
many policies such as closing down the slow and old
production plants, which have direct influence on the
downstream industries and would cause certain extent
of depression in demand of coal in the PRC.

Stable and favorable coal price which has given
positive growth to the market

Under the tightening supervision on coal industry by
the government on materialisation of medium to long
term coal contracts, more and more of coal sales and
purchase contracts have been successfully completed
and materialised. Increasing in number of completion
on coal contracts has played an important role on
stabilisation of the coal price during the Year, although
the coal price was still kept at comparatively higher level
with small extent of fluctuation.

Under the recent favorable coal price market condition,
many of the coal enterprises have materialized positive
growth and strengthened their profitability ability.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®/E

(4)

(5)

Continuous enforcement of different coal industry
policies to maintain a healthy coal market

To facilitate the sustainability of the coal industry and to
ascertain the coal market can have a healthy, regulated
and stable development, the PRC government has
carried out and enforced different policies. Amongst
the different policies, the first priority is to reduce coal
production volume. The coal market has gradually
developed from “short term volume reduction” to “long
term structural volume reduction”. Policies also have
been strictly carried out to close down the coal mines
which have insufficient capacity, to encourage different
coal enterprises to have merger and acquisition. At the
same time, environmental protection policies and safety
production policies have been further enhanced.

Financial performance of the coal industry

Although the total debt level amongst the coal industry
has been generally decreased, it was still maintained at
a high level. Since the year 2018, the industry’s overall
profitability ability has been improved while fixed assets
investment has been lessened and the debt level in
industry has been gradually reduced. Up to end of
June of 2018, the total debt of the coal industry was
approximately RMB3,604.2 billion, which has been
reduced from the end of year 2017 by approximately
RMB153.5 billion. In respect of the asset to liability ratio
up to the end of June 2018, the overall ratio of the coal
industry was approximately 66.3%, which has already
been improved in comparing with the year 2017 and
year 2016, even it was still maintained at a high level.

By looking at the coal industry’s financial cost, although
the overall debt level has been reduced, the cost of
capital was increased during the Year and the finance
cost to the coal market has also been increased. As the
size of debt was still kept at high level, the finance cost
to the industry would has significant impact to coal
enterprises.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Subsequent to the recession of coal industry in the past
few years, coal industry has rebounded gradually since the
Year 2017 and the favorite market condition has persisted
and become more obvious in the Year 2018. The Group has
improved the overall performance by regarding to the revenue
achieved from the coal related business (“Coal Business"”)
during the Year.

With the completion of acquisition of building materials
business in early 2018, the Group has successfully diversified
its business. Currently, the Group is not only relying on
the revenue contribution from the Coal Business, but also
obtaining revenue from the building materials related business
(“Building Materials Business”). The management of
the Group expected that the future development potential
of Building Materials Business will be higher than the Coal
Business.

Government safety and environmental protection policies have
imposed much pressure on the enterprises of coal industry.
The coal enterprises need to invest with additional amount on
their infrastructure, management, systems control, etc., for
complying with rules and regulations. Nevertheless, there is no
stringent government regulation which is required for building
materials industry because the industry has insignificant
pollution to the environment during the production. Therefore,
less additional cost would be incurred for non-operational
related areas.

During the Year, the Group has recorded total revenue of
approximately HK$961.4 million (Year 2017: approximately
HK$529.9 million). Amongst the revenue achieved by
the Group, approximately HK$763.4 million (Year 2017:
approximately HK$529.9 million) was obtained from the Coal
Business and approximately HK$198.0 million (Year 2017: Nil)
was derived from the Building Materials Business.

The increase in revenue of Coal Business was mainly due to
(1) fully resumption of coal mines of the Group in the Year
compared to Last Year. During the year ended 31 December
2017 (“Last Year"), one of the three coal mines of the Group
was suspended for around eleven months and the another coal
mine was suspended for whole year; and (2) the market coal
price has reached to new high during the Year in comparing to
the past three years.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®/E

In order to strive with facing different new challenges, the
Group has not only kept to focus on improvement on its
existing Coal Business, but has also explored into the new
business in the building materials market so as to strengthen
the operation and the revenue of the Group. The Group has
always been persisting in its position and taking more cautious
responsive measures according to situations on a timely basis.

Fully resumption of coal mines and favourable market
condition

During the Year, all of the three coal mines of the Group
have been fully resumed in operation compared to the pro-
longed suspension in Last Year. Production and sales volume
of coal has been gradually recovered during the Year. During
the Year, the coal production volume was increased by
approximately 472,000 tons or 172.2% comparing to the Last
Year. Moreover, the favorable market coal price (average coal
price of produced coal and purchased coal of the Group for
Year 2018: RMB383.4/ton; Last year: RMB353.4/ton) during
the Year was another important factor which caused the
improvement of the Group’s revenue during the Year. However,
the Group has decided to close coal mine Xiaohe No.3 in
March 2018 and not to renew the mining license of Xiaoche
Coal Mine No.2 (which was closed in January 2016) due to
their production scale were too small which have no material
impact on the Group’s business.

New income stream from the Building Materials
Business

Subsequent to the successful acquisition of Building Materials
Business, the Group has recorded revenue of approximately
HK$198.0 million from this business sector. Due to its
production nature, the building materials business does not
has the issues of environment pollution, hence, it will not be
easily affected by the government policies.

However, it will also be affected by the general economic
condition and the property market of the PRC. The building
materials are mainly used for development of hotels and
houses in the PRC. If the property market in the PRC goes
downturn, less demand for the building materials and the
result may then be influenced.

The Group possesses a wide range of technology in the
production of building materials and targets to become a
pioneer in the industry. The Group has its own research and
development team to produce high quality building materials,
which differentiate the Group from the other competitors in
the industry.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Fund raising activity

In early January 2018, a fund raising activity was completed to
raise funds with gross proceeds of HK$40 million. Due to the
position of the net current liabilities of the Group, the purpose
of the event was to use as general working capital of the
Group and to improve its financial position.

Financial support from the major shareholders

In early 2018, the Group entered into loan agreements with
the three major shareholders of the Company, i.e. Mr. Bao
Hongkai, Mr. Li Xiangfei and Mr. Zhang Xinzhi. Pursuant to the
loan agreements, the three shareholders agreed to provide un-
secured and interest-free loans with a maximum aggregated
amount of RMB600 million for a term of three years to the
Group.

PROSPECT

Year 2017 and 2018 were regarded as recovery years for coal
industry in the PRC since the commencement of government
control policies on coal supply in the past few years. It is
expected that the China's economic growth will be adjusted
downward slowly in the coming years, the Group will continue
to adjust its response to the market environment.

Keep focusing on the Group’s existing Coal Business and
the newly acquired Building Materials Business, the Group
will conduct safe, effective and refined production, seek for
opportunities among challenges, and try every means to
achieve cost efficiency, revenue growth and lower the debt
level.

The Group will put sufficient efforts on keeping up with the
market to expand new development opportunities and to
promote business diversification, to broaden source of revenue
and to improve risk resistance of the Group.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere
thanks and gratitude to our shareholders, and various parties
for their continuing support, and our directors and staff for
their dedication and hard work.

Dong Cunling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

Financial Review
Revenue

The Group’s total revenue for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$961.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately 81.4% from approximately HK$529.9 million
of the Last Year. The increase in revenue was primarily due
to fully resumption of coal mines and revenue contributed
by the newly acquired business. During the Year, the total
sales volume of coal has reached to approximately 1,679,000
tons which was higher than the sales volume of the Last Year
(approximately 1,300,000 tons) by approximately 29.1%,
in which, approximately 932,000 tons or approximately
55.5% (the Last Year: approximately 1,026,000 tons or
approximately 78.9%) and approximately 747,000 tons or
approximately 44.5% (the Last Year: approximately 274,000
tons or approximately 21.1%) were contributed by coal trading
business and sales from coal mining business respectively.

After obtaining the approval from the relevant government
authority, the three coal mines of the Group (i.e. Xiaohe Coal
Mine No. 1, Xiangyang Coal Mine and Xingyun Coal Mine)
have resumed their operations to produce coals. As a result,
the revenue contributed from sales of produced coals increased
significantly from Last Year. Besides the resumption of coal
mines, the increase in Group’s revenue was also due to the
acquisition of Goal Getter Ventures Limited (“Goal Getter”)
and its subsidiaries, which contributed revenue from Building
Materials Business amounting to approximately HK$198.0
million since acquisition.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of sales and gross profit

The cost of sales and gross profit for the Year were
approximately HK$901.9 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$630.4 million) and approximately HK$59.5 million (the
Last Year: gross loss of approximately HK$100.5 million)
respectively.

The gross profit margin was improved from gross loss margin
approximately 19.0% for the Last Year to gross profit margin
approximately 6.2% for the Year. During the Year, the average
cost per ton of the coal produced by the Group’s coal mines
was less than that in the Last Year due to the resumption of
coal mines and the coal mines were operated at their optimal
capacity. The increase in total cost of sales was mainly driven
by the increase in sales due to the resumption of the coal
mines of the Group and newly acquired Building Materials
Business. Gross profit of the Group for the year was mainly
contributed by the newly acquired Building Materials Business,
which contributed gross profit amounting to approximately
HK$64.6 million. The Building Materials Business was operated
by a subsidiary, Henan Xingan New Construction Materials
Company Limited* O mE@EZHAEZEM B ERQA)
(“Henan Xingan”) which was acquired by the Group through
the acquisition of Goal Getter during the Year. Henan Xingan
is located right next to a state-owned power generating plant
which produces scrap materials during its operation and such
scrap materials are the major raw materials for the production
of building materials. Therefore, Henan Xingan can obtain such
raw materials in a cost effective way. Therefore, the favorable
location of Henan Xingan allows the Group to save costs and
generate a favorable gross profit.

*#  For identification purpose only

Net loss attributable to the owners of the Company

The net loss attributable to the owners of the Company for
the Year was approximately HK$142.7 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 20.0% as compared with the Last
Year of approximately HK$178.9 million. The reasons for the
decrease in net loss attributable to the owners of the Company
were mainly due to the resumption of operations of coal
mine and profits contributed by the newly acquired Building
Materials Business.

Though the coal market in the PRC has been recovered since
late 2016 and the Group’s coal mines have resumed operation
during the Year after the suspension in 2017, the performance
of the coal mines of the Group was still affected by the higher
requirement standards on coal mines safety and environmental
protection requirement which may lead to unpredicted market
trends and high operating cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

Selling and distribution expenses

Significant increase of approximately HK$33.1 million in selling
and distribution expenses from approximately HK$4.5 million
of the Last Year to approximately HK$37.6 million for the
Year, was mainly due to (i) the outbound transportation cost
incurred by the newly acquired Building Materials Business
amounting to approximately HK$26.6 million, and (ii) the
increase in revenue of Coal business during the year.

Administrative expenses

During the Year, the total administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$90.1 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$53.6 million) which mainly comprised of: (i) employee
benefits expense of approximately HK$33.6 million (the
Last Year: approximately HK$21.5 million); (ii) amortisation
of mining right and other intangible assets amounted to
approximately HK$7.9 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$3.2 million); and (iii) depreciation of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$8.6 million (the
Last Year: approximately HK$2.3 million).

Finance costs

The finance costs increased by approximately 140.0%
from approximately HK$42.3 million for the Last Year to
approximately HK$101.5 million for the Year. The increase in
the finance costs was mainly due to the increase in the average
amount of bank and other loans during the Year as well as the
increase in average interest rate.

Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets

As at 31 December 2018 (the “Current Year End”), the
accounts and bills receivables and contract assets were
amounted to approximately HK$454.6 million, representing
an increase of approximately 105.4% as compared to the
accounts and bills receivables as at 31 December 2017 (the
“Last Year End”) of approximately HK$221.3 million. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in the revenue from
Coal Business and the newly acquired Building Materials
Business.

Amongst the total amount of accounts receivable less
allowance for credit losses (excluding the bills receivable
and contract assets) as at the Current Year End, the largest
customer of the Group was the largest debtor who has
contributed approximately HK$52.8 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB46.4 million) or approximately 27.3% of
the total accounts receivable amount.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Accounts and bills payables

Bills payable as at the Current Year End amounted to
approximately HK$607.8 million (the Last Year End:
approximately HK$807.2 million) which contributed
approximately 92.4% (the Last Year End: approximately
98.7%) of the total amount of accounts and bills payables as
at the Current Year End, i.e. approximately HK$658.1 million
(the Last Year End: approximately HK$817.9 million). Decrease
in bills payable is mainly because the Group had financed the
operation by the loans from shareholders which are interest
free, and do not require to pledge the Group’s assets. The
bills payable as at the Current Year End has decreased by
approximately HK$199.4 million or approximately 24.7%.

Other payables, accruals and deposit received

The total amount of other payables and accruals have been
increased by approximately 20.8% from approximately
HK$458.1 million as at the Last Year End to approximately
HK$553.6 million as at the Current Year End. As at the
Current Year End, the other payables were mainly comprised
of provision for PRC retirement benefit scheme contributions
amounting to approximately HK$194.7 million (the Last
Year End: approximately HK$169.7 million), accrued coal
mines related removal and relocation expenses amounting
to approximately HK$63.3 million (the Last Year End:
approximately HK$58.3 million), contract liabilities/receipts in
advance amounting to approximately HK$13.2 million (the Last
Year End: approximately HK$43.3 million), accrued workers'’
wages and benefits amounting to approximately HK$51.5
million (the Last Year End: approximately HK$29.1 million).
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ESTIMATED COAL RESOURCES OF THE COAL
MINES OF THE GROUP

The following table summarized the estimated coal resources
(in million tons, “mt"”)of the coal mines of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and 2017:

REBERERE 2 EHETRERER

TERBEAREENEBER —T—-N\FR-
E—tF+-_A=T—"HNEFARRER
(KBS aEmg])

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
mt mt
R-ZZE—N\F RZZE—+F
+=A +=A
=t—H =+—H
BE ER-Y%

Coal mines owned by the Group REBEHARNEE
(i) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.1 (i) /N — & 6.4 6.8
(i) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.2 (note 2) (i) /)5 =8 (BfaE2) N/A =& A 1.5
(iii) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.3 (note 2) (i) /)\5A = #& (Hf312) N/A =& 1.7
(iv) Xiangyang Coal Mine (iv) MB5 R & 14.2 14.4
(v) Xingyun Coal Mine (v) B8 B 1% 3.2 3.4
23.8 27.8

Notes:

3)

Major assumptions adopted for the annual updates on the
above estimated coal resources were:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Original coal resources of each coal mine were made
reference to the relevant coal resources reports and/
or coal mine information available to the Group at the
time of acquisition of the respective coal mines;

Annual updates on the estimated coal resources for
each coal mine as at Current Year End were calculated
as follow:

(Estimated coal resources as at the Last Year End) —
(Actual coal production volume for the Year);

There was no material structural change within the coal
mines that will cause the significant deviation between
the actual coal resources and the above annual
updates.

The Group has decided to permanently close Xiaohe Coal
Mine No.2 and Xiaohe Coal Mine No.3 since January 2016 and
March 2018 respectively.

Except for (2) disclosed above, there was no material change
of the above assumptions as compared with the previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at the Current Year End, the net liabilities of the Group
was approximately HK$163.5 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$76.6 million) and the total cash and bank
balance (including pledged and restricted bank deposits) was
approximately HK$692.4 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$787.8 million). As at the Current Year
End, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$888.4 million (as at the Last Year End: approximately
HK$618.2 million) and its current ratio decreased from 0.70
times as at the Last Year End to 0.58 times as at the Current
Year End. The Group's working capital was mainly financed by
internal cash flow generated from its operation, the banking
facilities granted by financial institutions and the shareholders’
loans.

As at the Current Year End, the Group’s accounts and bills
receivables, net of any provision for impairment amounted
to approximately HK$452.6 million (as at the Last Year
End: approximately HK$221.3 million) and certain accounts
receivable were pledged to secure bank loans of the Group.

As at the Current Year End, bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$655.0 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$616.9 million) were pledged and not
available for the operation or repayment of debts of the
Group. Bank deposits of approximately HK$1.6 million (as at
the Last Year End: Nil) were restricted for use in relation to
administrative proceedings. Cash and cash equivalents which
were not pledged amounted to approximately HK$35.8 million
(as at the Last Year End: approximately HK$170.9 million).

As at the Current Year End, the Group has bank and other
loans amounting to approximately HK$762.2 million (as at
the Last Year End: approximately HK$613.5 million), which
are due for repayment within one year from the reporting
date or repayable on demand. These bank and other loans
bear interest at interest rates ranging from 1.2% to 12.8%
per annum (as at the Last Year End: from 3.2% to 13.6% per
annum).

As at the Current Year End, approximately HK$485.9 million
(as at the Last Year End: approximately HK$694.9 million) of
the Group’s bills payable were secured by the Group’s pledged
deposits, in which approximately HK$152.4 million (as at
the Last Year End: approximately HK$164.8 million) were
guaranteed by a major customer or its subsidiaries. As at the
Last Year End, bills payable of approximately HK$72.0 million
were also jointly guaranteed by a shareholder of the Company,
and his spouse and/or a major customer.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

The Group’s gearing ratio (as a ratio calculated by (a) the sum
of bank and other loans, amount due to an associate and
amounts due to and loans from shareholders; divided by (b)
the total assets of the Group) was approximately 44.4% (as at
the Last Year End: approximately 37.7%).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance the business social responsibility and to improve
its result, the Group has always been dedicated to fulfilling its
social responsibility. In deciding the appropriate policies, the
Group takes into consideration the impact on the environment,
the community and its employees. The Group aims to achieve
the balance between economic benefit and the environmental
protection, as well as sustainable development for the entire
community.

The Group will inform its employees about the environmental
protection information that they can utilise in their working
environment. It is a wish that with a concept to be developed
amongst the employees, the Group and the employees as a
whole can contribute to environmental protection.

In addition to the normal remuneration packages entitled
by the employees, the Group has provided them with other
benefits, such as medical subsidies and insurance, etc., for
the purpose of giving them job security. This has cultivated
stronger sense of belonging to the Group for its employees
and created a working environment of high spirit.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any other capital
commitments as at 31 December 2018.

SAFETY PRODUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

The Group has always paid great attention to production
safety and environmental protection while achieving growth
in coal production. Thus, the Group makes great efforts in
promoting safety management and strengthening measures
for environmental protection, aiming at building itself into a
safety-oriented and environmentally-friendly enterprise.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

AEBZEARBEL R (HRQIIETREAM
B EA B S QR 8 & ERRR R
FERKREBREERZ AT B (b)A
EEBEERNIMMA% (REEER: L
37.7%) °

TEMEEE

REBEPEHSEELAEZEE ~5H
MBRMOIRBITHEEE -EREEEN
BRE  AEEEERHIRE LR LEE
EMPE-AKENEERERKEND
HIRGRE 2RO FE WEREELR
B AT AR SR ©

AEEKREREER & METERES A
AOREREER - AEENERE BEE
BEFEK BB A&ERESER
BEHARBREFELER

FrEB RIS IEFEFHMIN NREE IR
RERFEEMEN  MBHEMHR RRBREF
RESFHERIELZER-LBCIEEREE
BASEEREE R BIETME NN
THERE-

B AR EE

iR A BT R R MY SE39(a) B P B H
S RZB-N\E+=A=t+—B F&EE
3 48 A 7] E o AR

ZEEERRERE

PR EEDRSIERNAR  AEET—&H
BEREERE MRIBRE - #UL - NEE N
ANE REL2ER  WINRRRE
ARBLER/RARZERREER-



Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the Company
maintains a sound and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Group’s internal control system is designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and
accounting records are maintained in accordance with relevant
accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements,
and key risks that may impact on the Group’s performance are
appropriately identified and managed. Review of the Group’s
internal controls covers major financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as risk management functions.
The internal control system can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,
as they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defense, business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring
risks associated with each business or deal. The management,
as the second line of defense, defines rule sets and models,
provides technical support, develops new systems and oversees
portfolio management. It ensures that risks are within the
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective.
As the final line of defense, the audit committee of the
Company, with the professional advices and opinions from the
external professional consultant by whom internal audit work
of the Group was conducted on annual basis, ensures that the
first and second lines of defense are effective through constant
inspection and monitoring.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend in respect of the Year.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Cunling, aged 57, has been the executive director
of the Company and chairman of the Board since December
2011 and March 2012. He holds a professional diploma in
Chinese Language of Henan University, the PRC. Mr. Dong was
a college teacher in Dengfeng Municipal of Henan Province,
the PRC. Mr. Dong joined Henan Jinfeng Coal Industrial
Group Company Limited (“Jinfeng”), i.e. a subsidiary of the
Company, since 2003. He held several positions in Jinfeng
and he is currently a director of Jinfeng. He has extensive
experience in the management of coal mines.

Mr. Li Xiangfei, aged 39, has been appointed as the
executive director of the Company since June 2018. Mr. Li
graduated in 2002 from Zhengzhou University with major
in Commercial and Business Management. He has extensive
working experience in mining industry and has been a key
management of a mining enterprise in the PRC. In recent
years, Mr. Li has focused on the development of green
economy and has been engaged as a chief operation officer of
a ski and resort development company in the PRC.

Mr. Sun Shusheng, aged 54, has been appointed as the
executive director of the Company since June 2018. He has
obtained the post graduate diploma from Henan University
with major in litigation law. He has extensive management
experience in sizeable insurance companies and state-owned
enterprises in the PRC. He has worked as top management
for the branches of certain insurance companies in China,
including People Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited
and China United Property Insurance Company Limited. Prior
to his joining to the Company, he was the general manager
of general support department of China United Property
Insurance Company Limited.

Mr. Zhang Yi, aged 32, has been the executive director of
the Company since February 2018. He graduated in 2008 from
Yangtze University major in Human Resources Management.
He has approximately 6 years of experience in the financial
industry, specialize in feasibility study of projects, investment
analysis and project development. He is currently a manager of
a real estate company. He has also served as customer service
manager of a bank in the PRC.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhou Guangwen, aged 50, has been the executive
director of the Company since February 2012. He graduated
with Doctor of Philosophy from Peking University of the
PRC. Mr. Zhou has extensive working experience as a senior
management in certain local bank and security company
in the PRC. He is currently the president of Ginkgo Capital
Management Co., Limited which specialises in asset
management and securities investment. Mr. Zhou is one of
the first batch of the people in the PRC to engage in securities
industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyan, aged 54, has been the non-executive
director of the Company since December 2011. He is currently
a registered lawyer at Henan Shi Ji Tong Law Firm (&gt
4IREREMAT) in the PRC and is also a certified public
accountant, certified public valuer and certified tax agent
in the PRC. Mr. Li has acted as a legal adviser to the Henan
Provincial People’s Hospital, the Henan TV Station and certain
listed companies in the PRC. Mr. Li was an independent non-
executive director in six PRC listed companies during the period
from 2002 to 2008. He is currently an independent non-
executive director (appointed in 2014 and will be retired in
2020) of Zhengzhou Yutong Bus Co., Ltd which listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. Mr. Li is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Zhongyu Gas Holdings
Limited since October 2010, which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chen Renbao, aged 56, has been the independent non-
executive director of the Company since December 2011.
He received his Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Anhui
University, the PRC, in 1985. After graduated from Anhui
University, Dr. Chen received his Master of Arts in Demography
in 1989, Ph.D. in insurance and Ph.D. in Demography from
the University of Pennsylvania, the United States, in 1993. Dr.
Chen acted as a director of US Keywise Capital Management
and consultant for the NUS Endowment Fund. He was an
independent non-executive director (resigned in 2013) of
Guangdong Midea Electric Appliances Co., Ltd which is listed
in Shenzhen Stock Exchange of the PRC. He currently acts
as a consultant in a number of PRC and overseas companies
to provide financial and risk management consultation and
training services to those companies.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEEBE

Mr. Ma Wai Tong, aged 46, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
September 2018. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy
and a Master's degree of Professional Accounting from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Ma is currently an
executive director, the group chief financial officer and the
company secretary of Truly International Holdings Limited
(stock code:00732). Mr. Ma has more than 20 years of
auditing, accounting and financing experience including four
years with major international accounting firms and over ten
years in senior accounting and financial positions in various
industries. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Ma Yueyong, aged 54, has been the independent non-
executive director since December 2011. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Accounting from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law (formerly known as Zhongnan University of Finance
and Economics), the PRC. He has also achieved postgraduate
qualification in Accounting from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr. Ma was appointed as an
executive director and an independent non-executive director
in three PRC listed companies during the period from 1998
to 2004. Mr. Ma was an independent non-executive director
(resigned in 2014) of Henan Linzhou Heavy Machinery Co.,
Ltd. which is listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange of the PRC.
He is a certified public accountant in Reanda Certified Public
Accountant Co., Ltd. Henan Branch in the PRC since April
2011. Mr. Ma is a financial controller of Zhengzhou New
Dafang Heavy Industry Science & Technology Co., Ltd since
January 2013.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Chun On, aged 44, joined the Group in September
2006 and was the executive director of the Company during
the period from 2009 to 2013. Mr. Li is currently the Company
Secretary, the chief financial officer and the authorised
representative of the Company. He graduated with bachelor
degree in accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Li has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting and corporate financial management. Mr. Li is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the Year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviation as set
out below.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive director
and independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) of the
Company do not have a specific term of appointment, but are
subject to rotation in accordance with bye-law 111 of the Bye-
laws of the Company. As the non-executive director and INEDs
of the Company are subject to rotation in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company, the Board considers that the non-
executive director and INEDs of the Company so appointed
with no specific term will not impair the quality of corporate
governance of the Company as required by the principle of
good governance laid down in A.4 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that INEDs and
the non-executive directors should attend general meetings.
However, INEDs of the Company, Dr. Chen Renbao, Mr. Jiang
Xiaohui (resigned on 15 June 2018) and Mr. Ma Yueyong
were unable to attend the 2018 annual general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2018 due to other business
engagement.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have fully complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Dong Cunling (Chairman)
Mr. Li Xiangfei

Mr. Sun Shusheng

Mr. Zhang Yi

Mr. Zhou Guangwen

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Li Chunyan

INEDs

Dr. Chen Renbao
Mr. Ma Wai Tong
Mr. Ma Yueyong

The brief biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among them are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in the 2018
annual report of the Company, of which this report forms part.

RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board determines the overall strategies, monitors and
controls operating and financial performance and sets
appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are those
affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and
shareholders including financial statements, dividend policies,
significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investment. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses is delegated to the executive Directors or senior
management. The Board reviews the delegation of power
and functions from time to time to ensure effectiveness and
appropriateness.
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Corporate Governance Report

ATTENDANCE OF THE BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEEES

The Board meets regularly during the Year and the Directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group. The
following table shows the attendance of all the Directors at the
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2018:

TRERRSE

HEESERZEEER N

EFENFATHETERREEFT N
AEBZzEZHBELRERER  TRBTRE
BEERHE_FT-/\F+-_A=1+—~H
LFFEALFEEZRNBER:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/EERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board  Committee = Committee  Committee Meeting
Directors Ex Exe ENZEE ¥$MZEe REZEE BRRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dong Cunling EFREAE 2/4 - - - 1
Mr. Chen Xu* BRIB S A * 0/4 - - - 0/1
Mr. Li Xiangfeif FAR KL 0/4 - - - on
Mr. Sun Shusheng? GEELAE 3/4 - - - 0N
Mr. Wu Jiahong* MRAL T 0/4 - - - 0/1
Mr. Yang Hua* DE D 0/4 - - - 0N
Mr. Zhang Yi* REEE! 24 - - - 11
Mr. Zhou Guangwen FEX %4 0/4 - - - 0N
Non-Executive Director FHUTES
Mr. Li Chunyan FEERE 2/4 - - - 11
INEDs BUFHITES
Dr. Chen Renbao BRCEEL 4/4 2/2 17 11 0N
Mr. Ma Wai Tong* BEELE! 2/4 0/2 0n on on
Mr. Ma Yueyong SRBLAE 3/4 212 1/1 1/1 on
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui* BERL L 1/4 12 n 1" 0/1
*  Resigned during the year * O RARFERE
# Appointed during the year # RAREEREERE
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FRRATHAR

The positions and roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. The Chairman,
being Mr. Dong Cunling is responsible for corporate planning
and market development. The Chief Executive Officer,
being Mr. Sun Shusheng, he performs the functions of chief
executive of the Group, is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group.

EEe T EARRATTHRAE R B AL KB
BERMBEALDRIBEERETT AR
FEEMBLE WEENEEE-TFE
FRETABEGERMEILTZER -1TH
BER/FREERE RRTAREITRA
BB aEAKENAREER-

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH

25



26

Corporate Governance Report
TERERBSE

INEDS

One-third of the members of the Board consist of INEDs and at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive
director of the Company an annual confirmation of his
independence for the year ended 31 December 2018 pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all
INEDs to be independent during the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms but they are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
("AGM") of the Company. Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the
Bye-laws of the Company, each director of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Board considers that the non-executive Directors so
appointed with no specific term will not impair the quality of
corporate governance of the Group required by the principle of
good governance laid down in A.4 of the CG Code.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are available and
accessible on the Company’s website at http://www.irasia.com/
listco/hk/rrhl.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises
that increasing diversity at the Board level will support
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The nomination committee will give consideration to the Board

Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates,
to become members of the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“"Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Renbao
(as chairman), Mr. Ma Wai Tong and Mr. Ma Yueyong as at
the date of this report. During the Year, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting. The attendance record of the
committee is set out in the table on page 25 of the annual
report.

The principal role and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are to review the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and key executives, including
salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind and the terms on which they
participate in any share options and other plans considering
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and key
executives, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration and making
recommendations to the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Renbao, Mr. Ma Wai
Tong and Mr. Ma Yueyong (as chairman) as at the date of this
report. During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record of the committee is set out in
the table on page 25 of the annual report.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members. It is also responsible for assessing the
independence of INEDs and making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of director and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee reviewed the board
diversity policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set
for implementing the said policy. The recommendations of the
nomination committee are then put forward for consideration
and adoption where appropriate, by the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely
Dr. Chen Renbao, Mr. Ma Wai Tong and Mr. Ma Yueyong (as
chairman) as at the date of this report. The principal role and
functions of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management. The Audit Committee
also serves as a channel of communication between the Board
and the external auditor.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of the committee members at these
meetings are set out in the table on page 25 of the annual
report. The work performed by the audit committee during
the Year included reviewing the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018, the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and
recommended such financial statements to the Board for
approval and also the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management practices of the Group.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
Moore Stephens CPA Limited be nominated for re-appointment
as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for performing
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors; to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct applicable to employees and Directors;
and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the CG Code.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration
paid or payable to the auditor of the Company, Moore
Stephens CPA Limited are set out below:
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Fee

paid/payable

HK$ 000

g1/

ENEAR

Services rendered Rz R FAET

Audit services EIZRE 1,030

Non-audit services IEFEZ RS

(Agreed-upon procedures on interim financial (hEF SRR 2 ERF X

statements and other services) H A fR7%) 360

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and applicable Interpretations, issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
other than the situations described in note 3.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on its
ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor, Moore
Stephens CPA Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 46 to 53.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’
liabilities has been in force to protect the Directors and officers
of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the business
of the Group.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. A summary of training records received by the
Directors for the Year is set out as follows:

EERGABBZERE
ARREREERSRBE 2 EEBEE
BRE AREER R AEE DA E M
AEBMEBHELZAR -

ESZHEERER

BREEE AT TRIEXAGS  FTA
EXA2EREIERER UEREERN
HMBREE AMERELBHESS
tEH A MR BB - F A EF R ZIFI
ZAEERBE AN T

Attending
conference(s)/
training
course(s)/
seminars Reading and/or
relevant to updates relevant
the business, to the business,

directors’ directors’
duties or listing duties or listing
regulatory regulatory
requirements requirements
R
ESHEDS RIS
tTEERE ESHEWN

ERzEgE IHEERE
BIRE BHIMBRS

Directors = WaE HEH
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Dong Cunling ERRESE v/ v
Mr. Chen Xu* BeR fIB, 52 A * - v/
Mr. Li Xiangfei AR A - v
Mr. Sun Shusheng? BREE LAY - v
Mr. Wu Jiahong* MR AL > - v
Mr. Yang Hua* TS A - v/
Mr. Zhang Yi# R A v/ v
Mr. Zhou Guangwen BAEX LA - v/
Non-Executive Director FHITES

Mr. Li Chunyan FEERE - v/
INEDs BYFHITES

Dr. Chen Renbao BRECEEH+ v/ v
Mr. Ma Wai Tong* BEERE v v
Mr. Ma Yueyong HBRELAE v v
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui* B A - v

* Resigned during the year
# Appointed during the year
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COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2018, the Company Secretary of the
Company, Mr. Li Chun On (“Mr. Li"), fulfills the requirement
under Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. He has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Li reports to
the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. For the Year under review, Mr. Li has
taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all
times. The Company has adopted a series of internal control
policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving objectives including effective and
efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.

Details of the Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems” of the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 19 of this annual report.

During the year, the Group engaged an external professional
consultant to review and assess its risk management and
internal control systems and report to the audit committee.
The review covered several parts of the systems including
risk management, and operational, financial and compliance
controls.

The Board, through the audit committee, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2018 covering material financial, operational and compliance
functions, and is of the view that the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are
considered as effective and adequate.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. A Shareholders’” Communication Policy
setting out the Company’s procedure in providing the
Shareholders with prompt and equal access to information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
access the Company’s overall performance, exercise their
rights in an informed manner and engage actively with the
Company. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of
formal channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the Shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior
management of the Company and where applicable, the
INEDs, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors. Details of poll voting procedures are included in all
circulars to Shareholders which call for a general meeting and
are explained during proceedings of the meeting.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its Shareholders and investors. Information
about the Company’s activities is provided in its interim and
annual reports, which are sent to Shareholders, analysts and/
or interested parties. Enquiries from Shareholders and investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/rrhl, on
where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders can submit a requisition to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (the "Act”). The number of Shareholders
necessary for a requisition shall be representing not less than
one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital as at the date of
requisition having the right to vote at the general meeting.

The written requisition must:

state the purposes of the special general meeting;

- be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one
or several documents in like form each singed by one or
more requisitionists); and

- be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

- If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a special general meeting, the requisitionists,
or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, any themselves
convene a special general meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.

Procedure for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at
an annual general meeting pursuant to Section 79 of the Act.

The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall
be:

- representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date of
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or

- not less than 100 Shareholders.
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The written requisition must:

state the resolution, with a statement not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at the meeting;

be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one
or several documents in like form each singed by one or
more requisitionists);

be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other
requisition; and

be deposited with a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in giving notice of
the resolution and circulating the statements of the
proposed resolution to all Shareholder in accordance
with the requirements under the applicable laws and
rules.

Enquires to the Board

The Company’s website provides email address and telephone
to enable Shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to
the Board. Shareholders may send their enquiries by post or
by email to the attention of the Company Secretary who will
direct the enquiries to the Board for handling.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the Group’s business for the Year is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on page 6 to page
11 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 12
to page 19 of this annual report. Principal financial risks and
uncertainties (or contingent liabilities) facing the Group are
set out in note 43 and note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are (i) the production and
sale of coal and trading of purchased coal and (ii) production
and sale of building materials in the PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at
that date are set out on pages 54 to 226 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the Year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements, the Group did not have any material acquisitions,
disposals and significant investments during the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the changes of Company’s share capital during the
Year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants (“Participants”) of the share option
scheme include any employee of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including any director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries). The shareholders of the Company approved
the termination of the share option scheme adopted on 20
October 2004 (the “Old Scheme”) and adoption of the new
share option scheme (the “New Scheme"”) in place of the Old
Scheme at the annual general meeting on 27 May 2014. The
New Scheme became effective on 27 May 2014 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for ten
years from that date until 26 May 2024.

Under the New Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may at its discretion grant options to the Participants
to subscribe for shares provided that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the adoption date. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the New Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Details of the said termination of the Old Scheme and
adoption of the New Scheme were also set out in the
Company’s circular dated 24 April 2014.

No share options were granted during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, the Company had no share options outstanding under
the New Scheme.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities on the
Stock Exchange during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The sales and purchases of the Group are predominantly in
RMB which is the functional currency of the related group
entities. The Board therefore is of the opinion that the Group’s
sensitivity to the change in foreign currency is low and the
Group does not hedge its foreign currency risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has a total of
approximately 2,002 employees located in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Salaries are reviewed annually with discretionary bonuses
being paid depending on individual performance. The Group
also provides other benefits including medical insurance and
pension funds. A share option scheme was adopted by the
Group on 27 May 2014 to enable the Directors to grant share
options to eligible participants including any employee of the
Group as incentive to their valuable contribution to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial
reporting process, internal controls and risk management.
The Audit Committee comprises three of the INEDs of the
Company. The members of the Audit Committee have
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and were of the opinion
that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements and those
adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on
pages 23 to 34 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules throughout the financial year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, to the knowledge of the Board, the Group
had complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a material impact on the business of the Group in all material
aspects and there were no circumstances of material breach or
non-compliance of applicable laws and regulations.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 was nil. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account as at 31 December 2018, in the amount of
approximately HK$261.8 million (as at 31 December 2017:
approximately HK$235.3 million), can be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year under review, the percentage of turnover
attributable to the largest customer and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 37.2% and 77.7%
respectively. The percentage of purchases attributable to the
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 43.4% and 83.6% respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Dong Cunling (Chairman)

Mr. Li Xiangfei (appointed in June 2018)
Mr. Sun Shusheng (appointed in June 2018)
Mr. Zhang Yi (appointed in February 2018)
Mr. Zhou Guangwen

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Li Chunyan

INEDs:

Dr. Chen Renbao
Mr. Ma Wai Tong (appointed in September 2018)
Mr. Ma Yueyong

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all INEDs and as at the date of this annual
report still considers them to be independent.

In accordance with bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Li Xiangfei, Mr. Sun Shusheng, Mr. Ma Wai Tong, Mr. Chen
Renbao will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 22 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director of the Company being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, no director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN THE
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures and Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO0);
or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in the ordinary shares of the
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Company
Approximate
Number of percentage
Number of underlying of shares
Name of Directors Nature of interest shares shares shareholdings
IR
EsnE EEME ROEE MHEEARGHE OB
Mr. Dong Cunling Personal interest 540,000 - 0.05%
BEfFKREE B A=
Mr. Li Xiangfei Personal interest 100,000,000 - 9.61%
FARESE (PN 34
Mr. Sun Shusheng Personal interest 3,432,000 - 0.33%
BREELE (PN ¥4
Mr. Yang Hua* Personal interest 10,089,196 - 0.97%
HEERE (BN 34

* Resigned in February 2018
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

So far as was known to the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2018, the person, other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO were as follows:
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(a) Long positions in the shares

RGP ZHER

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares shareholdin
i\
BRERB A 5@ K% E BABE DL
) Retop International Investment Beneficial Owner 241,400,000 23.21%
Limited (note 1) N o
fﬁ%lﬁf’%&ﬁﬁ[ﬁ a (Mis1) ER#EEA
(2) Vestfoco International Investment Interests in controlled 241,400,000 23.21%
Limited (“Vestfoco”) (note 1) ’corporatjbon/
HEBRIREARAR ([#8]) RiAEER
(MFET)
(3) Mr. Bao Hongkai (“Mr. Bao") Interests in controlled 241,400,000 23.21%
(notem1) corporatlon
By s ([BEE]) 7k 4 2
(F=ET)
Beneficial Owner 675,000 0.06%
EmEAA
(4) Mr. Li Yupeng (note 2) Beneficial Owner 71,000,000 6.83%
ZEMEAE (HsE2) EnEEA
(5) Minan Holding Limited Beneficial Owner 127,500,000 12.26%
fnote 3) -
(PI5E3) EnlEAA
(6) Mr. Zhang Xinzhi (note 3) Interest in controlled 127,500,000 12.26%

corporation

REZLLE (KHEE3)

Retop International Investment Limited is beneficially
and wholly owned by Vestfoco of which Mr. Bao is
the sole beneficial owner. Accordingly, Vestfoco and
Mr. Bao are deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by Retop International Investment
Limited.

Mr. Li Yupeng is independent and not related to the
Board or management of the Company.

Minan Holding Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Xinzhi. He is not related to the
Board or management of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no persons had an interest or
a short position in the shares and the underlying shares
as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PENSION SCHEME AND COSTS

Details of the Group’s pension scheme and the employer’s
pension costs charged to the consolidated income statement
for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group had no significant
obligations for long service payments to its employee pursuant
to the requirements under the Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong, at 31 December 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 3 January 2018, the Company has completed a connected
transaction (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule)
in relation to the issue of subscription shares to a substantial
shareholder. Details of the transaction has been disclosed in
the note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has not conducted
any “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” which is subject to reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules. The transactions
disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
as related party transactions did not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors are considered to have interest in any business
which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with that of the
Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group have made charitable and relief
donations of approximately HK$606,000 (2017: Nil).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statement, the Group had not any contingent liabilities as at
the 31 December 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2019 Annual General Meeting (the “2019 AGM") of
the Company is scheduled on Thursday, 30 May 2019. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2019
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 27 May 2019 to Thursday, 30 May 2019, both
days inclusive. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2019 AGM, all transfers of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 May 2019

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business
was entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, a permitted
indemnity provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance was in force for the benefit of the Directors during
the Year.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES IN THE PAST
TWELVE MONTHS

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28
November 2017, a fund raising activity regarding to the issue
of 200,000,000 subscription shares with aggregated gross
proceed of HK$40 million has been completed on 3 January
2018. The proceeds was mainly for general working capital of
the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group did not carry out significant events after 31
December 2018 and until the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Moore Stephens CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the 2019 AGM.

Dong Cunling
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BED ¥R

To the shareholders of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 226, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a
consolidated net loss of approximately HK$152,632,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and, as of that
date, the Group has net current liabilities of approximately
HK$888,441,000 and a capital deficiency of approximately
HK$163,467,000, among which the outstanding
borrowings of approximately HK$1,393,928,000 (including
bank loans of approximately HK$563,257,000, other
loans of approximately HK$198,943,000, bills payables
of approximately HK$607,783,000, amount due to an
associate of approximately HK$14,640,000, amounts due to
shareholders of approximately HK$9,135,000 and interest-
free loans provided by certain related parties of approximately
HK$170,000) are due to repayment within one year from the
end of the reporting period or repayable on demand.

These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainties Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HRETEE

BREFTSE(E)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENAEERREITSEE

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

FERMEEREG

(Refer to notes 3.12, 4(iv), 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19
to the consolidated financial statements)
(BLHREMBEmERMTE3 12 4(v) 15 16"
1718%19)

The management of the Company had performed
an impairment review in accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 36 Impairment
of Assets in relation to the Group’s coal
mining operation, which is considered by the
management as a cash-generating unit (“CGU").
The Group had recognised an impairment loss of
approximately HK$14,237,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018, allocating to the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$5,693,000 and mining rights of
approximately HK$8,544,000.
ERAERBECRREB ST LERNEICREE
HES BEEENKRBRESETRER G
ZEBREEBREA—HReELAENL([RE
EXEN]) BEEEERBEE_ZT-N\F+=
A=+ —HALEFEERREREEA14,237,000
BT 7REVE BERIRENEREED
5,693,000/% 7T K 5 #i& # 478,544,000/ 7T °

The recoverable amount of the CGU was
determined based on higher of value-in-use or
fair value less cost of disposal, which requires
significant management’s judgements concerning
the estimated future cash flows.
ReEELBEUNAIKREeENERRSEAEE
FATFEREERAEE TESEEMMGER
IR ©m 8 B ARH -

Accordingly, we have identified management’s
impairment assessment of the CGU as a key audit
matter.

Hit E5HEEEHEcELBUMNREN R
BRlA-HARESAFE-
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Our key procedures to address the matter included:
EREEZEFEMKDNEEREFBHE:

Discussed with the management of the
Company and the independent valuer engaged
by the Company (the “Valuer”) regarding the
reasonableness of the valuation methodology being
adopted;

H O BRAREEER EARZEENBAER
(TEEED ) s TR (R E T EN S IR 1L

Discussed with the management of the Company
and the Valuer and the assumptions and inputs
used in determining the recoverable amount of
the CGU and challenged the reasonableness and
relevance of key assumptions and inputs based on
our knowledge of the business and industry;

B BRRERERGEMN MR SEEELAIK
e&BMECEANEHBARE BESFHEK
RITENTR KEBFERJILERNBANS RN
RABRAM ;

Checked the allocation of impairment loss amongst
assets within the CGU in accordance with the
applicable accounting standard; and
BESHENGHEL RERESELEUNEELZ
WEBREIRBER: &

Assessed the objectivity, competency and
experience of the Valuer.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEESTSEE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B B A RE

BARETSE(4)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENNAEERREITEH

Impairment assessment of accounts and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables

BUERERE REREMERREZBERG

(Refer to notes 3.15, 4(iii), 25, 26 and 43(a) to the
consolidated financial statements)
(B2HEAMBRRMES. 15 4i) - 25 26 %
43(a))

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
accounts and bills receivables, and deposits and
other receivables amounting to approximately
HK$452,649,000 and HK$14,373,000
respectively. The Group had recognised an
expected credit loss (“ECL"”) on accounts and bills
receivables of approximately HK$9,156,000 while
no ECL was recognised for deposits and other
receivables during the year ended 31 December
2018.

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—HB' EBEEENE
WHERARER B REMERKIED /L
452,649,000 7t & 14,373,0008 L& == F
—N\F+_A=+—HILFE X BEXECDHREK
R kEEEREREEEE ([AHEEEE])
#19,156,000/8 7T » W AR R IR & K H b FE U5 50 18 B
RIERAEEHE-

The ECL assessment on accounts and bills
receivables, and deposits and other receivables
is considered to be a matter of most significance
as it requires the application of significant
judgement and use of subjective assumptions
by management. The management of the
Company believed that the methodologies and
inputs used in estimating ECL are appropriate
and best reflects the Group’s exposure to credit
risk. These models and assumptions relate
to the future macroeconomic conditions and
debtors’ creditworthiness. The ECL assessment
requires significant management’s judgements.
Accordingly, we have identified management'’s
ECL assessment as a key audit matter.

B R RE - 2e KA K FIAZ TREE
EEENAERREARRE AEAFTEERERA
HETRERTHRE BERAREBERR LT
BHEEBRRMERZ AR ERBAEE -
RASEMAXGERRARZ ZRERKR -ZFERA
MBRERERREZBERSBEBRAREEAGERR-
BEHEEERNLFIEZEREBELERAE -H
b EEHEEEHReELBEUNTENEES
BRIfE R A —HARETSEE

Our key procedures to address the matter included:
EERREZEEMRNNTERFEHE:

Discussed with the management of the Company
the reasonableness and relevance of the
methodologies, inputs and assumptions adopted in
performing the ECL assessment;

B BRRERENRBITRBEEEENMEAMR
M2z % BEREARBROSIBERAEBIL:

Obtained an ageing analysis of the accounts
and bills receivables from the management of
the Group and tested the accuracy of ageing of
accounts and bills receivables at year end to the
underlying invoices on a sample basis;

®t SEEEEEERSEUERERLZENRERDT
%%%ﬂﬁm%%%m%%%ﬁ&%%ii%%m
RN

Challenged the management’s ECL assessment
regarding long outstanding and overdue deposits
and receivables;

KEEREHRAANES REWFENTAHRES
B E AT

Checked, on a sample basis, inputs used by the
management in the ECL assessment against
the source data (e.g. historical information and
observable external data); and

MEREERENEREEBET GEANREE
(PIENFE 2 E# R AT B SR INBER ) M E R A &

Assessed the adequacy of the ECL recorded by
reviewing subsequent settlements after the year
end and related correspondence with customers
about expected settlement dates.

FRBEHNFRENCEBEEURET S ERTEME
FEEHMEAERMRE T ERAEEEENR
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information in the Group’s
2018 annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The audit committee of the Company assists the directors in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee of the Company with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee
of the Company, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Yu Ngong
Practising Certificate Number: P06734

Hong Kong, 30 March 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE W aE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—LF
it % FET FHET
Revenue W =5 6 961,440 529,884
Cost of sales & A (901,900) (630,373)
Gross profit/(loss) ERN(E8) 6 59,540 (100,489)
Other income and gains I NS 6 55,743 41,152
Selling and distribution expenses  $H& Kk $HFH X (37,605) (4,486)
Administrative expenses THRAX (90,143) (53,591)
Other expenses H 5 2 (4,276) (6,894)
Finance costs 8755 7 (101,514) (42,336)
Share of results of associates JEAEEEE N R EE (12,826) (1,814)
Share of results of a joint venture fE{h — & L ¥ EE 51 31
Net impairment loss on financial & ®EERANEE 2 ME
and contract assets B8 55 43(a) (9,626) (455)
Impairment loss on property, plant 1% - Bi/&E & &% 2 W8 B8
and equipment 15 (5,693) (15,902)
Impairment loss on mining rights LA 2 B E & B 18 (8,544) (11,830)
Loss before income tax MRS B ATEE 8 (154,893) (196,614)
Income tax credit FRETE R 9 2,261 -
Loss for the year FRAEBAE (152,632) (196,614)
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{5F R EIE :
Owners of the Company iN/NETEF TN (142,747) (178,858)
Non-controlling interests JEVE IS 2 (9,885) (17,756)
(152,632) (196,614)
Loss per share attributable to ZAATREEABLEESRER
the owners of the Company
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE (GBL) 10 (13.747) (25.097)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z _—F

%—'FA%ELI& z R

—NF+-A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—+F
FERT FET
Loss for the year FAEBE (152,632) (196,614)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEKE  (BHE)
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified HEgrAsEfoBEBR2EE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation MEIBINETE I TS IRRE L
of financial statements of foreign A
operations:
— subsidiaries — B A A 14,109 (6,803)
- a joint venture ——HEEE (326) 433
— associates o E—/NG] (5,156) 7,258
8,627 894
Share of other comprehensive income/  JE{§ — & A A 2
(loss) of an associate Hin 2wz, (E8) 16,090 (1,283)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) HEAEFH/BEEEBFz2HME2E
that may be reclassified subsequently to Ugzs, (518 ) F5a
profit or loss 24,717 (389)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit HE ~f@E#HHHEEER 2 HER ¢
or loss:
Change in the fair value of equity A ER AE M2 RS
investments at fair value through KREZANTVEEZE
other comprehensive income 8 =
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREME2ERKZE (EE)
for the year, net of tax MR IE 24,725 (389)
Total comprehensive loss for the year F A2 H B E 5 (127,907) (197,003)
Total comprehensive loss BiE2EERAE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company NANRIEBR A (116,642) (180,710)
Non-controlling interests FEE IS HE 2 (11,265) (16,293)
(127,907) (197,003)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R R

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-N\F —E—+tF
HtaE FEx FHAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R E KR 15 396,187 239,133
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT T # AR & RRIE 16 66,197 -
Goodwill GRS 17 - -
Mining rights PRIEE 18 293,917 326,535
Other intangible assets Hth\EpEE 20 623 -
Interests in associates REtE AR 2 Em 21 100,046 101,938
Interest in a joint venture R—EEERE 2R 22 5,973 6,248
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHEeREE 23 - 710
Financial assets at fair value through %A {EFT A KM 2 E UK
other comprehensive income TREE 23 682 -
863,625 674,564
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 24 24,849 14,056
Accounts and bills receivables and ~ JEUWERR N ZiE MW EE
contract assets 25 454,569 221,340
Prepaid land lease payments Taff £ A & FRIE 16 1,506 -
Prepayments, deposits and other TERT IR -~ i e R A b I
receivables A 26 24,480 379,289
Tax recoverable A Y (B 7 50 9,433 9,412
Pledged and restricted bank deposits 23 & R HRITER  27(a) 656,651 616,880
Cash and cash equivalents e MESEEIER 27(b) 35,789 170,878
1,207,277 1,411,855
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts and bills payables e BRI R R 28 658,132 817,863
Amount due to an associate JE 5 — MBS & A B 5RIE 21 14,640 -
Amounts due to shareholders JE <t B 2R 3R 08 29 9,135 41,097
Other payables and accruals HthERRIBRESEA 30 551,447 458,078
Provision for reclamation obligations B 2R 2 FH & & 31 100,164 99,480
Bank and other loans RITMEMER 32 762,200 613,519
2,095,718 2,030,037
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (888,441) (618,182)
Total assets less current liabilities BAEERRBEE (24,816) 56,382

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B OIR R R

As at 31 December 2018 RZ-ZZF—N\F+_A=+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\E —E—+F
HtaE FExT FHTT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Amount due to an associate FES — B & A B TR 21 - 99,589
Loans from shareholders REKREEZR 29 54,491 =
Bank and other loans RITMEMER 32 78,364 33,381
Deposit received Bl e 30 2,165 -
Deferred income EIEUL A 33 3,142 -
Deferred tax liabilities BT IBEEE 34 489 -
138,651 132,970
Net liabilities 8 EFE (163,467) (76,588)
EQUITY R 2 4 22
Share capital % s 35 104,017 71,267
Deficit in reserves BB AL 36(a) (209,671) (79,933)
Deficiency attributable to the RARHER AEMEZE M
owners of the Company (105,654) (8,666)
Non-controlling interests FiERER (57,813) (67,922)
Capital deficiency =N (163,467) (76,588)
The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 226 FSAE226EMIREMBHMRLESTS R
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of “E-NF=ZA=+HEAERFERE W
Directors on 30 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: HIUATATRERESE -
Dong Cunling Sun Shusheng
ERFK BREXE
Director Director
EFE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaRfS X

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

NGl 2PN
Total
Capital Exchange Statutory Non- equity/
Share Share ~ redemption Other Contributed ~ fluctuation Capital reserve  Accumulated controlling (capital
capital  premium* reserve*  reserves* surplus* reserve* reserve* fund* [osses* Total interests  deficiency)

foe3al)  (oe3Gal)  (oe36ali) (oie3Galh)  (oe3ball) (o3t (ot Bali)
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HKY000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
fuile E}{RE Rt/
b Bk W AtRE SRR G ATBE AThRe  EHER e (RAER)
(hizsgan)  (eisseli) - (iczssal) - (Wzsgal)  (Wissah) - (ezssati) (Rt
TEr T TEr  TEn  TAm  TEm TR TEr  TRn  TAm  TEm  TER

At 1 January 2017 R=%-t£-HA-A 267 235334 50 35430 641 137,371 AL 133928 (489.419) 152,044 (51,629) 100415

Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - - (178858)  (1788%%)  (17756)  (196,614)

Other comprehensive (loss)fincome  £RE M2 (BE) /Wi
for the year

Exchange differences on translation &35 ERHBREER
of financial statements of foreign ~ Z%

operations

- subsidiaries -KBAA - - - - - (7613) - - - (7,613) 810 (6,803)

- a joint venture -—HaEtE - - - - - 3% - - - 395 4 439

- ass0Ciates -BEQA - - - - - 6,533 - - - 6,533 725 7258
Share of other comprehensive loss of (5 —EE¥E ARl 212 E

an associate B = = = (1.167) = = = = = (1.167) (116) (1,283)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 AR EEE - - - (1,167) - (685) - - (178858  (180,710)  (16,293)  (197,003)
Cash advanced in relation to BERBLERZRRE

subscription of ordinary shares — (fz£36(a)fi))

(note 36{a)i) - - - 20,000 - - - - - 20,000 - 20,000
Transfer o other reserves R RER - - - 12,303 - - - - (12,303) - - -
At 31 December 2017 R-E-t§+-A=1-H 71,267 235,334 50 66,566 641 136,686 27442 133928 (680,580) (8,666) (67,922) (76,588)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REeEEa® X

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ROREE AR
Capital Exchange Statutory Non-
Share Share - redemption Other Contributed fluctuation Capital reserve Accumulated controlling Capital
capital premium*  reserve*  reserves*  surplus*  reserve*  reserve* fund* losses* Total interests  deficiency
(note366)f)  (note356Mi)  (hote 35a))  (note366)  (rote35aNt)  (rote tiaNi) - (rote 6N
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
B4R ]
ks RiEE R HftRE  AEs A EARE telES  RAER & FERER  EAEY
(Ricta6ial)  (t3efali)  (Rieteeli) (Hietsetali)  (HE3e(ali) (Wat3eieki) (Hict3sial)
Tin Tin Tin T T Firn T Thn Tin Tin Tin Tin
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE-tE
T-A=t-HBEH 71,267 235,334 50 66,566 641 136,686 21,482 133928 (680,580) (8,666) (67,922) (76,588)
Impact on initial application of  #IAEME B HRE %S
HKFRS 9 (note 2(b) 29522 (W) = = = = - - - - (36784 (36784  (4086)  (40,870)
Adjusted balance at 1 January ~ R=F-N\§-F-B
2018 FELF 71,261 235,334 50 66,566 641 136,686 2748 133928 (717.364) (45,450) (72,008)  (117,458)
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - - (142747)  (142,747)  (9885)  (152,632)
Other comprehensive incomef(loss) R 2 BN/ (BiE)
for the year
Exchange differences on translation A EEHERGKERER
of finandial statements of 28
foreign operations
— subsidiaries -KEARA - - - - - 16,550 - - - 16,550 (2,441) 14,109
- a joint venture ——HaEtE - - - - - (293) - - - (293) (33) (326)
- associates -BEAT - - - - - (4,641) - - - (4,641) (515) (5,156)
Share of other comprehensive  EE—RBADE 224
income of an associate ey - - - 14,481 - - - - - 14,481 1,609 16,090
Change in fair value of equity FREMEENEEATE
investments at fair value through 587 RAREZ ATE
other comprehensive income -4 - - - 8 - - - - - 8 - 8
Total comprehensive incomel(loss)  £R2ENRE/ (5E) 28
for the year - - - 14,489 - 11,616 - - (142,747) (116,642 (11,265)  (127,907)
Additions through acquisition of ~ EBKEHBARFE
subsidiaries (note 38) (Hi38) - - - - - - - - - - 20,649 20,649
Capital injection from ERER 2 TE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 4,751 4,751
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHHBAR - - - - - - - - - - 54 54
Deemed capital contribution arising B{EK B EHSERE
from non-current interest-free &2 A (Mit29p)
shareholders' loan (note 29)) - - - 17,185 - - - - - 17,185 - 17,185
Shares issued in consideration for ~ BB AAMETRE
the acquisition of subsidiaries &{3 (HizE35(a)%38)
(notes 35(a) and 38) 12,750 6,503 - - - - - - - 19,253 - 19,253
Issuance of shares pursuant BEZESEE ARG
to the subscriptions** (HiE35(b) R 36(2)i))
(notes 35(b) and 36(a)ii) 20,000 20,000 - (20,000) - - - - - 20,000 - 20,000
Transfer from other reserves fEHRRER - - - (13628) - - - - 13,628 - - -
At 31 December 2018 RoB-NE+ZB=+-R 104017 261,837 50 64,612 641 148,302 21482 133,928  (846,483)  (105,654) (57,813)  (163,467)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A 4 3L 4
N =9 *E ﬁ ﬁ Ej] '%%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

* *

These accounts comprise the consolidated deficits of reserves
of approximately HK$209,671,000 (2017: approximately
HK$79,933,000) in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Included in the amount represented deposit of approximately
HK$20,000,000 received from Retop International Investment
Limited before the year ended 31 December 2017, an entity
indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Bao Hongkai (“Mr. Bao”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, for the subscription
of ordinary shares of the Company which was completed on 3
January 2018. Such amount was recorded in “Other reserves”.
Upon the completion of the subscription, such amount was
reversed and formed part of share capital and share premium.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GREHEEMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
—E-N\F —E—+F
et FEx FET
Cash flows from operating RETHZHENRE
activities
Loss before income tax KR PT1S T A B 18 (154,893) (196,614)
Adjustments for: ARIEE
Share of results of associates i AN E S 12,826 1,814
Share of results of a joint venture  fE{E—RIA S DEELS (51) (31)
Finance costs B ER 7 101,514 42,336
Discount at inception of deposit BYIEE 2 MR ITIRE
received 6 (2,458) —
Amortisation of mining rights TR i 8 7,805 3,205
Amortisation of other intangible H i A A 5
assets 8 80 =
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  FEA + 1t FH & 1< TR ik 84
payments 8 1,569 =
Amortisation of deferred income  JEZELU A # 5 33 (1,115) -
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 8 56 407
Net impairment loss on financial ~ ©Ei N A RIEE 2 HEEE
and contract assets FER 43(a) 9,626 455
Impairment loss on property, plant 4% - BiE & 3248 2 BiE
and equipment 518 15 5,693 15,902
Impairment loss on mining rights B~ REEE 18 8,544 11,830
Interest income FLEWA 6 (2,296) (3,987)
Depreciation e 8 59,332 22,988
Loss on disposals of property, HEYE - BEREEL
plant and equipment, net BB 8 95 2,466
Gain on bargain purchase arising  WEEKEBARIFTEL ZZEB
from acquisition of subsidiaries BESHE 6 (2,629) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMEARZS5m 6 (62) -
Provision for reclamation FIZR &
obligations 31 6,087 2,345
Reversal of provision for central BB RRIKE 5T B 2 B
pension scheme 6 (24,533) (36,915)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GREREMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-N\F —E—tF
et FERT FET
Operating profit/(loss) before EEESEHALCERTN
working capital changes (E8) 25,190 (133,799)
Increase in inventories FEE N (2,300) (10,188)
Increase in accounts and bills EUWEER N ZEE N AR
receivables and contract assets BEEN (224,679) (30,063)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits & 7018 - #2 & & E b jE UL
and other receivables FRIE R 297,350 103,593
Decrease in accounts and bills JE - AR 2k N ZE R
payables (185,504) (74,742)
Increase in other payables and H e BRI R FERT B AL N
accruals 64,216 36,820
Deposit received Blizs 4,554 -
Cash used in operations KB RIR S (21,173) (108,379)
Interest received 2 HF B 6 2,296 3,987
Interest paid B FLE 7 (92,692) (42,336)
Income tax paid =ENPZIEEY (665) (242)
Net cash used in operating activities & & E & FT IR & /558 (112,234) (146,970)
Cash flows from investing RETBZHRERE
activities
Purchases of property, plant and BEYVE BWEMKE
equipment 15 (32,613) (5,390)
Purchases of other intangible assets & B H fib iz & & 20 (730) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEW - BE M &RE
plant and equipment FTS B 55 628
Net cash inflow on acquisition of  WHEKIEB AR ZIR &R AFEE
subsidiaries 38 19,586 =
Net cash outflow on disposal of a HE—RIWBAR 2RSSR
subsidiary ek (55) -
Increase in pledged and restricted 2 & R H 0 R 1T FE R
bank deposits 0 (74,771) (51,610)
Net cash used in investing activities & & & B)FT IR & F 58 (88,528) (56,372)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GREHEEMRNER

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
—E-N\F —E—+F
et FEx FET
Cash flows from METEZ2RERE
financing activities
Capital injection from EERER TR
non-controlling interests 4,757 =
Cash received in relation to the BHARELTBEIR 2 EKES
subscription of ordinary shares 35(b) - 20,000
Proceeds from issuance of BITRA Z 1B 5IE
share capital 35(b) 20,000 =
Proceeds from bank loans RITERZFIBHRIE 207,618 868,290
Repayments of bank loans BERITER (182,704) (770,295)
Proceeds from other loans EME RS IE 201,975 34,451
Repayments of other loans BEAMER (37,584) (115)
Proceeds from loans from KEREERZAERIAE
shareholders 94,800 =
Repayments of loans from RREBERZFAERIEA
shareholders (29,660) =
(Repayment to)/advance (FRIRRERER),REKE
from shareholders B (31,962) 24,577
Repayment to an associate M — & R RIER (79,785) -
Repayments to related parties, net [IEFE A TEFK - F58 (109,669) (242)
Proceeds from a director’s loan m—BREZERAERIE - 8,000
Net cash generated from BEEBMEER e FE
financing activities 57,786 184,666
Net decrease in cash ReRESEEBEAFERD
and cash equivalents (142,976) (18,676)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZzReERREEE
1 January IH B 170,878 178,134
Effect of foreign exchange INETEREF) v &
rate changes 7,887 11,420
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-—A=t+t—HBzHRE&RE
31 December ©%EEAE 35,789 170,878
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The Company’'s shares are listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) include (i) production and
sale of coal and the trading of purchased coal and (ii)
production and sale of building materials in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal activities
and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out in note
14.

The production and sale of building materials operation
is related to the acquisition of subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2018, details are set out in note 38.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 were approved for issue by the board
of directors of the Company on 30 March 2019.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
effective from 1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are
mandatorily effective for an accounting period that
begins on or after 1 January 2018. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
HK(IFRIC) Foreign Currency Transactions
Interpretation and Advance Consideration
22
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRI REEBITEBTER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING SR ([EEBIEREE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

EUNNIE )
() RMBE=-B-—N\F—A—B4%

effective from 1 January 2018 (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

The directors of the Company concluded that the
adoption of HKFRS 15 has not had any changes or
material impact on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. HKFRS 15 also
introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in
relation to classification of financial assets and
measurement of credit losses. Details of the changes
in accounting policies are discussed in note 2(b) for
HKFRS 9.

Except for the HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the
application of these new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

M2 FE] RG] B R M B R

ERA (4

REL B M E RMERNE R S5
HARE] 1R R AR R R R S B

ARREZRHERBRRRE
M BHRELENFISHE TS Y
FEVBHRRADEASRENX
EAESHELBEATE -FE
IR EERIZE 155 TR 5l AR
SMEMEREERBERTE B EE
BBRREAEETREFPAL
ZHE &8 KE KERE
EROTEERE -

AEBCESRMEEDBUNTE
EEERTAX BB BRESE
AESEMTE-ERBBYH
WELERNFRE T HRBRE
B F BRI EE2(0) RS ©

GEEMBREENEIRLE
B ERELERE 155K 2N R
REERMZENR] B EMER
R REEFTAR TS HARF
BERAEFEASENP BRI
R R, %S IS ®E
NN RBEERERTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
effective from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Under the transition methods chosen, the Group
has recognised cumulative effect of the initial
application of HKFRS 9 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
Comparative information is not restated. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included in the following table. As a
result, the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot
be recalculated from the numbers provided. The
following table gives a summary of the opening

BE_FT-—\FT_A=1T—"HIFE

2. BRAFEIRLIETE AR
HFEA (BB EREE
Al )#&)

(a)

RMwE=-F-N\F-HA—H%
M2 HE] RAEERT ERMBR

L || (42 )
=9 /E\IJ (g2 /

RIFPMEZABRE  ARE
HREREET G HmEELFE9
BRI FERAR/N TN\
F—A— BRMERRENH
BoBEMLAREN TR
AMATZZEHZERIAR - A
It P ER B/ R R AR AT T REE
PR BIr BHETE - TRE
ARSI BIRNZ T ERES
B HmEERIFEIRT ERIA R

balance adjustments recognised for the line items in TR A V)65 B 2X -
the consolidated statement of financial position that
have been impacted by HKFRS 9:
Impact of
initial
At application of At
31 December HKFRS 9 1 January
2017 (note 2(b)) 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
n BRERERE i
—E—tF BHEBREEA —E-N\F
+T=R FOHENEE —A
=t+—H (K1aE2(b)) —H
FHET FTH&T F#& T
Available-for-sale AR EeMEE
financial assets 710 (710) -
Investment in equity BT RBIRAFERA
instruments designated  EH b & E U S B #E
at fair value through =T EKE
other comprehensive
income - 710 710
Total non-current assets R B EELLE 674,564 - 674,564
Accounts and bills U R ERE
receivables 221,340 (11,582) 209,758
Deposits and other & & H e Y skI8
receivables 375,594 (29,288) 346,306
Total current assets REEEHAT 1,411,855 (40,870) 1,370,985
Net current liabilities HREEEFE (618,182) (40,870) (659,052)
Total assets less current BEERRBEE
liabilities 56,382 (40,870) 15,512
Net liabilities BEFHE (76,588) (40,870) (117,458)
Deficit in reserves & 15 &5 A (79,933) (36,784) (116,717)
Deficiency attributable ZRAQAT#EE AEL
to the owners of the &5 A
Company (8,666) (36,784) (45,450)
Non-controlling interests JE1% IR #E & (67,922) (4,086) (72,008)
Capital deficiency BB 4 (76,588) (40,870) (117,458)

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERENVHET RKETEBYKH

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING LSER([FERBUBEHREE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) Al 1) &)

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (a) EME=-ZT—NF—H—B4%
effective from 1 January 2018 (continued) MZEH] RBIEFT BB R

EER ()

Further details of these changes are set out in sub- ZE BB E — S B E A
section (b) of this note. 1 (b) Dl ©

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (b) EERMBHREEAEIFRSH

TAH

HKFRS 9 replaces Hong Kong Accounting Standard BB TERE R FOEENRE
("HKAS") 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition e &R ([ EFBeHER |E
and Measurement. It sets out the requirements for 0L AT A : EAREE %
recognising and measuring financial assets, financial R H RN ESREE
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non- SREELRETESIESRIER
financial items. In accordance with the specific AHRIETE  IRIER AP ERE
transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 9, the Group X Bl 5505F T & B B 228 B (R
has applied the classification and measurement Yo AREBEKER-ZT—N\E
requirements (including requirements relating to ——BEGEZEERER:
impairment under expected credit losses (“ECL") HRERERBEH(EIZZE— N
model) to items that existed as of the date of initial F—H—R)FENIEB BE
application (i.e. 1 January 2018) on a retrospective BEEsERTeERc(BEE
basis based on the facts and circumstances that R EE([BEHEEEE | E
existed as at 1 January 2018. However, the Group HTRENETE) Al ~NEE
has decided not to restate the comparative figures. ERETEY L EREF - B It
Accordingly, the comparative information continues LB BB B AR I B 2 5 4R
to be presented based on the requirements of HKAS F305E AR E 25 B ] g |ESE
39 and hence may not be comparable with the BEARFEERLER - EAERS
current year information. The cumulative effect of BB TSR R E o B
initial application of HKFRS 9 has been recognised B O R AHIE SRR o

as adjustments to the opening equity.

The following table summarises the impact of TEBMBEEF ST RERE

transition to HKFRS 9 on deficit in reserves and non- B0 U N —F— \FE—H—

controlling interests at 1 January 2018. B GRS A R IE R RS 2 &
2o

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

BRANFTR] R AR BB MR
HEA(EFERYHREE

] D)

(b) BERMBREERFIRLH

ITE(#E)
HK$000
T T
Deficit in reserves 1 185 Al
Net increase in deficit in reserves at RZZE-—N\F—-—A—BaHHEE
1 January 2018 - Recognition of additional 412 hn 5 58 — iR @ S5 K AN 5 =AY
expected credit losses on financial assets TRIEERRBIEAHEESE
measured at amortised cost (note (ii)) (B aEii)) 36,784
Non-controlling interests FEERER
Decrease in non-controlling interests at R-ZE—N\F—H—HREERER

1 January 2018 - Recognition of additional 54> —iZ# $4 Ak At £ 89
expected credit losses on financial assets CTRHEERARBINEHEEESE

measured at amortised cost (note (ii) (Bt i)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

(i) Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"”) and at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). These
supersede HKAS 39's categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVTPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. The Group did not designate or
de-designate any financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL at 1 January 2018.

Accounting policy resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.14.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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T

(i) ZHEERZHMEEND
]
78 B %5 i 5 2RI R 957 A
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AR - HEHR AT E
BAFEFAREMEZEEK
S([BAFESARMR
W |) MR FERA
Ba((BRAFEFTAR
i) AR E B g5 £
FIR AR ED M
BB M EWGRIA - AT
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FRPABENERMEENR
Al HRMBRELERIF
FETEMEENDBRE
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ARBHRERERH -1
—T-N\FE-A—H &X&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

BRANHE] KRBT BB ]
SEA(EEUBREE

STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued) Al ))
(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) (b) BERMBHREELEILH
TH(#E)
(i) Classification of financial assets and () 2HREERSHBEENS
financial liabilities (continued) B/(E)

The following table shows the original
measurement categories for each class of
the Group’s financial assets under HKAS 39,
and how are impacted by HKFRS 9. The table
below shows a reconciliation from the carrying
amounts of those financial assets determined
in accordance with HKAS 39 to those
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.

TRINNAEEZETE
BERBKEEGFEL)
FIVR W RBFTERR
RZEBS B @EERFE
SR E - TRIITIRE
(BB G EADFIRE
ENRELRmEERAE
HIRBK BBV BREE
ANFEIREEE 2 Bk -

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amounts at amounts at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification Remeasurement 2018
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BRI ER ERUBRE
#3958 ER|EO%
R-E-t% R=-B-N\E&
t-A=t-H -B-AH
ZIRHE BN E EfiitE ZRAE
THL TET TET TET
Financial assets carried at ~ REHALTIRZ ERE
amortised cost E
Accounts and bills receivables EMWET R ZEE
(note (i) (BizE(i) 221,340 - (11,582) 209,758
Deposits and other receivables 1% & 2 fE U F08
(note (i) (i) 375,594 - (29,288) 346,306
596,934 - (40,870) 556,064
Financial assets measured at A FEF AR MR EY
FVTOCI (non-recycling) = (FrgE)tgy
Unlisted equity securities MR E A
(note (A)) (HizE) - 710 = 710
Financial assets classified as ~ RIEE B S E8|$ 395
available-for-sale under PEANREEZS
HKAS 39 HEE
Unlisted equity securities FETRAES
(note (4)) (frn)) 710 (710) = =

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

] D)

SR 457 5] AT 3T B B B S 3R
e s

(b) BFEBUBHREERFIR LA

TE(E)
(i) Classification of financial assets and (i) =HREERTHEGNS
financial liabilities (continued) H(E)
Note: Bifat -
(A)  Under HKAS 39, equity securities not held for A BESEZHERE

trading were classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. These equity securities are
classified as at FVTPL under HKFRS 9, unless
they are eligible for and designated at FVTOCI
by the Group. At 1 January 2018, the Group
designated its investment in unlisted equity
instruments at FVTOCI (non-recycling), as the
investment is held for long term strategic
purposes (note 23).

In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the carrying amount of the unlisted
equity securities, which measured at cost
less impairment as at 31 December 2017,
approximates to its fair value as of 1 January
2018.

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 January
2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application of HKFRS 9.

395k WIFRIEEER
B AR TE 55 88 A A
ESREE-ZZERA
BHEBRERSHBRE
ERFOHE N B AIZA
FEFFABEBRIER
EERBHEAEEETE
BIEAFEFTAEME
Hzm - RZE—N\EF
—A—B REBEEFH
RIEEMmERTANE
BiETERRAFETA
Hi2mikss (A E
) REAEZEET
ARIBEEBEENER
(Mf5E23) ©

ARTEERA L
TRAES (R-F
—t#+-A=+—8
A AR SR B )
R=F—-N\F—H—H
0 85 7 1 525 2 (B4
e

FrETRAENTERR
BRETE -FrEEREE
R-ZZFE-—NFE—A—B®
FREELARZBBMBER
HEERIE ISR WA B A AT

A

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAFTIRBIETEBIMER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING £EA ([ BEBMBEREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) Bl V&)

(b) EBUHREEDEIRSH
TH(E)
(i) BRIGEEAE

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii) Expected credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model
in HKAS 39 with the ECL model. The ECL
model requires an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under
the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS
39.

The Group applies the new ECLs model to
the financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including pledged and restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, accounts
and bills receivables and contract assets, and
deposit and other receivables).

BRMBRELERIE IR A
BHREEEEELDRAKE
7 ' &t 2 A F395 A
[BEELEE|EE-BH
EEEIRER ESF AR
EESRMEERABNEE
Rk - FEREREEE
BORREFERREETES
FHERIEIRP [CELE
B EHERETTRER

AEBHRBHKAGTE
MEREE(BREEERR
ERHBITER RERB
FHEEAB  BURERNE
BRAHNEEARERE R
H b YR IR ) FE P T TR R
EEEEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRI REEBITEBIBER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

EER((EBUHRREE
] D)
(b) BFEBUBHREERFIR LA

TH(E)

(ii) Expected credit losses (continued) (ii)

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities designated at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) is not subject to the
ECLs assessment.

The following table is a reconciliation that
shows how the closing loss allowance as at
31 December 2017 determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 can be reconciled to the
opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2018
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9:

FAHEEER (&)
BAVEFENEREE
(BREEERAFEFAH
i 2 T M 25 B AR AR 28 25 (1
FE8))BAEITRBAE
EEERHA o

TRIIFTR=-ZF—LF
TZA=+T—BREEE
& ET AR FE395% 2 E 1
ABREFERER TN\
F-A-—ARBEFEYH

& 42 RI 55 955 7 TE H) HA )

EEREHEK
HK$000
FHET
Loss allowance recognised as at RZBE—+F+-_A=1+—HB1BE
31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 BB EREIRERN
EiERE 86,166
Additional loss allowance as a result of [ & A& B B 15 R & 2 B £ 957 18
the application of the ECL model under T BEEEEIEBEREA MEEINEIR
HKFRS 9 B
— Accounts and bills receivables — YRR R ER 11,582
— Deposits and other receivables — e REMEWKFRIA 29,288
Loss allowance recognised as at RZE-N\F—-—A—-—BREES
1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 WS R E R ER A EE
] 127,036

As a result of this change in accounting
policy, the Group has recognised additional
loss allowance amounting to approximately
HK$40,870,000, which increased deficit in
reserves by approximately HK$36,784,000
and decreased non-controlling interests by
approximately HK$4,086,000 as at 1 January
2018.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii) Related deferred tax

In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, as the future income stream of the
Group is uncertain, it is unlikely the deductible
temporary difference can be able to utilise in
the short period of time. Therefore, the related
deferred tax asset as at 1 January 2018 is not

recognised.

(c) New and revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs, which have been issued but
are not yet effective, in the consolidated financial

statements:

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Definition of a Business?

Amendments
HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HKAS 1 (Revised) and
HKAS 8 Amendments

HKAS 19 Amendments
HKAS 28 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23

Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting

2018

Definition of Material2

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019, with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with earlier application permitted

%

&4 H

= R P,

8 Do)
(b) BERMBREERFIREH

(c)

TR(#E)

WA RSB EBHBE
IESTE e

(iii) #HBHAE AL BB

ARRIEZRA ARASE
B2 R ARU A ANFETE - #
A 00 R B Z B A AH]
ReRE AN R HIAE A - E
- AEERAR T /\F
—A—HHERELTHA
BE-

C MM B 1 R A Rz # e R AR
BRI BB B ®REZEA
AEEW REARA M RETE
FALATS B R HE 1R R AR SRR T
REIERTBBM B ImE R

BER AR LR REAREBENA
Z10RREBEEE RELE7HINES
£28% (BITK) ENEE

BANRGLEAEE  EHoEE

(BET)BIA
BEEUMBRSENE6E  AE
BEMBRSENRTE  RRAWP
R Mz ER

(BET) RERGTEN

B AHEY)

BiesrEd HEET HRREE

£19% (B3TE)

BEeiEl REERRRAELE

£28% (BITE) MEHER

BEUBRERAETA  ABMEREE
A=Z3-nf2
“E-tEREHE
B!

B (ARG BRE R RN M

REZEE)RERDH
B \ERBREN LHEE Tl
BoER R

! R-ZF-NF—A—BxER
P60 F R HIR A R SRR
FIER

2 R-F_FTF—A—HxER
PR ) EIR AR AFTER
FRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(c)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021, with earlier application permitted

4 The amendments were original intended to be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now been
deferred. Early application of the amendments
continues to be permitted.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the above new
and revised HKFRSs. So far, based on the preliminary
assessment, it has concluded that the above new
and revised HKFRSs which will be adopted at the
respective effective dates is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group except for the following:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16
requires sale and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of HKFRS
15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also
includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

BRANHE] KRBT BB ®R
EER((EBUHRREE

A1)

(c)

V=2
(A& )

& 8 A 1B [ R A Rz #iET R AR

B ERMBHREEN(E)

3 R-E_—F-H-HxHE
B 6 H)F Z B A R SRR
REA

¢ BRIARBER _Z—RE—HA
—HRZRABNFEHRLE
Mo EMABELRE AR
AR R ERERI A

REE D ERAFTR] RIERT
AERM BT E 25 RLE
ERYI S AEREN SR
B ERET RAERTERIS N E B B
EXEBRA - BN KABEE A
KSEEEMBRRERERY
B LT BIRERIN -

BERVBREEANFE16REE
BB a2 1657 3L
RITEE R BEPA R A A R AR A
ZERTBRE S —EFA RN -
M BHRELEF165REN
BEMARE LS ERIE175
HENAARERE -

BAMBHRELELE165RIE
Frdin| EERG HEFPIEHIRE
DHEERRBEK - BIN BB
MM EERIE 165 EER
B X HRIEE S 5 s 28
RIS AHEREREERD
FEVERIHE ARNREMETE °
BAEMBHRELELE 165 T E
AR ENMEEBHRRE -

GRrRBEEREEEEREN
REHERMERENER Q&
A EERBE I hAHE
AEBIBHERRAEAEEE
KiAEEREIRAER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRI RKETEBIMBR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING XA ([ BB REE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) Al )

() New and revised HKFRSs that have been (c) EEMEERERZIHTRE
issued but are not yet effective (continued) BT E B RELR (4Z)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) BEREMBREENF16REE
The right-of-use asset is initially measured FRAEEEY SRR ASTE I
at cost and subsequently measured at cost 5 1% LA B 2N (HE 2 F 5 9IS S e
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated ON)RE B AT E R ORE S 1 5
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for E VYA EaE 2 EREHT
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease SEELHER - AEaBITIER
liability is initially measured at the present value ENZF(EERBXf) ZBHES
of the lease payments that are not paid at that E-fER HEAaEM(EHRm
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted )R B REENZIALBEE
for interest and lease payments, as well as the ST EERRAR B SRS
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. SHEmMEs ANEEB RIS RIERTE
For the classification of cash flows, the Group NHERBY|(EE A BEE i
currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments BB e EM¥ENEE L s
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands AR EE S RE &R
for owned use and those classified as investment ERZAFVERLIH S RE o N
properties while other operating lease payments are FER B A ERERD F 165
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application BOAEBESAEEEEaENRE
of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease ENZOREARS KT B -
liability will be allocated into a principal and an DRNFIERE KK LIRS RE °

interest portion which will be presented as financing
and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised BIER S %R|E1759 K&
an asset and a related finance lease liability for BEmEEAAAA Y HERE
finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease ZHE RN T E R — 18
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a BELAEREREaE - EH
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in 2 B R SR A Y BI 251658 1] B
potential changes in classification of these assets B ERE 7 D EHIREEE
depending on whether the Group presents right-of- ) BCRRAERESHDHE 27
use assets separately or within the same line item at FRELSERRE 25 AESE
which the corresponding underlying assets would be BE(WES)ZR—525BEER
presented if they were owned. 25l

Other than certain requirements which are also BT EEREEARNETIEE
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries G F IR ISR RS 1650 A
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS BIR B EH B ERE178H R
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a I ASHETE  WEEHE T
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease. FAABHEESEACLHES R
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by AN B B RS SR R 5516598
HKFRS 16. ENEITREIZWEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(c) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Also, as at 31 December 2018, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$1,199,000 as disclosed in note
39(b). A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits paid of approximately
HK$285,000 and refundable rental deposit
received with carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,165,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposit received would be considered as
advance lease payments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. S BEME
POLICIES
3.1 Basis of preparation 3.1 FEREXE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group's consolidated financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a consolidated net loss of
approximately HK$152,632,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and, as of that date, the
Group has net current liabilities of approximately
HK$888,441,000 and a capital deficiency of
approximately HK$163,467,000 among which
the outstanding borrowings of approximately
HK$1,393,928,000 (including bank loans of
approximately HK$563,257,000 (note 32), other
loans of approximately HK$198,943,000 (note
32), bills payables of HK$607,783,000 (note 28),
amount due to an associate of approximately
HK$14,640,000 (note 21), amounts due to
shareholders of approximately HK$9,135,000 (note
29) and interest-free loans provided by certain
related parties of approximately HK$170,000 (note
30)) are due for repayment within one year from
the end of the reporting period or repayable on
demand. These conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of its business.

In order to improve the Group’s financial positions,
liquidity and cash flows, the directors of the
Company have adopted or in the process of
adopting the following measures:

(@ The Group has been taking stringent cost
controls in different areas, such as applying
cost control measures in the cost of sales and
administrative expenses;
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(b)

The Group has been liaising with certain
banks in relation to the renewal of its
bank loans amounting to approximately
Renmibi (“RMB") 434,740,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$494,947,000) as at
31 December 2018, which would be due
for repayment within twelve months from
the reporting date. Subsequent to the end
of the reporting period and up to the date
when the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issuance, the Group
has renewed certain bank borrowings
with an aggregate principal amount of
RMB 134,820,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$153,491,000) with a due date before
31 December 2019, and RMB70,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$79,694,000)
which will be due for repayment during the
period from January 2020 to March 2020,
respectively. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, taken into account the long
term relationships and also their understanding
from the liaison with the banks, the bank
borrowings with an aggregate principal
amount of RMB364,740,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$415,253,000) that will be
due for repayment within 12 months from
the reporting date can be renewed upon their
respective maturities;
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(c) The Group has entered into three loan
agreements with three shareholders of the
Company on 14 February 2018, in which
two of them are substantial shareholders of
the Company who directly/indirectly own
23.27% and 12.26% of the Company’s
shares respectively as of the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements.
Pursuant to the loan agreements, the three
shareholders agreed to provide unsecured and
interest-free revolving loans with an amount of
RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$683,100,000) for a term of three years. As
at 31 December 2018, aggregated amount of
RMB55,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$62,617,000) has been advanced to the
Group (note 29(b)); and

(d) The Group, from time to time, reviews its
investment projects and may adjust the
investment strategies in order to enhance the
cash flow position of the Group whenever it is
necessary.

Taking into account the above measures and after
assessing the Group’s current and future cash flow
positions, the directors of the Company are satisfied
that the Group will be able to meet their financial
obligations when they fall due. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying amounts of assets
to their estimated recoverable amounts, to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively, and
to provide for any further liabilities which may arise.
The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation 3.2

TESTHRBE®E)

mEEXE

These consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income (“OCI"”) are attributed to
the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group
transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any investment retained and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. The group’s share
of components previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is re-measured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recongised in consolidated income
statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES3HHEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwiill

33 XBEHREE(E)

(continued)

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised
in profit or loss or as a change to OCI. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKFRS 9, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position
(note 46), investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less impairment losses, unless the investments
are classified as held for sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwill

(continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in consolidated income statement as a
bargain purchase gain.

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units. Impairment is determined by assessing
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating units (group of cash-
generating units) is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit (group of cash-generating units) and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Business combination and goodwill
(continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

o the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

e  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

3.

3.3

3.4

—NF+_A=+—HILFE

1“5\

TR E
ERSOHREE(E)

MEESE TIREEEEA(K
MEeELEEMAR) BZEAM
R 2B 4% At B - Bl B
REFANPMEBEEETHE WA
HEERTAREHNEREE £
BEERT - SRR BERA
ﬁﬁi“‘%&ﬁﬁ% AR eEEBN
DEEHEBETE -

B 2 7

(R /NCIDE Y N/N Tk %HZE‘T%@%
(BREEBLER) AAFREE
%%U%Hﬂ’ﬁ‘ilﬁﬁﬁké EEE
B85 A O R A E M%Eﬂ
MEREHREREENZER
BERBSBENEN(AREFLZ
RREAREAEE N EREREY
R ERES)-

AR A (BRLER)ER
ZHRERSIBEENRER
EEER - NEEEE AR
FENBERAFEEEHIRES
SEEN B

e HEBURHMBERZA
Al 2k

e WHEHMERLHMELN
R K&

e AKREZBREREBEZ
R

MEEREREMRAR 2018FFH

85



86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decision of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

Investments in associates or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, less any
impairment losses, unless it is classified as held
for sale. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investees’ identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investees net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ OCI is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE3HEME4Z)
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Associates and joint ventures (continued) 3.5 BMEARREERE(E)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to zero and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associates or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in consolidated income
statement. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates or joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa,
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, when the
Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in consolidated income statement. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.

When investments in associates or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HKS$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary
item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item. The functional currencies
of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint venture and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollars. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expense
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recorded
in OCl and the cumulative balance is included in
exchange reserve in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in exchange reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Any goodwill
arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into HK$ at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition from 1 January 2018

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract
with a customer to transfer to the customer either
(@) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct; or (b) a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same
and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.

3. TESTHREE®)

3.6

3.7

NI ()

Rt ELMEY ZREEMER
W iR - Rt Bt AGRA#
anEHRFELFHE RNHEES
SNRIGH - BT E BN RIS E
SABRERNRLE RS BN
BN ERTER  WEBINRBE
AT B A SR SR EE A Y
BEEMBENRASENENR
FERAERRAEINEEHNEE
KB BRI R IE T -

AR RERM S /BIN
BRrzBenEREMAENZ
[EXGME BB T BINIBRR
FAREELEZRERERFN
ZINFEFIGIE RILE DT

WA TERR
B2 \F—A—HEZWK

REBEE LW B REERNE155% -
EAKENEENEETRAIE
(HER)EVSHREEEEERE
MEEMEFE]I BB TER
5 ) e AR AL

BRHEESETF A KT A
# o AEFEREQTRNEY
FMB (R —AEYHRE); 3K
(b)—ZRINT RN EW AR - %
FEYRRBABER LA A
R EE T = o

MEEREREMRAR 2018FFH

89



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue recognition from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

—  the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue recognition from 1 January 2018

(continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:—

i)

Sales of coal, trading of purchased coal and
ancillary materials

The Group is principally engaged in the
business of production and sale of coal and
trading of purchased coal. The Group also sells
ancillary materials to its customers. Revenue
are recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to and accepted by the customer at
the agreed predetermined location, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products.

Revenue from these sales is recognised
based on the price specified in the contract.
The Group typically receives certain deposit
on acceptance of coal sales orders, which
is negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers. These deposits are recognised as a
contract liability until the revenue recognised
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

No element of financing is deemed present as
the sales are made with a credit term from 30
to 180 days for the remaining balance based
on the invoice date, which is consistent with
market practice.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
accepted as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue recognition from 1 January 2018

(continued)

i)

Sales of building materials

The Group is also engaged in the business
of production and sale of building materials.
Revenue are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to and accepted by the
customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been transferred to the specific
location.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based
on the price specified in the contract. The
Group typically receives certain deposit on
acceptance of building materials orders, which
is negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers. These deposits are recognised as a
contract liability until the revenue recognised
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
accepted as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the
payment is due. No element of financing is
deemed presented as the sales are made as the
Group typically offers a credit term from 30 to
180 days for the remaining balance based on
the invoice date.

Certain of the Group’s building materials
contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the contract
period once milestones are reached. No
element of financing is deemed, as the
period between payment and transfer of the
associated goods is less than one year, which
the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any
significant financing component.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue recognition from 1 January 2018

(continued)

i)

iii)

Sales of building materials (continued)

Certain major building material contracts
also include a retention period for 1% to
16% of the contract value, which is entitled
by the Group subject to the Group’s work
satisfactorily passing inspection and is
consistent with market practice. This amount
is included in contract assets until the end of
the retention period as the Group’s entitlement
to this final payment is conditional on the
Group's work satisfactorily passing inspection.

Interest income

Accounting policy of interest income is stated
the section headed Amortised cost and interest
income in note 3.14.

Revenue recognition prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale
of goods, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

i)

ii)

Sales of coal, trading of purchased coal and
ancillary materials

Revenue from sale of coal, ancillary materials
and consumable tools and trading of
purchased coal are recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customers. This is usually taken as the time
when goods are delivered and customer has
accepted the goods.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on time-proportion
basis on the principal outstanding using
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill and
mining rights)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of two years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent impairment
losses. Intangible assets are tested for impairment
as described below in note 3.12. Amortisation
commences when intangible assets are available for
use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Intangible assets (other than goodwill and
mining rights) (continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

All intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over 5 to 10 years.

3.10 Mining rights

3.11

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified impairment losses
and are amortised using units-of-production method
over the proved and probable reserves of the coal
mines.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease,
and other items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress (“CIP"), are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any identified impairment losses. The cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the
working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Buildings and mining The shorter of the lease terms and
structures 5% per annum

Plant and machineries 4% to 33% per annum

Mining related machinery  10% to 20% per annum
and equipment

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 20% per annum
equipment

Leasehold improvement  The shorter of the lease terms and
10% to 20% per annum

Motor vehicles 10% to 25% per annum

The asset’s estimated residual value, depreciation
method and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs
and maintenance are charged to consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

CIP, which mainly represents construction on
buildings and mining structures, is stated at
cost less any identified impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs incurred during the periods
of construction, installation and testing. No
depreciation is provided on CIP. CIP is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when the construction is completed and
the asset is ready for use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE3HEME4Z)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.12 FEREE ZRE

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life or those not yet available for
use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
assets carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those of other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit (“CGU")).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those CGUs
that are expected to benefit from synergies of the
related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwiill
is monitored for internal management purpose.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

(continued)

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially
to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the CGUs, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal, or value-in-use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

3.13 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (note
3.8). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES3HHEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Leasing (continued) 3.13HE(E)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost
of acquiring land held under operating leases,
are recognised as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period of which they are incurred. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight line basis.

The Group as lessor

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on the nature
of the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over
the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

3.14 Financial instruments

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for accounts and
bills receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (that do not have
significant financing components) which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as other
income.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial
application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in OCI
on initial recognition/as at date of initial application
of HKFRS 9 if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 (revised) Business Combinations applies.

3.

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

(continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not a financial
guarantee contract of designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Financial assets are recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

Accounting policy of impairment of financial
assets measured at amortised cost is stated in
note 3.15.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the fair value reserve under other reserves;
and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(continued)

(ii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
(continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in
the other income and gains in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES3HHEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued) 314 &¢mITAE(E)

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an equity investments
designated at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &2

3.

_pff;e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank and
other loans, accounts and bills payables, other
payables, accruals and deposit received, amount
due to an associate and amounts due to and loans
from shareholders.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in consolidated income
statement.

(i)  Borrowings

Borrowings, which include bank and other
loans and loans from shareholders, are
recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—N\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

(i) Accounts and bills payables/other payables,
accruals and deposit received/amount due to
an associate/amounts due to shareholders.

These are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments prior to 1 January 2018

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified, at
initial recognition, into loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The subsequent
measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:—
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments prior to 1 January 2018

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method,
less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period.

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES3HHEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued) 314 &¢mITAE(E)

Financial instruments prior to 1 January 2018
(continued)

Financial liabilities

The accounting policy of classification and
measurement of financial liabilities has no change
under the application of HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9.
Please refer to above accounting policy in regarding
to financial liabilities.

3.15 Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including accounts and bills
receivables, contract assets and deposits and other
receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
accounts and bills receivables and contract assets
without significant financing component. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets from 1 January

2018 (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

— significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—N\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

SHBERBEE)

3.1 SREERMBE(E
TREERBE(BE-_ZT—N\F

Impairment of financial assets from 1 January

2018 (continued) —A—B8)(&)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued) () EERRBAIEEMNE)
—  existing or forecast adverse changes - TEHEBREBAR
in business, financial or economic ITEEEE TR

conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets from 1 January

2018 (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets from 1 January

2018 (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

— it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of accounts and bills receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets from 1 January

2018 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are
grouped based on:

— Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s accounts and bills receivables
together with contract assets and
deposits and other receivables are each
assessed as a separate group.);

- Past-due status;

- Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

—  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of accounts and
bills receivables, contract assets and deposits
and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—N\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

B BRRBE#)

3.15 €M EERME(E&

Impairment of financial assets prior to 1 January
2018

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

—  Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets prior to 1 January

2018 (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial assets original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The
amount of loss is recognised in consolidated
income statement of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that
it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment
is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in consolidated income statement
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale equity investment that
is carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_—ZT—NF+_-_H=1—HIFEF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE3HEME4Z)
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Inventories 3.16 &

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Inventories comprise coal, spare
parts and consumable store for trading and own
consumption purposes. Costs of coal is determined
using weighted average basis whereas costs of spare
parts and consumables are stated at first-in, first-
out or weighted average basis as appropriate, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprise direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

3.17 Income taxes

Income tax represents the sum of current and
deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in OCl or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:—

e when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—N\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE3HEME4Z)
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued) 3.17 FRE% (&)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

o When the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme as specified by
the local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—N\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES3HHEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Employee benefits (continued) .18 BEREFI(E&)

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and its directors.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in consolidated income statement with
a corresponding credit to share option reserve. If
vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply,
the expense is allocated over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number
of share options expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there
is any indication that the number of share options
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. No
adjustment to expense recognised in prior periods is
made if fewer share options ultimately are exercised
than originally vested.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs up to the nominal value of the share issued
are reallocated to share capital with any excess
being recorded as share premium. When the vested
share options are lapsed, forfeited or still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained
profits.
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3.

i#f—EE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly
liguid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

3.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

3.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE3HEME4Z)
POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

3.21 BERIREE(E)

(continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts from 1 January
2018

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

—  the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model as described in note
3.15; and

—  the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.

Financial guarantee contracts prior to 1 January
2018

Financial guarantee contracts Financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group are initially measured
at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and

—  the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segment and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs.

3.23 Provision for reclamation obligations

The Group is required to make payments for
reclamation of the land after the underground
sites have been mined. Provision for reclamation
obligation is required when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
the directors’ best estimation of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period, and are discounted to present
value where the effect is material.

3.24 Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group's consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Fair value measurement (continued)

The fair value measurement of the Group's
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised. The levels are defined
as follows:
Level 1: fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

Level 2:  fair values measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3:  fair values measured using significant

unobservable input.

The classification of an item into the above levels
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used
that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the items above, please refer
to the applicable notes.

3.25 Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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Bl £

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.25 Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.
However, other than the judgement made by the
directors in respect of going concern as disclosed in note
3.1 above, the estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(i) Depreciation

Other than CIP, the Group depreciates property,
plant and equipment using straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives ranging between 3
to 25 years, starting from the date on which the
assets are ready for productive use. The estimated
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group's
property, plant and equipment. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment, other than
CIP, as at 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$393,650,000 (2017: approximately
HK$239,133,000). Further details are disclosed in
note 15.

(ii) Amortisation of mining rights

The Group amortises its mining rights using a
units-of-production method, utilising only proved
and probable coal reserves as the depletion
base. The estimated coal reserves and the related
future economic benefits were estimated by the
directors of the Company. Accounting policy on
mining rights is set out in note 3.10. The carrying
amount of mining rights as at 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$293,917,000 (2017:
approximately HK$326,535,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)

(iii) Provision of ECL for accounts and bills
receivables, contract assets and deposits
and other receivables

The Group estimated the amounts of ECL on these
types of receivables/assets based on (i) market
borrowing rates for these debts grouped based on
their risks and characteristics, less risk-free rate;
and (i) the expected settlement dates taking into
amount for the Group’s historical experience in
relation to these types of receivables/assets. The
Group also takes into account forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the estimated default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, accounts
and bills receivables and contract assets which are
significant and credit impaired and deposits and
other receivables are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's accounts and bills receivables, contract
assets and deposits and other receivables are

disclosed in note 43(a).

The impairment loss of (1) accounts and bills
receivables, (2) contract assets, and (3) deposits and
other receivables provided during the year ended 31
December 2018 were approximately HK$9,156,000
(2017: Nil), approximately HK$470,000 (2017:
Nil) and Nil (2017: approximately HK$455,000)
respectively. Further details are disclosed in note

43(a).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that non-financial assets with
definite lives may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 3.12. In assessing whether
there is any indication that non-financial assets may
be impaired, the Group considers indications from
both internal and external sources of information
such as evidence of obsolescence or decline in
economic performance of the assets, changes in
market conditions and economic environment.
These assessments are subjective and require
management’s judgements and estimations.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$5,693,000 (2017:
approximately HK$15,902,000) was recognised by
the Group and details of this impairment are set in
notes 15 and 19.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
impairment loss on mining rights of approximately
HK$8,544,000 (2017: approximately
HK$11,830,000) was recognised by the Group and
details of this impairment are set out in notes 18
and 19.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(v)

(vi)

Provision for reclamation obligations

The provision is reviewed regularly to verify that it
properly reflects the remaining obligation arising
from current and past mining activities. Provision
for land reclamation is determined by management
based on their best estimates of the current and
future costs, latest government policies and past
experiences. The carrying amount of provision
for reclamation obligations as at 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$100,164,000 (2017:
approximately HK$99,480,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 31.

Management determined that the probability
to make payment of such liability within twelve
months after the reporting period is remote taking
into account the industry practice and the Group’s
scenario, facts and circumstances. However,
management also considered that the relevant
government authorities have the sole discretion to
request payment of such liability. As the Group does
not have unconditional right to defer settlement
of such liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, accordingly, the provision
for reclamation obligations is classified as current
liabilities in accordance with HKAS 1 (Revised).

Central pension scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in PRC are
required to contribute certain percentage on
their payroll costs for employees to the central
pension scheme. However, the implementation
and settlement of the contribution to the central
pension scheme varies among various Social Security
Bureaus in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not
finalised its contribution calculation and payments
with the local Social Security Bureau in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the contribution.
The Group recognised the contribution based on
management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE_F—/\F+_HA=1—HIE%

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive
directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”)
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the Executive Directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
is engaged in business activities from which the Group
may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified
on the basis of the internal management reporting
information that is provided to and regularly reviewed
by the Executive Directors in order to allocate resources
and assess performance of the segment. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Executive Directors
determined that the Group had only one operating and
reportable segment under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments,
which is Coal Business. On 3 January 2018, the Group
completed the acquisition of subsidiaries which are
principally engaged in production and sale of building
materials (note 38). After the acquisition, the Executive
Directors have determined that the Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Production and sale of coal
and trading of purchased coal

o Coal Business -

e Building Materials -
Business

Production and sale of building
materials

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is
adjusted profit/(loss) before income tax expense. Items
not specifically attributable to individual segments, such
as share of results of associates and a joint venture,
finance costs, unallocated head office and corporate
expenses are further adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, prepaid
land lease payments, mining rights, other intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include accounts and
bills payables, other payables and accruals attributable
to activities of the individual segments, provision for
reclamation obligations and deposit received.

2 EER
AEBRBEHARAARBANTES
(TBITES ) 2®R < N5 E RHE
EERENHERERDOBER  %F
MBERDIHATESRENEER
ERKEEXRBDMERIZFFES
DEMERBZEE -ARTEZTE2RL
NEBHEER 2 EB D RIIRAEE
ZEBEmMMRBEIARIRE 7 o

KEDHEAEBE SRS &
EXERIT 2¥BESH 2EKEBD - I
RAMERREEN ZEEBTELE
SE - MATESTHERMEHR
NERE IR TR EE R IA D BB TR K Fh
DERB-BE_TE—+F+_A
S+—HULEFE RTESEELAS
EREESMEHRELERFHR 4L E
SESER — AL KA HE o3 8
BRErEHL - R-ZE—N\NE—H=H"
REBTRBRBUREEMEERIEE
BB A Bl (B 5E38) e MUk B 2 1%
WITEERALREBRIED M B R
HEBFESRMLE R A HE DI M
I

s RREH - RREERHEMU
EBARRKE S
s EMEK - BUVAEEREE

BELEEN (BR)EANAER
R FAS BL R S Al 2 A TR (8
1B)-WEIERE D AEIEHIRE - 10
BHBERARAERAREE MK
ER ROEBHREXRAHE—
SHITHE -

DHBERBEMAEEANEE BANL
WHERR KEE HuETEE
MRBEE HEMRREERIN-
DHMBEREZ D EAB RGN EN
RRERER EMENRENESE
A -HAZRGRERESRIZS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating and
reportable segments with reference to sales generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by those

segments.

DRVER(#)
WEREHTELERSHHEE
HEBRBRZ TSR TEERA

HEDE -

(a) Segment revenue and results (a) PBURERFEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s AT R e #EaR 2 IR R DA R 48
disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ERAERD I EEE HKE
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and BEEH 2 WD DT
results from operating and reportable segments:
Building
Coal Materials
Business Business Total
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
1w T EMEK HEt
TERT FERT FHET
For the year ended BE-ZE-N\HF
31 December 2018 +=A=+-—H
LHFEE
Disaggregated by timing % Uz #E 2
of revenue recognition AR EiNs)
Point in time A F) 2 763,432 198,008 961,440
Revenue from HNER P W A
external customers 763,432 198,008 961,440
Segment (loss)/profit D (B8 & F (40,364) 14,886 (25,478)
Reversal of provision for — #[E # J R K& 51 2
central pension scheme B {& 23,189 1,344 24,533
Depreciation P& M BH
and amortisation (44,649) (23,885) (68,534)
Net reversal of/ EREEN
(impairment BREEZER
loss) on financial OREEE) F58
and contract assets 2,412 (12,038) (9,626)
Impairment loss on I ER G
property, plant ZREEE
and equipment (5,693) - (5,693)
Impairment loss on KRIEHE 2 RIERE
mining rights (8,544) - (8,544)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHERE)
(a) Segment revenue and results (continued) (a) DHUMEREE(E)
Building
Coal Materials
Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R ET BMER st
TAT FAT FAT
For the year ended BE-_ZT—+tHF
31 December 2017 +=HA=+—8
LLFE
Revenue from external B INEE B U 2
customers 529,884 - 529,884
Segment loss o EBEE (134,632) - (134,632)

Reversal of provision for  #[E fp J R K& 51 2

central pension scheme 7 {5 36,915 - 36,915
Depreciation and P& M iH
amortisation (26,078) - (26,078)
Net impairment loss on & @b & E 2 B EE 18
financial assets FEE (455) = (455)
Impairment loss on M- BENERE 2
property, plant and BEERE
equipment (15,902) - (15,902)
Impairment loss on mining FEIEAE 2 J& (B &5 18
rights (11,830) - (11,830)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
FExT FHETT
Reconciliation of segment DEWREFREEL R
profit or loss:
Reportable segment loss from REAEBINEEZFH
the Group's external customers S EEE (25,478) (134,632)
Share of results of associates FE(R B & N R34 (12,826) (1,814)
Share of results of a joint venture  JE{f— A B DEEE 51 31
Finance costs 8 7% & A (101,514) (42,336)
Unallocated head office ROBAILRAEERSE
and corporate expenses (15,126) (17,863)
Loss before income tax B P15 %t Al ES 1B (154,893) (196,614)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

D EBER ()
(b) PMWEEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets AT RIREE R HREHEE D

and liabilities by operating and reportable segments: MAEBEENRBEDNT
Building
Coal Materials
Business Business Total
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1Rk T EmER 5t
AT FAT FAT
At 31 December 2018 R==
+=A=t-H
Segment assets PEEE 1,354,909 549,715 1,904,624
Additions to non-current FE R IER B D =
segment assets during BENE
the year 10,865 300,622 311,487
Segment liabilities PWEE (1,215,714) (94,028)  (1,309,742)
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZT—t#F
t=A=+-8
Segment assets PTHEE 1,796,110 - 1,796,110
Additions to non-current S N IERED
segment assets during BEENE
the year 4,921 - 4,921
Segment liabilities PWEE (1,362,440) - (1,362,440)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE2-NE —E L F
FET F& T
Reconciliation of segment assets: & E IR :
Reportable segment assets AmEDEEE 1,904,624 1,796,110
Interests in associates REEE R A 2w 100,046 101,938
Interest in a joint venture R—ReErE2#ER 5,973 6,248
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE S mEE - 710
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEFAEM 2 E R
e EE 682 -
Tax recoverable A] Y =] 5 T8 9,433 9,412
Restricted bank deposits ZRHAEITER 1,621 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeNESZEER 35,789 170,878
Unallocated corporate assets RKOBLEEEE 12,734 1,123
Consolidated total assets SEEERE 2,070,902 2,086,419
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z _—F

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—NF+-A=+—HIFE

TEER(#)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) oHEEREE(E)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+tF
FE T FHBIT
Reconciliation of segment DEEEHER:
liabilities:
Reportable segment liabilities RESHEE 1,309,742 1,362,440
Amount due to an associate &S — R B A R F0E 14,640 99,589
Amounts due to and loans from FENRRERIE R K ERE
shareholders B3 63,626 41,097
Bank and other loans RITREMER 840,564 646,900
Deferred tax liabilities FEAEFIBEE 489 -
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao EEERE 5,308 12,981
Consolidated total liabilities ZEEAERTE 2,234,369 2,163,007
Geographical information (0 HEEFR

(c)

The Group's revenue from external customers is
all derived from the PRC and most of its non-
current assets are located in the PRC. The Company
is an investment holding company incorporated
in Bermuda, in where the Group does not have
any activities. The Group has the majority of its
operations and workforce in the PRC, and therefore,
the PRC is considered as the Group's country of
domicile for the purpose of disclosures as required
by HKFRS 8.

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or
the goods were delivered. The geographical location
of the non-current assets is based on the location of
assets.

AEERBINBEF 2 WL 2 H
KEFE MEABOHIFRBE
ERNRAE - RARBR— WFE
REEMK L 2 REZER A A
AN S B & 3 3 S AT (7] R 75 o
AEEZEREHRETHUR
FE - HIRBEMERE LR
8 HE  MEERMME - P
BRRAANEE 2 FIERER -

BEF ZFEi R iR e AR s
NEmzEME SERBEE
ZFESRZEEMEME
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHERE)
(d) Information about major customers d) EEXEEFEFZ2ER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of KEBERMAEBEAKZ BB
the total revenue of the Group. 10% MR 2 W o
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
THET FET
Customer A’ xR 357,446 75,228
Customer B’ BEE L 249,974 412,543
Customer C' ZEERA! 99,375 N/A i A 2
1 Revenue from Coal Business 1 W g 2R B R IR T
Z Revenue from this customer contributing less than 2 REZE-_ZE—+tF+ =8
10% of the total revenue during the year ended 31 =t HIFERKELEFH
December 2017 W B W ) B BHME R 10%
6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 6. WEREMKARBLE
GAINS
Revenue represents the income arising from the Group’s WHEAEETFEE£ER(BRE)ERE
principal activities which include (i) production and sale ERME  (VEAKEKRES &)
of coal; (ii) trading of purchased coal; and (iii) production MEEREE)EAZIRA -
and sale of building materials.
Revenue and other income and gains recognised during FERIER T WS N H U AR U5
the year are as follows: T
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 6. WEREMBKARBRDRE)

GAINS (continued)

2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —FT—+tF
FHET FET
Revenue from contract with ERMBHREERFISHRE

customers within the scope of REFHNEHNRA &R

HKFRS 15, types of goods: EE:

Production and sale of coal BREENEE 324,515 117,987
Trading of purchased coal BAKKES 438,917 411,897
Production and sale of building EMEENEE

materials 198,008 =

961,440 529,884
Gross (loss)/profit derived from: RBELUTFEHN (E8),
ER:
Production and sale of coal HREEREE (4,712) (100,291)
Trading of purchased coal BAKRRKES (330) (198)
Production and sale of building BMEEREE
materials 64,582 =
59,540 (100,489)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —F—+tF
FET FET
Other income and gains Ht ARER
Bank interest income HRITH E A 2,296 3,987
Discount at inception of deposit BWiRE 2 VR ITRE

received (note 30(c)) (Kt#£30(c)) 2,458 -
Government subsidies (note) BT AL (K7 aE) 16,372 -
Gain on bargain purchase arising from WHENB AR ELS 2 EZEBEE

acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) K152 (H#f338) 2,629 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARNSE= (MiE14)

(note 14) 62 -
Rental income el A 1,210 =
Reversal of provision for central B[O IR K 52| B s

pension scheme 24,533 36,915
Others Hih 6,183 250

55,743 41,152
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales of coal
and building materials contracts that regarding the
performance obligation that has an original expected
duration of one year or less, the Group does not make
disclosure in accordance with paragraph 120 of HKFRS
15, that is the aggregate amount of the transaction
price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of the end of the
reporting period and an explanation of when the Group
expects to recongised as revenue.

Note: The Group received unconditional subsidies from local
government during the year as recognition of the Group’s
sale of building materials which considered as the
environmental-friendly products in the PRC.

R HABBRAR G E)

REEBEDKEBTBREERFE 155
FI2NENATEEZTARSRE
HETRER —FHATRBEHAR
ZHERRKEEMEY  AEETE
RRBE BV BEHREEAFE1555120
BEE IRBRERRIBEEHEAE
TP RMABIT) ZBHEEZE
R 558 R AN B TB B RE R AR A 2 B Rl
2R

MaE: FR AKEESEHBHNE
R (ERRAAREERF
BHERRAIRREMEM -

FINANCE COSTS MBER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —FE—tF
FExT FHETT
An analysis of finance costs is as TIEERZMMAT:
follows:
Unwinding of imputed interest on REBRERZ HEF B [0 #
loans from shareholders (Kta£29(b))
(note 29(b)) 8,750 -
Unwinding of imputed interest on B iR & 2 4 E S
deposit received (note 30(c)) (Ktz£30(c)) 72 -
Interests on bank and other loans RITREMERZMERAX 60,527 39,976
Bank charges on discounted EMRERER ZRITIKE
bills receivable 32,165 2,360
101,514 42,336
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

8.

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

BR AT 1S Bl Al 5 18
AT BLAT SR E 0

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F T+
FERT FH&T
Amortisation of mining rights** AR (fYaE18)
(note 18) 7,805 3,205
Amortisation of other intangible HEMEp & E#E
assets** (note 20) (K1aE20) 80 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE T 070 & IR i >
payments** (note 16) (Kra16) 1,569 -
Auditor's remuneration** ZE RN & **
— Auditor services —BZ R 1,030 875
— Non-audit services — BB 360 915
Cost of inventories recognised as HRAER I 2 FE KA
expenses? 895,813 628,028
Write-down of inventories included in 5t AT & Bk 24N 2 17 & Hif ik
cost of inventories 56 407
Depreciation* (note 15) W&~ (Mfit15) 59,332 22,988
Employee benefits expense (including EERAHX (BEEEEHH)
directors’ remuneration) (note 11) (Ktaz11) 206,528 98,318
Loss on disposals of property, plant  HEWX - HENEZE 2 EE
and equipment, net FE 95 2,466
Minimum lease payments under BELTH BFERBAEREZ
operating leases on land, buildings KEHEE TREREE
and office equipment** INE Sl 1,593 1,363
Provision for reclamation obligations — FI2R & R # & (H15131)
(note 31) 6,087 2,345
Research expenses R 1,963 =

* Depreciation of approximately HK$50,626,000 (2017:
approximately HK$20,688,000), HK$8,607,000 (2017:
approximately HK$2,300,000) and HK$99,000 (2017: Nil)
has been included in cost of sales, administrative expenses
and selling and distribution expenses respectively.

** Included in administrative expenses in the consolidated

income statement.

w Cost of inventories included approximately
HK$221,513,000 (2017: approximately HK$97,527,000)
relating to employee benefits expense and depreciation
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these

types of expenses.

* %

#950,626,0008 7T (=T —+tF : 49
20,688,000/ 70) + 8,607,000/ J©
(=—Z—+%F : 492,300,000/87C) &
99,000 L (ZE—tF &) 2
EEDRIGTASEERA  1THAX
MEERD AL -

EFf AR RERNITHRAXA -

FERABIELEES®BAAS RIT
EHBEr221,513,0008 T (=&
— 5 : 497,527,000 7T) - B
SENEFARSEZERIERIR
X EBEENRBASE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &

E-F-N\Fr=A=tALEE

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in Bermuda and the BVI (2017: Nil).

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the year
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group has
tax losses brought forward from previous years (2017:
Nil).

Corporate income tax arising from operations in the
PRC was calculated at the statutory income tax rate of
25% (2017: 25%) of the estimated assessable profits as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
rules and regulations in the PRC. No corporate income
tax arising from operations in the PRC has been provided
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as the Group did
not generate any estimated assessable profits during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

FrEHiE %

BRERABELHE((XBELEH
EDOBAIRER  AEBRARE
MEBRELHE B AN MAEH
(ZT—+F : #)o

ERAEEFANEFERAE KA
B8 MFE AL ERL BB MEHRER
EUMBBRRIEHBH (T L5
o

BIEPEAEREAT SRR R RAE - &
Bl L REREE 2 DEMSRIIRMG
STERBRF 2R EFTBS R E25%
(ZTE—+F : 25%):t 8 -HBHE_FT
—+t&E+-_A=+—HIEE #HR
ANEE W EE TG ERB S
M BwEHEE—T—+tF+_A=1+—
ALFETERTRESEE 2%
FTiSRistie s -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F S S
FExT FHETT
Current tax - PRC corporate BB E - B EFRBH
income tax
— Current year —KREFEE 375 -
Deferred tax BELERIEER
— Current year (note 34) —AREE (Kat34) (2,636) -
Income tax credit PG % (2,261) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

A reconciliation between income tax credit to loss before
income tax at applicable tax rates is as follows:

FrEBiE % (&)
9B 5 S0 19 B AT AR
Bik 2 HIRIT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—LtF
FExT FHET
Loss before income tax BRET1S RIS B (154,893) (196,614)
Tax on loss before income tax, RHBEER EREEARE
calculated at the applicable rates in st E GBS AIERZ
the tax jurisdictions concerned i I8 (35,479) (45,762)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 78] 0153 5 & 2 B 185 15,887 27,986
Tax effect of deductible temporary AER TR EEED
differences not recognised M2 (537) (249)
Tax losses not recognised REERTIEE 21,731 18,067
Effect of tax reduction (note) A2 7B (M) (4,046) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised /) FB 38 1 7R 7 2 51 18 &5 18
tax losses (32) (42)
Under-provision in respect of prior year i8 F 4 & & 1~ 2 215 -
Income tax credit FrigHiE = (2,261) -

As the associates and the joint venture did not generate
any assessable profits during the year, no income tax
expense arising from their operations has been provided
for the year (2017: Nil). There is no share of income tax
expense attributable to associates and a joint venture
(2017: Nil).

Note:

Pursuant to relevant pronouncement issued by the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC, Xingan (as defined
in note 14), the newly acquired subsidiary, is eligible to
reduce its assessable profit by 10% of the revenue generated
from the sales of certain building material products, for tax
reporting purpose. The list of approved building material
products is issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC and National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC.

HRZFHE N RZAERERNTF
A EE A EAERTE A - I &
A FEBEETMMBEHRAS(Z
T—tF: B) ITEFBNZFHE
RANZAEEENMERASNE
(ZF—+%F : #|)-

B &

REBRBGRBEM 2 HEAZH K
BHBARRZ (EXRMWFE14)BER
REHER TEMEMELEZ WamER
i3 M 1K 10% - R AR R 3k B A - &
EREMEmBELRTEMEE BXR
BEERMBERBE RN ERESRM -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

10. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 10.
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

RRAERABRGEBRER

AREEBEAREZERERR#E
BRTRIAT BB E

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —E—tF
FTERT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to the ~ FRNFTEERERREEEE
owners of the Company for the KABIHAE AEEFERNEE
purpose of basic and diluted loss per
share (142,747) (178,858)
2018 2017
Number of Number of
Shares shares
‘000 ‘000
—E-N\F —ET—LF
RHEE gny- 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary fB AT EEAREA N #EEEZ
shares in issue for the purpose of BT EBEREE NEFH
basic and diluted loss per share 1,038,379 712,674

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and
therefore, the amount of diluted loss per share is same as
the amount of basic loss per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

1. EERIRX(BREEHNE)

REMUNERATION)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —T—+F
FTET F# T
Short-term benefits: EEER
Fees, salaries, allowances and other #1442 R EH b
benefits in kind B 149,252 71,921
Post-employment benefits: BER 212 7 -
Retirement benefit scheme RREFFTEIE R (ERE
contributions (defined HIRETE))
contribution plans) 57,276 26,397
206,528 98,318

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2017: Nil).

R-E—N\E+=A=+—0 A%
8010 PR AR K BB A 2 3t
B2 RGBT — L
)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERFTETHAEME
REMUNERATION

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section
383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, were

ENHENEZTME(RELTARR
NEB R EERGIZE383(1)a) ~ (b) (0
ROEAR AR (REBEEENmEFR)
MPIE2B 2 RE TARE)WAT ¢

as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other benefit
benefits in scheme
Fees kind  contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIKER
ok HeRER TEIMR @zt
TERT TERT TER TER
For the year ended BE-Z-N\%
31 December 2018 +tZA=+-BLEE
Executive directors ITEE
Mr. Dong Cunling EFREE - 1,042 - 1,042
Mr. Yang Hua' BELE - 26 - 26
Mr. Sun Shusheng'-® BREERLES - 653 - 653
Mr. Chen Xu' R LA - 26 - 26
Mr. Li Xiangfei ("M Li")>  ZAREE ([Fh&E])® - 7 - 7
Mr. Wu Jiahong? MRS E3 - 450 14 464
Mr. Zhang Yi¢ KRR - 11 - 11
Mr. Zhou Guangwen BEX L. - 300 - 300
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Li Chunyan FEERE 300 - - 300
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Dr. Chen Renbao BRECEEL 150 - - 150
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui? BB 42 69 - - 69
Mr. Ma Wai Tong? SEE LS 45 - - 45
Mr. Ma Yueyong SEERLE 150 - - 150
714 2,515 14 3,243

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

- — &
25y

12. EERTETHAEMES (&)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other benefit
benefits in scheme
Fees kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RINER
ik He R ATEIHR @i
TAET TEL TETL TEL
For the year ended BE-T—t51+=H
31 December 2017 =t+—BIEE
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Dong Cunling ERIKRELE - 1,038 = 1,038
Mr. Yang Hua' BELAE - 247 7 254
Mr. Chen Xu' BRI JE AT - 240 = 240
Mr. Wu Jiahong? I SR E = 650 18 668
Mr. Zhou Guangwen BREX L% - 300 - 300
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Li Chunyan FEERE 300 - - 300
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Dr. Chen Renbao BRLCEEL 150 - - 150
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui2 BRI L 2 150 - - 150
Mr. Ma Yueyong SEERAE 150 - - 150
750 2,475 25 3,250

! Mr. Yang Hua and Mr. Chen Xu resigned as executive
directors of the Company with effect from 8 February
2018. Mr. Yang Hua remained as chief executive of the
Company until 31 December 2018. Mr. Sun Shusheng was
appointed as the chief executive of the Company with
effect from 1 January 2019.

Z Mr. Jiang Xiaohui resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 15 June 2018.

3 Mr. Wu lJiahong resigned as executive director of the
Company with effect from 14 September 2018.

& Mr. Zhang Yi was appointed as executive director of the
Company with effect from 8 February 2018.

2 Mr. Li and Mr. Sun Shusheng were appointed as executive

directors of the Company with effect from 15 June 2018.

& Mr. Ma Wai Tong was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 14
September 2018.

BEEERRBAEENR -E—N\E
“ANBBEARBMITEE B
FEEENMABRARRTHRER BEE
—E-—N\F+-_A=+—H -%=
EEER_T—NF—A—BHEZ
EABRRRITHRER -
BEELtER-_E—-\E~NATH
HEEARDRRBYIERNITES -
BRRAEER-_ZE—N\FEALATE
HETARRMITES-
RREER-_ZE—N\NF_A/\BE
ZEANTES-
TEERNBEARER-_T—N\EF
NATHBREZREARARNITE
%0
EREEEAEAR-_ZT—N\FENLATHT
HERTAKRRARBIYIFNAITE
%0
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

12.

13.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or chief executive as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2017: Nil).

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors or chief executive in respect of their services to
the Group (2017: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director
or chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2017: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three (2017: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 12. The emoluments paid or payable
to the remaining two (2017: one) individuals, during the
year were as follows:

12.

13.

ESERFETHRAEME(E)

FR AKERESNTESHERTT
A B R B2 1E R INAA 5 B 38
BINAANRER B8 2 RN SRR 2
ME(CT—tF: &)

FR TEJLEFAEBRITHRARR
AEBRERBMHELBEREZSF
—tF : E)o

FR UEITVERNERESTLTE
TTBABHREXRBRETAHEH
ZH(ZF—tF : ®)-

IEREFATIREREERE
=

FR AEBLAERSFALERE=
2 ZE—EF OREF FFZ
WEERME1225 2 DT RIR < F
NENKENSG TR (25
—B)ALTMET

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—+tF
FET THTT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 285 & H it B9 A58
in kind 2,518 2,080

Retirement benefit scheme IRRAR AT B 3k

contributions 36 18
2,554 2,098

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining two
(2017: one) individuals with the highest emoluments
were within the following bands:

13. EBEHEALTREREEE

[EAC Y

ENKENBRTME(ZE—tF:
—H)EEFATZME N FUATE
:

2018 2017
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
—E-NEF —E—tF
A A
Emolument band B &5 &
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 ¢ = 2,500,000
P& T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2017: Nil).

During the year, no share options were granted to the
five highest paid individuals in respect of their services to
the Group (2017: Nil).

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management were within the following bands:

FR AEEYERADERSHAL
AR & VE A INA S B B FE
AR ES 7 REh KB R BN 2 78
B(ZF—t%F E)

FR ABBRABRSFALA/LE
BEHREMEOBRE(ZT—t
)

B SRERERE 2N
FIATHE

2018 2017
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
—E-N\F —E—tF
A A
Emolument band i <& & [E]

Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 12 8

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7¢ = 1,500,000
BT 1 1

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £ 2,500,000
BT 1 1

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RRBRAR2RE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had R—_E—NFER-_ZE—tF+_H
direct and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: =t+—8 ' AXAFRNATHBATE
B MEEER
Percentage of ownership  Place of
Place of Issued and interest held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company as at 31 and principal
Name type of legal entity capital December activities
ANRFEHEEA
AP B A 4 B R BRTR EEEDML ReEwHR
2% EEERERY BERRA R+=A=+-H TEXH
2018 2017
“E-N\f Z—ZT—+F
% %
Directly held
BEEBE
(M Beat World Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100 100 Management service
liability company in Hong Kong
IR BRARE B BEREMERA BT 100 100 REBRSERES
(2) Clear Interest Limited (“CIL") BVI, limited liability company United States 100 100 Investment holding in
Dollars ("US$") the PRC
200
RERARE FREAAF 200% 7T 100 100 RABERFRERK
3) Star Central Limited BV, limited liability company Us$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Hong Kong
ABRAES AREMERA (E 100 100 REBRSREER
(4) Rosan Clean Energy Development  Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 - 51 Investment holding in
Company Limited (“Rosan Clean liability company Hong Kong
Energy") (note)
BEERERERERAR B BEREMERA 10,0007% 70 - 51 REBREREZR
(TRERRER]) (M)
(5)  Xinfa Investments Limited BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100 100 Investment holding in
("Xinfa") Hong Kong
HEREERAA ([H%]) EBRAHES ERAEAA (E 100 100 REERZREER
(6) Bermnsa Limited BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100 100 Management service
in Hong Kong
RERELHE FREEAF (E 100 100 REBREEERE
) Goal Getter Ventures Limited BVI, limited liability company US$50,000 100 - Investment holding in
("Goal Getter”) (note 38) the PRC
HERAREBRAA EBRAHES ERAEAA 50,000t 100 - RAEREREZR
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &

-~ — =&
4T — =

E—\F+_A=+—HIFE

14. RMB AR ZRE (&)

Percentage of ownership  Place of
Place of Issued and interest held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company as at 31 and principal
Name type of legal entity capital December activities
ERAREEEA
1R AR L itk B R BRTR BEEOH LEhER
2% ERERED BRERE Rt=A=+-H TEXH
2018 2017
—E-N\E T LF
% %
Indirectly held
BiEEs
8) Popular Sky Coal Industrial Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100 100 Investment holding in
liability company the PRC
EREEERDA & BEREERA BT 100 100 REERESREER
9) Hong Kong Zhongyuan Energy Co., Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Limited liability company the PRC
BERRERERAA A AREEAH VBT 100 100 RABERFREZR
(10)  Hong Kong Zhongzhou Energy Co., Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Limited liability company the PRC
BEEMERERAE BE BERELERA 1T 100 100 RAPEREREER
(11)  Highlink Investments Limited BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Hong Kong
ABRAES AREMERA (E 100 100 REBRFREER
(12)  Alive Investments Limited BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Hong Kong
EBRAHES ERAEAA (E 100 100 REBREREER
(13)  Dynamic Coal Company Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100 100 Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
s YN A AREEAH VBT 100 100 REBREREREKR
(14)  Dynamic Energy Development PRC, wholly foreign- owned HK$20,000,000 100 100 Investment holding in
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* limited liability company the PRC
ABERRE (RIDBRRE  HE HEBEERAF 20,000,000 75 100 100 FEREREER
(15)  Beijing Zhong Yue Heneng PRC, wholly foreign- owned HK$160,000,000 100 100 Investment holding in
Technology Company Limited* limited liability company the PRC
P ERNERBEERAR PR SEEEERAR 160,000,000/ 70 100 100 REAEBEREREER

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. RNB AT ZRE(£)

Percentage of ownership  Place of

Place of Issued and interest held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company as at 31 and principal
Name type of legal entity capital December activities
KRARFEHEEA
F AR AR 3L itk B EBRTR BEEOH LEhHR
2% ERERED BRERE R+=B=+-H TEER
2018 2017
ZB-\F ZE—ifF
% %
Indirectly held
BEEs
(16)  Henan linfeng Coal Industrial PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB118,000,000 2 90  Production and sale of
Group Company Limited* coal in the PRC
("Jinfeng")
MEeEREEEER R HE AREEAR AR #118,000,0007 90 90 RABERERREER
(T&2]) HE
(17)  Shenzhen Zhongzhou Energy PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB10,000,000 90 90  Investment holding in
Company Limited* the PRC
AT M RER AR HE - BREEDA AE#10,000,0007T 90 0 RPEREREZR
(18)  Xingyun Coal Industry Company PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB60,000,000 920 90  Production and sale of
Limited* coal in the PRC
EHmREEEERAA HEBEREEAR AR #60,000,0007C 90 90 RAPERERREER
HE
(19)  Xiangyang Coal Industry Company  PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB50,000,000 90 90  Production and sale of
Limited? coal in the PRC
EHMREREBREANA mE BREEAF AR #50,000,0007C 90 90 RRBERERREER
HE
(20)  Zhengzhou Huirui Shangmo PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB125,000,000 9% 96  Trading of purchased
Company Limited* coal in the PRC
BMNERBEBRAR HEAEREEAR AR #125,000,0007T 96 9% RAEREBEAKR
25
(21)  Henan Zhongyuan JiuAn PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ RMB272,387,000 100 100 Investment holding in
Foundation & Investment Co., venture the PRC
Ltd.#
AERRARAZREBRRA  HE PIHGELER AR #272,387,0007 100 100 RAEREREZR

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14. RMB AR ZRE (&)

Percentage of ownership  Place of
Place of Issued and interest held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company as at 31 and principal
Name type of legal entity capital December activities
ARAREEEA
MBI R BRITR EEEDML BEBER
2% ERERED BRRE RT=A=+-8H TEXH
2018 2017
“E-N\F ZIZ—t%
% %
Indirectly held
BiEEs
(22)  Beijing Kaisheng Guanhua PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ RMB80,000,000 91 91  Project investment,
Investment Company Limited* venture asset management
(“Kaisheng") and consultation of
investment in the
PRC
ERABBEREBBR R hE PN ELE AR #80,000,0007C 91 91 RPEREEERE.
([e12&]) BEEBRREHA
(23)  Winkin Construction Materials Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding in
Company Limited company the PRC
RERMERRR BE BEREERA 10,000/ 7T 100 - RPBEREREER
(24)  Rong lian (Shenzhen) Consulting PRC, wholly foreign- owned US$500,000 100 - Investment holding in
Company Limited* limited liability company the PRC
K2 ORI ERABRAF hE HEEREAERDA 500,000 7T 100 - ROBEREREER
(25)  Zhengzhou Shen Zhi Rong PRC, limited liability company RMB2,000,000 100 - Investment holding in
Construction Materials Company the PRC
Limited*
BMFE 2 REVBRRA PE-AEREEAR AR #2,000,0007C 100 - ROEREREER
(26)  Henan Xingan New Construction ~ PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB20,000,000 51 - Production and sale of
Materials Company Limited* building materials in
("Xingan") the PRC
AAEZHAEEMHRERRE  PE FREERA AR #20,000,0007C 51 - RAEREREMHE
([EZ]) ERHE

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. RNB AT ZRE(£)

Percentage of ownership  Place of
Place of Issued and interest held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company as at 31 and principal
Name type of legal entity capital December activities
KRARFEHEEA
F AR AR 3L itk B EBRTR BEEOH LEhHR
2% ERERED BRERE R+=B=+-H TEER
2018 2017
—E-N\FE ZZ—tF
% %
Indirectly held
BEEs
(27)  Zhengzhou Tairun Aluminum Mold  PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB10,000,000 60 - Production and sale of
Technology Company Limited* aluminum building
(“Tairun”) materials in the PRC
BN R EEERNREBR AR e BREEAF AR #10,000,0007T 60 - RAbEREERENE
(1%=#]) EREE

#  For identification purpose only
Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group disposed
of all equity interest in Rosan Clean Engergy, a 51% directly
owned subsidiary, that is an investment holding company in
Hong Kong, for a consideration of approximately HK$5,000 to
an independent third party. The disposal was completed on 26
November 2018, since then, the Group has no equity interest in
and control over Rosan Clean Energy. Gain on disposal of this
subsidiary of approximately HK$62,000 was recognised as other
income and gains in the consolidated income statement (note
6).

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % -BERRE
Mining Furniture,
Buildings related fixtures,
and Plant machinery equipment
mining and and  and leasehold Motor

structures  machineries equipment  improvement vehicles ap Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERER REEE BA %E RE

BEn BERES BERRE REEDERE AE HBIE &t

TEL TEn TEL TEL TEL TEL TEn

Year ended 31 December 2017 §Z-2-tE+-A=1-RlL

£E
Opening net carrying amount 1B EZFE 197,195 4,800 13613 2,386 = 9,805 257,799
Exchange realignment EiAE 14,269 379 271 185 - 33 17928
Additions HE 214 334 1,489 374 97 2,882 5,390
Transfer &3 12,161 298 551 - - (13,010) -
Disposal e (1,243) 2 (1,755) - (94) - (3,094)
Impairment loss REEE (13,187) (68) (2,601) (46) - - (15,90)
Deprediation il (12,406) (147) (10,229) (203) 6] - (22,988
Closing et carrying amount EREEFE 197,003 5,504 33,840 2,69 - - 239,133

As at 31 December 2017 R=B-t§+-A=1-A

Cost A 542,792 28,683 206,903 1,770 23,804 - 813,952
Accumulated depreciation 2irirE (145,240) (18,600) (121,869) (7,093) (23478) - (316,280)
Accumulated impairment loss ~ 23tEERE (200,549) (4,489) (51,194) (1,981) (326) - (258,539)
Net carrying amount BEFE 197,003 5,594 33,840 2,696 - - 239,133

Year ended 31 December 2018 EZ-E-NE+-A=+-RlLt

EE

Opening net carrying amount ~ FAIEEFE 197,003 5,504 33,840 2,6% - - 239,133
Exchange realignment B3 8% (12,916) (3,183) (1419 (163) (75) (28) (17,784)
Additions AE 3352 7532 5,660 729 473 14,867 32,613
Additions through acquisition of EBKEMEARIRE (4:38)

subsidiaries (note 38) 108,289 86,069 - 443 2,670 9,329 207,400
Transfer inflou) )/ (&) 12,59 9,035 - - - (21,631) =
Disposal i3 - - - - (150) - (150)
Impairment loss REEE (4193) (790) (665) (12) (33) - (5,693)
Depreciation ik (31,525) (13,442) (13,301) (529) (535) - (59,332)
Closing net carrying amount FAREFE 272,606 91,415 2,115 3,164 2,350 2531 396,187
Asat31December 2018  W=E-NE+=fA=1-8
Cost A 634,745 126,964 201,609 12,287 24,354 2537 1,002,496
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (167,963) (30,535) (128316) (7,233) (21,663) - (355,710)
Accumulated impaiment loss ~ 2THEEE (194,176) (5,014) (49,178) (1,890) (341) - (250,599)
Net carrying amount FEFE 272,606 91,415 24,115 3,164 2,350 2,531 396,187
Provision for impairment of approximately HK$5,693,000 NAREE PRAEEERNBSEL
(2017: approximately HK$15,902,000) has been made BURZEDE BELRZBEELR
during the year for those property, plant and equipment B # & #95,693,000/8 ;t( =T — +
within the Coal Production CGU (note 19). 4 : #915,902,000/8 7T )(FizE19)°
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group entered into agreements with financing
companies to transfer the ownership of certain property,
plant and equipment with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$64,639,000 (2017: approximately
HK$20,967,000) as at 31 December 2018, and lease
back the respective property, plant and equipment to
the Group for 1 to 3 years (2017: 3 years). Despite the
agreement involves a legal form of a lease, the Group
accounted for the agreement as collateralised loan
according with the actual substance of such agreement.
Thus, as at 31 December 2018, property, plant and
equipment with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$64,639,000 (2017: approximately HK$20,967,000)
was considered to be pledged to secure other loans (note
32(b)).

The Group does not have the title certificates for certain
items of buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately HK$105,544,000 (2017: approximately
HK$21,912,000) as at 31 December 2018. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and use the above
mentioned properties and therefore the aforesaid matter
does not affect the ownership rights of the Group over
these assets and hence did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial position as at 31
December 2018.

One of the subsidiaries of the Company entered into
a rental agreement with an independent third party to
lease certain of its property, plant and equipment with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$19,941,000
(2017: Nil) for a lease term of 10 years. As the
insignificant portion of the land use right and building
leased out could not be sold separately and significant
remaining portion is held for use in production, the
respective land use right and building are classified and
recognised as prepaid land lease payment, and building
and plant and machineries under property, plant and
equipment.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z_—_Z—/\F+_-H=

— AL

)ﬂ[

15. ¥ -BERREE)

AEBEBENR UIRE R-F
—N\F+-_A=+—H EZETY
¥ BMEARENEARE REFE
4) 564,639,000 7L( —Z & — = F :
#920,967,0007% 7T ) * 1%%‘?@%%
BELREEHERAEBIE3F(=
—tF :3F ) - BEWE L LA ﬁaﬁ
EREEN BEAEERBZBENE
BRARBZBEYRAEFERK E
I R_ZE—NEF+-_A=+—8"
BR T /% {8 4 564,639,000/ T( =&
—+ 4 : £920,967,000% 7T ) B9 ¥ -
R K B B EUEREME
K (HEE32(b)) >

R—_ZE—N\FE+_A=+—H &%
B EBEAEAREEEFENS
105,544,0008 (= FE —+tF : 4
21,912,000 )MAE TEFIEE®
EHE#EFE A R EERAELNEE
EEAEARABABIER Ly
¥ AU EMRSESETEEREEEHZ
EEENBRERE tMEAEERZ
Z—NFE+-_A=+—HBHWHP KRR
WHEERERTLE -

KRR EAR—[HBARE—ZEL
%‘*EETj—fNEETﬁ%** AHEH
HETWE -BELEE REFEL
#19,941,000 T( = T — £ &F :
) HHIA104F o f A L (F A #E AN
HEEFHNIEEARTL D TREEB D
B FHBNERNBOFIERAREE
BT FEREMEFHE DY BLER
ABEATHHEER  UREFMNRE
MY - RE AR T FOREA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. S LB ENLRK
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F ZZT—tF
FExT FHET
Cost A
At 1 January n—A—H - -
Additions through acquisition of BRAWEHRBARAE
subsidiaries (note 38) (K7 a£38) 71,530 -
Exchange realignment PE 5 FH % (2,321) =
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—8H 69,209 -
Accumulated amortisation Zat#s
At 1 January ®n—A—H - =
Amortisation for the year FNEE (1,569) -
Exchange realignment ME 5, & 63 -
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H (1,506) -
Net carrying amount at 31 RTt=ZB=+—-BZzHREFRE
December 67,703 =
Less: Current portion R B IS (1,506) -
Non-current portion EMBNE S 66,197 -
The balance represented the amount paid to the PRC ZEBRIER A AR B ARER 2 +
government authorities for the land use rights of lands b {5 PR A 2 [m) A (B0 I T A B S 1~ RO K
situated in the Mainland China, which are amortised on I8 - PASOEFBHR NI B AR R 5 o
the straight-line basis over the lease periods of 50 years.
As at 31 December 2018, the land use rights of the NR-E—-N\F+-_A=+—H K&
Group with net carrying amount of approximately = B M )% {8 4966,197,000/8 T.( = =&
HK$66,197,000 (2017: Nil) have been pledged for the —t+F BN HERAESEER
bank loans (note 32). RITER(FIFE32) 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

17. GOODWILL 17. B&
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as PEEREFEA DT ¢
follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E-N\F —ET—LtF
FTHET TET
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BEk+-_A=+—H
Gross carrying amount R ARE 246,227 259,690
Accumulated impairment loss ZEHREEE (246,227) (259,690)
Net carrying amount FREHE - -
Goodwill arising in prior years related to the acquisitions BEFEELOEES IS R ER
of CIL and its subsidiaries for the Coal Production CGU EERCEABENMMENBRARIMUR
and Huirui for the CGU of trading of purchase coal, TR AR E BN EIERE o Al
respectively. Goodwill arise from these acquisitions BELSHBECRNBEAFTFETE R
have been fully impaired in the previous years and the B SFEEZHNEET2AERE
differences between the years solely represents the ZHFHEE o

realignment of exchange differences.
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18. MINING RIGHTS

e MR EmRMNE

18. BRUEHE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\E —E—+tF
FET FAT
Cost 2N
At 1 January n—H—H 709,796 659,940
Exchange realignment PE o o2& (36,798) 49,856
At 31 December Rt-_A=+—8H 672,998 709,796
Accumulated amortisation S
At 1 January n—H—H (130,026) (117,791)
Amortisation for the year 0 A 5 (7.805) (3,205)
Exchange realignment PE 5, 3 & 7,056 (9,030)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H (130,775) (130,026)
Accumulated impairment loss ZitRERBE
At 1 January R—H—H (253,235) (223,996)
Impairment loss for the year FARRBEEE (8,544) (11,830)
Exchange realignment PE i, 3 13,473 (17,409)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H (248,306) (253,235)
Net carrying amount REFE 293,917 326,535

As of 31 December 2017, the Group has 5 coal mining
rights in Dengfeng City, Zhengzhou, the PRC. Amongst
these mining rights, one coal mine had been fully
impaired in 2015. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group has not applied to renew one of its
mining rights (“Xiaohe Coal Mine No. 3") since the
expiry date, taken into account that its productivity
is low and scale is small, full impairment amounting
to approximately HK$7,831,000 has been provided
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
Impairment loss was also recognised on the related
property, plant and equipment of Xiaohe Coal Mine No.
3 amounting to approximately HK$12,982,000 as at 31
December 2017. As of 31 December 2018, the Group has
4 coal mining rights remained in Dengfeng City.

R-ZZE—+E+_A=+—0 K&
B BN E T ASIBEERE %
LRERET —EARBER=_ZF—1
FRERE-BE-_ZT—/\F+=A
=+—BLtFE - HFA—BREER
([T=T ) EIE%E  AEBERFH
B BN H A BRI BB &
E_E—+HF+-A=+—HItEE
AEEEHREFRZBRELY
7,831,000 L - R=_F—+F+=1
=t+—8 NN =ZEEREY
¥ BB & EERL12,982,0008
THREBE R_T—N\FE+=A
=t+—H AEBEEHMINAELIER
pog
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18.

19.

i#f—EE

Bl £

MINING RIGHTS (continued)

Excluded the fully impaired coal mine as mentioned
above, the remaining 3 coal mining rights with the
aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$293,917,000 will expire from June 2019 to
September 2020. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, with reference to the legal opinion received by
the management in March 2019, there should be no legal
barrier for the Group to renew such mining rights and
that renewals can be obtained for indefinite times period
at minimal cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, provision for
impairment of mining rights amounting to approximately
HK$8,544,000 (2017: approximately HK$11,830,000) has
been made by the Group’s management. Particulars of
impairment testing of mining rights are set out in note
19.

As at 31 December 2018, mining rights with net carrying
amount of approximately HK$293,917,000 (2017:
approximately HK$326,535,000) have been pledged to
banks to secure the Group’s bank loans as included in the
asset-backed financing (note 32).

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS AND MINING RIGHTS

For the purpose of impairment assessment as at 31
December 2018, property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments and mining rights set out in notes
15, 16 and 18 respectively have been allocated to two
individual CGUs, (i) Building Materials Business CGU,
which represents Xingan, a subsidiary under Goal Getter
which acquired by the Group on 3 January 2018; and
(ii) Coal Production CGU, which in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, all coal mines owned by the
Group are collectively regard as a single CGU. Property,
plant and equipment and mining rights had been
allocated to Coal Production CGU for the purpose of
impairment assessment as at 31 December 2017.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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19.

NFEF+—HA=+—HILFE

RiERE &)

B Bl 2 EREREIN RT3 RE
R B AR JF E %) /293,917,000
T ER_E—NENAZR_Z-F
FNARH - 2EEEENR_-_Z—N
FZAKEINEZEER ARAES
RE AEBEHERRBERZT

BEARER BRRBERARE
G -
BE-T—\F+-A=+—BI*F

B AEETIEEDIEHRBEERE
B 498,544,000 L (—ZF — & -
#911,830,0007%8 7T ) o FRAE # R (BRI,
R IBERMIEET9 -

R-E—NE+_A=+—8 FE@\
SRE49/5293,917,0008 0 ( — B —+
1 #9326,535,0005 7T ) (I IRER D
ERFIRITUERAEBMNIEITER
(BREEEXFMEN)(MFE32).

ME- -BERSZE AL
A EFE R RERE 2R E Al

BR=ZE—-N\F+ZA=+—HHR
@$ﬁﬁ*'“%ﬂmﬁw 16}218
FREi Mm% BB R&HE - B L
HERBRFEERES DEEEMEES
WIREELEN  BMEBKRESE
EBEMIEERT R_T—N\F—A=
HEAEBKRENEETHHRBA
Al (NVEREEBRSEEEMN AR
REERAE AEBEAENMEEE
HRAWEAE—BREEEBM -
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19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS AND MINING RIGHTS

(continued)
Building Materials Business CGU

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is
no impairment indication identified in this CGU. There
is no impairment of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments in respect of this CGU as at
31 December 2018.

Coal Production CGU

As the Group depletes its coal reserves, the recoverable
amount of Coal Production CGU will also decrease.
Also, Coal Production CGU suffered operating loss
during these years, as a result, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of Coal Production CGU by using fair
value less costs of disposal (2017: fair value less costs of
disposal), which was based on income approach using a
cash flow projection covering a detailed five-year budget
plan, followed by an extrapolation of discounted cash
flows, by reference to the actual selling price and the
average market coal price with similar heating power in
the PRC with adjustments, where necessary, to reflect
the differences. In determining the recoverable amount
of Coal Production CGU, the directors of the Company
have taken account of the coal reserves of the mines
after deducting the cumulative amounts of coal already
extracted and sold.

The recoverable amount of Coal Production CGU is less
than the carrying amount of Coal Production CGU as
at 31 December 2018. As a result, the Group made an
impairment loss of approximately HK$5,693,000 and
approximately HK$8,544,000 on property, plant and
equipment and mining rights respectively associated
with Coal Production CGU (notes 15 and 18 respectively)
during the year. The impairment loss is allocated to net
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
mining rights associated with Coal Production CGU.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, taking into
account that the low productivity and small scale of
Xiaohe Coal Mine No.3, full impairment losses of
approximately HK$12,982,000 and HK$7,831,000 were
recognised on the related property, plant and equipment
and mining rights respectively.

e MR EmRMNE

BE=F—\F+-A=1—AUFE

19. Y% BERKE AN

H & TR R BREAE 2 R E R

(&)

EMEBREELEN
ARBEERR ZREELEML
BIRRETR - R_F—-—N\F+=
A=1t—B fRZReELEUDN
W BB LRENMBEN LA ER
TR S RE ©

BREEREELEN

EEASEERERFEE  RERE
EZHReELBU A RESBETE
WD WM REEFERREEZ
ReELBNAHKLERE MAK
BAR AR U A K AR IR 2 P ERL H B K
NZZ—tF: AFEBREEKX
) H2ERERAUREZKRZE
BREEBLFOMSERALIELLR
ABARRER)  ERKRAOEILE A
ME-—EHFRDAFREFENRS
MIEA - AR RBRSREF L
EMEE REERREEZRESE
EEMZAREISEE ARRES
EERIRBIRMEE LREDH
REMEZRFTRE -

WREEBRSEEBMNHNA KRB EEE
BR-_ZE—N\F+-A=+—HKK
EERcESSEMMNEEE Al
FRNAEEFEREREERSELSE
NEBRYE BE&RERRERE
(P RIEMFE15R218)EH REEE S
A1 435,693,000 7T K& #8,544,000/%5
TeoREBEIEZHEREERS
EXBNEBENYME BEREZEK
FREEMNREFE -

HE—_T—+F+=-A=+—HILF
B ER/ VI =ZBEEREEBRE
N ERAEBEYME BE RRENKE
REETIRE2IBEBED D
12,982,000/ 7T &% 497,831,000/ 7T
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19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS AND MINING RIGHTS

(continued)
Coal Production CGU (continued)

In addition, the recoverable amount of Coal Production
CGU was less than the carrying amount of Coal
Production CGU as at 31 December 2017. As a result,
the Group made further impairment loss of approximately
HK$2,920,000 and HK$3,999,000 on the property,
plant and equipment and the mining rights respectively
associated with Coal Production CGU (notes 15 and 18
respectively) during the year ended 31 December 2017.
The impairment loss was allocated according to net
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
mining rights associated with Coal Production CGU.

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation was performed by the valuer,
Asset Appraisal Limited (2017: Asset Appraisal Limited),
to determine the fair value less costs of disposal of
the Coal Production CGU as at 31 December 2018.
The impairment losses are included in consolidated
income statement. The fair value measurement of Coal
Production CGU is classified as a Level 3 fair value
measurement.

Valuation processes of the Group

Coal Production CGU was valued as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 by independent professionally qualified
valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their
staff fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and have recent experience in the valuation of mining
industries.

The Group’s finance department, which directly reports
to the chief financial officer, reviewed the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes, which is determined based on the
cash flow projection prepared by the management.
The finance department holds discussions with the
independent valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results.
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19. Y% BERKE AN
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS AND MINING RIGHTS

(continued)
Coal Production CGU (continued)
Valuation processes of the Group (continued)

Management's key assumptions were used in the
determination of recoverable amount of Coal Production
CGU for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
The following described each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill.

Net profit margins — Management determined net profit
margin based on past experience in this market and its
expectations for market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate reflects specific risks
relating to the mining industry.

Forecast price of coal are based on the actual selling price
and average market coal price with similar heating power
in the PRC with adjustments, where necessary, to reflect
the differences.

Sales and production volumes — Estimated production
volumes are based on detailed life-of-mine plans and
take into account development plans for the mines
established by management as part of the long-term
planning process. Production volumes are dependent on
a number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities,
the production profile, the cost of the development of
the infrastructure necessary to extract the reserves, the
production costs, the contractual duration of mining
rights and the selling price of coal.

The discount rate and growth rates on the estimated
selling price used to extrapolate in the cash flow
projection of Coal Production CGU are shown as below:

19. Y% BERKE AN

8 R IE I BRIEAE 2 R (BRI

(#8)

Rt ERSEERY(H)
AEM2 GERS (#)

BFEE_ZT-\FLR-_F—tF
TZA=+T—"HALFERREEZH
T ELE B 2 AT & 8RR B AR
R BEEECHEAIZERR TXH
MEREEEETREERENARSHE
HBenERARMBZERERMB/R-

FHEE - ERBRBENSERE
HUMIBHE 2 B FRIEE .

FrIRKR - PR RRARRIER 25
E R -

BB ERENEREERTER
URBER FIH TG RRER  LEL
ERELFRE  URBRESR -

HEREE HTEEERFHANE
IWESmatE EREEEEARER
EREF—EomelEMEREERG
E-EEFUARZBENEAEK M7
AFESE SERR ARHEFEME
EMRENRBAN FENA K
BENG LR REKRER -

HrREERCELEBUCHERETR
AR HEEER 2 TR X RIERED
B
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19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS AND MINING RIGHTS

(continued)
Coal Production CGU (continued)

(%)

19. Y% BMERZE AN
18 FRIE I BRIEAE 2 R (BRI

BrREERESELEEMN(E)

Valuation processes of the Group (continued) KEBZHEREF (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Growth rate on the estimated selling {hEF&ERIE KX 2.3% 2.6%
price of coal Per annum Per annum
B5F B
Growth rate on sales and production ERIHEREEEE R X 4.3% 3.3%
volumes of coal Per annum Per annum
g e
Discount rate PrIf =& 13.17% 13.93%
Per annum Per annum
55 S
20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. HthEEEE
Computer software licence
B ERAE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —E—+tF
FET FAET
Cost KA
At 1 January n—A—H 1,891 1,891
Additions NE 730 -
Exchange realignment bE B (30) -
At 31 December R+_A=1+—H 2,591 1,891
Accumulated amortisation -5 £
At 1 January n—H—H (1,891) (1,891)
Amortisation for the year F N (80) -
Exchange realignment BE 5, 3 28 3 =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H (1,968) (1,891)
Net carrying amount REFE 623 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT  21. R & ARz B REN—

DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE BN
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NFE —T—+F
FE T T T

Interests in associates — Share of net  REf& AT 2w — (R EES

assets (=] 100,046 101,938
Amount due to an associate* &S — B 2 R B kI * (14,640) (99,589)

As at 31 December 2017, amount due to an associate
was unsecured, interest-free and repayable after twelve
months from the reporting date and were therefore
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position
as non-current. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the associate demanded for settlement and the
Group paid to approximately HK$79,785,000 to the
associate. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the amount due to the associate at least
twelve months after 31 December 2018. The balance is
therefore considered as repayable on demand and shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
current as at 31 December 2018.

W_ZT—+t+F+-A=+—8
N—HBEARRELELR &
BRERREASHET—@AKE
B EAREARE BRI EF T
RERS - BHE-_ZET-NE+_-A
=t+—BLEFE Z#HERREK
HE - AEBERZBEERATIND
79,785,000 7T c NAFIESR A

F+-_A=t+—RE&E=L+_EAR
HREE RN E QR RIE SRR
R R SRERLKEETHNEBE
—E-N\FE+TZA=T+—HHEE
BB IR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT  21. ABE NGz EERENS—E

DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Bt N R FRIE (&)

RKEER _ZE—NER_ZT—+F
+- A=+ —HMEBE QR FIBN
—F :

Place of
incorporation and Particulars of Percentage of voting  Attributable equity  Place of operation and
Name type of legal entity registered capital right held by the Group interests to the Group  principal activities
HRAIBER LB GenlR
£ EERRED EMEAGHE REREDL AREEEZRARE  ETEER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-0\E “E-tF ZE-N\E ZB-tF B\ ZB-tF
(1) Beiing Zhaohua Hefu Investment  PRC, limited fiability RMB2,000,000  RMB2,000,000 25.00%  2500%  25.00%  25.00% Investment management,
Management Limited® company asset management and
("Zhaohua Hefu") consultation of investment
in the PRC
IRKEQEREERARAA HE BRAFLA NG ARE  2500%  2500%  2500%  25.00% MREWSREEE AEE
(Tk#&E]) 2,000,000% 2,000,000 BRRARH
(2)  Beijing Shuozhan Zhongfu PRC, limited RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000 3333%  3333%  99.25%  99.25%  Project investment,
Investment Centre(Limited partnership investment management,
Partnership)* (the assets management and
"Partnership”) (Note) consultation service in the
PRC
TRERPERETL (ARe  HE BRAEAA AE# ARE  3333%  3333%  9925%  9925% MEEMSEARE REE
%) ([eBLE]) () 100,000,007 100,000,0007C B BEERLEARS

* For identification purpose only
Note:

Pursuant to the partnership agreements entered into in May
2012 and June 2012, the general partner of the Partnership
is Zhaohua Hefu (the “General Partner”), which is an
associate of the Group, owns 1% of the equity interest of the
Partnership. The General Partner is responsible for management
and control of the business of the Partnership through the
power to appoint two-third of the committee member of the
investment committee while Kaisheng, a subsidiary of the
Company and the limited partner of the Partnership, possesses
significant influence over the operating and financial policies
of the Partnership through the power to appoint the remaining
one-third of committee member of the investment committee.
As abovementioned, although the Group owned 99% equity
interest in the Partnership, the Group only possess significant
influence over the operating and financial policies of the
Partnership, therefore, the investment has been classified as
interests in associates in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT 21. AB& AR AR EN—B

DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued) B N TRIE(E)
The following illustrates the summarised financial NTITRAEEERBERR(ANEE
information of the Group’s material associate, the DE)ZHBEERBE - VREaEE
Partnership, extracted from its management accounts BEEE(E/EFARERARFREANEFBE
which have been adjusted to ensure consistency in M EETBR -0

accounting policies adopted by the Group.

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
FET FETT
As at 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—H
Non-current assets JEREEE 24,452 109,016
Current assets MBEE 83,608 =
Current liabilities VEII=R (10,255) (8,702)
Net assets BEFE 97,805 100,314
Year ended 31 December BZEZ+-A=1t—HILEE
Revenue W #5 - -
Loss for the year FABE (13,366) (2,341)
OClI for the year FREMZERE 10,857 5,871
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRE2E(ER)Wesess
for the year (2,509) 3,530
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT  21.

DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in
the associates recognised in the consolidated financial

REBERNTR 2 REREN—B
BtE N RIFIE(E)

DA BBttt 69 B 75 B R ER AR B B RS ¥R
PREER B 2 A Rl s R E (B A ¥
RRENE -

statements:

2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\EF —E—tF
FET THETT
Net assets of the associate Bt N R 2 BEFRE 97,805 100,314
Group’s interest in the associate RNEBNEE SN T 2z 99.25% 99.25%

Carrying amount of the Group’s REBERBE R R 2 Em 2 BRE
interest in the associate =] 97,071 99,562

The financial information of Zhaohua Hefu, which is an
immaterial associate of the Group is set out below:

BRAREAE(RAKEZ TERH
BRB)ZHBERBIIMT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —T—LF
FTHERT FHET
Year ended 31 December BE+t-A=t—BHLHFE
The Group's share of profit for the year N2 & fE {5 4 A% F) 438 504
The Group’s share of other AEBRGEFARMEEEE
comprehensive loss for the year (91) (4)
The Group’s share of total REERGEFAZEKRETE
comprehensive income for the year 347 500
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 22. R—EEeErE kLS
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F ZZT—tF
FExT FHET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 5,973 6,248
The particulars of the joint venture of the Group as at 31 R-E—NEN-_ZFT—+F+—-H
December 2018 and 2017 were set out as below: =t—H FAEBEELEREZFEN
™
Place of
Place of operation
incorporation and Percentage of issued  and principal
Name type of legal entity Particulars of registered capital  capital held by the Group activities
EEBFH
ML B R BERITRE LEHBR
&% EEERER g A BAl TEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\% “TtF ZE-\F ZT—tF
(1) Henan Chalco Li Chuang PRC, other limited RVB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 51% 51% Sale of alumina in
Resources Company Limited*  liability company the PRC
("Henan Chalco”) (note)
ETRVABEERAR B HtEREE AR AR 51% 51% RAEHEESA
([AmHRE]) (M) AF] 10,000,000 10,000,0007T
# For identification purpose only *OEHEEA
Note: Although the Group owned 51% equity interest in Henan MieE: BE RSB TSR P 851 %%
Chalco, the Group and the other shareholder of Henan # o BANER B ROR F P ga 2 A AR
Chalco have joint control over Henan Chalco and none of A A iR A SR R AR
the participating parties have unilateral control over the ZE-—CHF AR ZEE
economic activity pursuant to the joint venture agreement BMEZXHE KB ESHEETA
entered into in July 2012. Therefore, the Group classified IR RNREBH A%
the investment in Henan Chalco as a joint venture as at B mriaciREsEAREE
the reporting date. nEo
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 22.

Set out below is the summarised financial information for

R—EEELE R L)

A E T i (A EARR) 2 ER

Henan Chalco which was accounted for using the equity BEaan T
method:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\E —E—+tF
FExT FAT
As at 31 December Rt+t=—BA=+—8H
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEEE 7.810 8,137
Other current assets B ms&EE 3,901 4,114
Current assets REEE 11,711 12,251
Year ended 31 December BZEZ+-A=1t—HILEE
Interest income FEWA 101 74
Profit for the year F N F 99 61
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ERNHMbEE(ER) Wi
for the year (639) 859
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EXNEE(ERE) sz
for the year (540) 920

There were no contingent liability or other commitments
relating the Group’s interest in its joint venture.

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in a
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial

AEBVERESERELEML
REEREAAGE

VA 5Lt 0 B 75 B R B AR B BA IS 3R R
FriERR —Ha 2t ENERREE
MSBRLA T -

statements:

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —E—+tF
FET TAET
Net assets of the joint venture AENELEFRE 11,711 12,251
Group's interest in the joint venture ~ AEBREEHE 2 51% 51%

Carrying amount of the Group'’s REBREEDE R
interest in the joint venture BREE 5,973 6,248

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

. AIRHESREE RAVE

AR ZERAZERMEE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E-N\F —T—+F
+=A=+-H —A—B +-A=+—H
TER TET TET
Non-current FRE
Available-for-sale financial assets A fit &4 g & &
- Unlisted equity securities in ~ — AR B JE_FHARAE
the PRC, Beijing Baiyitong % It REHB
Technology Co., Ltd.* REBR AR - - 710
Financial assets at FVTOCI RAFE AR M2 E R E
LERMEBE
— Unlisted equity securities in ~ — R EIJE FHRAZE
the PRC, Beijing Baiyitong % It R BEE
Technology Co., Ltd.* REERAR 682 710 -

As at 31 December 2017, the above unlisted equity
securities were stated at cost less any identified
impairment.

The Group designated the unlisted equity securities at
FVTOCI (non-recycling), as the investment is held for
long-term strategic purposes. Available-for-sale financial
assets were reclassified to financial assets measured at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) upon the initial application of
HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 (note 2(b)).

No dividends were received on this investment during the
year (2017: Nil).

#  For identification purpose only

R-ZZE—+E+=—A=+—8" kit
IE _E T AN 58 5 H B 2N Rk A 1T 28 1)L
BF7 -

AEBEEIF ETRAZHIRZAFE
AAAEMEEKSE(TATEE) AR
ZRERFERAEEEN -R-F
—\F-A-HEXRERABEMBR
EEREIE (M aE2(b)) & - AIHEE
EREEEHN D BERAFEFAHR
fhEERRAENSREE(TAE
72)-

£ O3 1 5 2 3 A R AE T R (=
T )

*OEHEBES
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24. INVENTORIES 24. 78

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F ZZT—tF

FTHET FHET

Coal jL ! 2,999 12,013

Building materials =)

- Raw materials — R 5,327 -
— Finished goods — BN M 13,762 -
Spare parts and consumables T RFEM 2,761 2,043
24,849 14,056
As at 31 December 2018, provision for inventories RZE—NF+_A=+—"8" Kk
amounting to approximately HK$2,021,000 (2017: mHEe—F(ZE—+tF: —F )X
approximately HK$1,350,000) were made against those EFEFIRTFEE#H£2,021,000%
inventories which aged over one year (2017: one year). T(=ZF—+4F : 491,350,000/ 7T )

25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 25. BEWERAREBRESHNEE
CONTRACT ASSETS

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F AL —TtF
+ZRA=t-H —A—H +ZA=+—H
FET FET T
Accounts receivable FEULAR 3K 254,529 257,700 257,700
Bills receivable e 2 i 259,433 - -
513,962 257,700 257,700
Less: Allowance for credit losses i : S E1E#E

(note 43(a)) (PFff5E43(a)) (61,313) (47,942) (36,360)

Accounts and bills receivables, net JEUER X R 28 - H1f
of loss allowance (note (a)) B (F:E@)) 452,649 209,758 221,340
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25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 25. BEWERFREBRENEE

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) (4 )
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E-)N\F —E—tF
+=A=+—H —A—H t=ZA=+—H
THET THET TAET
Contract assets BHEE 2,371 - -
Less: Allowance for credit losses i : 12 & BB &
(note 43(a)) (F3E43(a)) (451) = -
Contract assets, net of loss BHEE MREERE
allowance (note (b)) (Mi3E(b)) 1,920 - -
Total BT 454,569 209,758 221,340
Upon the initial application of HKFRS 9, an opening RERIER TS RE AR EoE
adjustment as at 1 January 2018 was made to recognise B BEER_ZE—N\E—H—BZ
additional ECLs on accounts receivable (note 2(b)). HA 27 2 25 LA e 370 E Uk B 2k > BB 4 FE E

EEEEIE2D))-

Notes: B 5 -

(@)  Accounts and bills receivables (a)
During the prior and the current years, the Group
discounted part of its trade debtors with full recourse to a
financial institution. In the event of default by the debtors,
the Group is obliged to pay the financial institution the
amount in default. Interest is charged at a range from
3.3% to 4.57% (2017: 3.2% to 4.4%) per annum on the
proceeds received from the financial institution until the
day the debtors pay. The Group is therefore exposed to
the risks of credit losses and late payment in respect of the
discounted debts.

FEBEER KRB

RAFERBEFE AEEBE
BEHEERENERERIT AR T
—REBMEE-MEBAEL KX
SEEEBRNZeREEINED
SR N ERMZ T RBEERER
RBEN T EBF33%E457% (=
T—+F:32%244% ) WE &H
EEBAERBLE At AEEH
EEESAREERAREHR

B o

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

Accounts and bills receivables (continued)

The discounting transactions do not meet the
requirements in HKFRS 9 (2017: HKAS 39) for
derecognition of financial assets as the Group retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the discounted trade debts. At 31 December
2018, trade debts of approximately HK$205,500,000
(2017: approximately HK$195,740,000) continue to
be recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements even though they have been legally
transferred to the financial institution. The proceeds of
the discounting transactions are included in borrowings
as asset-backed financing (note 32) until the trade debts
are collected or the Group settles any losses suffered by
the financial institution. At 31 December 2018, the asset-
backed financial liability amounted to approximately
HK$153,400,000 (2017: approximately HK$167,925,000).

Because the trade debts have been transferred to the
financial institution legally, the Group did not have the
authority to determine the disposition of the trade debts.

The Group’s sales are billed to customers according to
the terms of the relevant agreements. Normally, credit
periods for Coal Business ranging from 30 to 180 days
(2017: 30 to 180 days) are allowed to certain customers.
While relatively longer credit period will be granted to
customers of Building Materials Business depending on
the completion of the contract.

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable of the
Group, net of loss allowance, based on the invoice dates
as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

25. FEUWERFX

=
(A& )

fiE

(a)

RBERENEE

(%)

FEW AR R IR (&)

IR HIEE BB SRS %R
FOR (ZE—+F BB ER
FE39) KRILERSRMEENET
RERAEERSB D MR E KR
HHBRF DR EER N
—N\E+-_A=+—8 EREX
#9205,500,000% 70 (=& — £ 4F:
#9195,740,0007% 7T ) # BN AN &£ E
REVBRERPER REMCEE
FEEETZERMER RIS
FIBRBEAEEIHFRETSAE
B (Mf#F32) HEEEKRERE K
Bl AEELEE %S BEEZE 8
FREXBLE-R=_T—N\F+=
A=+—H BEXESHREEY
153,400,000 0 (= — £ F 1 4
167,925,000 7T ) °

HREUREARCDAZERTZER
W NEB T B ERE RKER
TR ©

AEBERBEEBBRERATF
RAHEER -BHERREBRET
EFRTZEEH KN F30R
Z180H (ZZ—+t 4 :30H%E180
B) - MRFAOTEXRIERETEN
EBEPZEERHEERE -

RZZE—+F+ZRA=+—H K
KB BURR (HIBRRERERE) &
HEAMGFEZRESOTAT
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25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 25. EWERFREEREHNEE
CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) (%)
Notes: (continued) Misk: (&)
(@)  Accounts and bills receivables (continued) (a) EBUREREERE (&)
2017
HK$'000
—E—tF
AT
0 — 90 days 0290H 88,074
91 — 180 days 91%180H 109,332
181 — 365 days 1812 365H -
Over 365 days Hhim365H 23,934
221,340
Details of impairment assessment of accounts and bills BE-_E—N\F+=-_A=1+—81t
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set FENEKRERNZEBESGF
out in note 43(a). TEE AT FE43(a) ©
The ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables AREBREHHEEKBERNREZE
and contract assets of the Group, net of loss allowance, REXEE (MBREBRE) 2R
based on the due dates is as follows: DT :
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ZE—N\F —T—tF
+=—A=+—H —HA—B +-—A=+—H
FHET FAET FET
Neither past due R H B RRE
nor impaired 295,396 186,428 195,221
Past due for less than wE DR =1 A
3 months 85,354 2,081 2,184
Past due for more than I H = E A LA E
3 months but less than BLRNER
6 months 47,297 - -
Past due for more than wERZSE A A
6 months but less than BLR—F
1 year 26,522 17,246 19,353
Past due for more than BEA—F A
1 year - 4,003 4,582
454,569 209,758 221,340

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

Accounts and bills receivables (continued)

Accounts and bills receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired related to customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Accounts and bills receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to customers that had been the Group’s
customers for more than 1 year and had a good track
record of credit with the Group with no history of default
in the past. Based on past credit history, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered to be fully recoverable. The Group did
not hold any collateral in respect of accounts and bills
receivables past due but not impaired.

Contract assets
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract assets recognised are as follows:

- Building materials contracts

Certain of the Group’s building materials contracts
include payment schedules which require stage
payments over the construction period once
milestones are reached. For major building materials
contracts, the Group general receives certain
deposits payable up front, which is negotiated on
a case by case basis with customers, and this has
resulted in a contract liability at early stages of the
projects. However, for major building materials
contracts the Group also typically agrees to a
retention period for 1% to 16% of the contract
value. This amount is included in contract assets
until the end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on
the Group’s work satisfactorily passing inspection.

Significant increase in contract assets is the result of
the acquisition of Building Materials Business on 3
January 2018.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 43(a).
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

26.

FANFRIE - RERHEME
T

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E-N\F T —+F
+t=A=+-—H —A—B +ZA=+—H
TAERT FHET TET
Prepayments ERHIE 10,107 3,695 3,695
Deposits BEffike 11,775 334,933 334,933
Other receivables HoAh e W RIR 8,127 90,467 90,467
30,009 429,095 429,095

Provision for impairment B (M E43()
(note 43(a)) (5,529) (79,094) (49,806)
24,480 350,001 379,289

Upon the initial application of HKFRS 9, an opening
adjustment as at 1 January 2018 was made to recognise
additional ECLs on other receivables (note 2(b)).

As at 31 December 2017, the balances of deposits
included approximately HK$282,085,000 and
HK$52,568,000 paid to Henan Jiatuo Coal Trading
Company Limited* R ZIBRKEHBMR R A), the
major supplier under the “trading of purchased coal”
operation (the “Major Supplier”), and Henan Yulian
Energy Group Company Limited* (7] &g 75 B gt /R 5= @
BFRA7A]) as deposits for purchase of trading coal in
the subsequent period. Since no transaction with these
suppliers carried out eventually as the Group sourced the
coal supplies from other suppliers and accordingly, the
deposits were fully refunded to the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in note 43(a).

#  For identification purpose only

REXEREBYBHHREERE
IR EEER_F—NF—
A—BZHAB AR ME
Wz BINRE BB (M
2(b))°

R—_EB—+tF+-_A=+—8"
ReRBEREE DX TFAm
EHEKEHARAR(RIE
ARERE S | EBNEEHER
([EE4tHER ) on a5 H B8
REBEERAR EAEERER
BEESHERMNE Y
282,085,0007% 7T } #752,568,000
B BRI BMEZEMHER
EHETRG RARAEEERE
f it R S R P - At -
EEEREE_T—)\F+_A
=+t RIFEBRBEETASE
@ °

BE_T-/\F+-_A=t—H

IEEFERR S R AL YRR
ERHEFBERMES3(@) °
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27. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Pledged and restricted bank deposits

The effective interest rates of the pledged bank
deposits are at 0.31% (2017: 3.95%) per annum.
As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits are
used to secured bills payables (note 28) and letter
of credit (note 32(b)) (2017: bills payables) of the
Group as at 31 December 2018.

Certain bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,621,000 (2017: Nil) were restricted for use in
relation to the administrative proceedings.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2018, included in cash and
cash equivalents of the Group is approximately
HK$33,377,000 (2017: approximately
HK$150,321,000) of bank balances denominated
in RMB placed with the banks in the PRC. RMB is
not a freely convertible currency; however, under
the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through the banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business in the PRC.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

27.

(a)

(b)

CEH R ZRHEARITE
M BRERBEEEEEAE
REMREREER

EEFRZREBTER
BHEBRTERNERANR AT
F031%( = T — & F:
3.95%)  R—E—\E+_- A
=t+—8 BEAETEIER
ERAEER-_ZT—N\F+=A
=t+— B8 ENEE(KFE28)
RS & (MEE32(b))(2017 « &
NEZ T

& TERITTERA1,621,000/8 T
(ZF—+tF  ®)ETHRERE
FAEIR S

HeRBEELEEEE
RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—8"
AEEREMRESEEBEEBE
AR BRI 77 PR B A ERTT
2 R 17 #5 #4 #933,377,0007% 7T
— T —+ 4 : 4150,321,000
BIL)e AREWIER B AHER
ZEH A REBEPE 2 HNE
B ARG R AETE - EERMES
ERTE AEBEETEBTE
BEREEITINEZERE 2 RITHA
RESMmABHMEN
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27. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK 27. SHEARZRHENRITER
DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH iﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁéﬁﬁlﬁ B RHEMEA
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW ETHREER (&
INFORMATION (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing (O MEZHREENEEHK
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's T%§$ﬁ$%@@§%@ﬁﬁ§$
major liabilities from financing activities, including MERREEY BERSAE
both cash and non-cash changes. LIRS REBRNES) -
Amounts due to
related parties
Amounts dueto  included in other
Bank and and loans from payablesand  Amount due to an
other loans shareholders accruals associate Total
(note 32) (note 29) (note 30) (note 21)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEREMER
ERREFER FERENERL Efi-fHEe
RAIREMER RERRER ERENBELTE NAFE &
(H332) (K3k20) (W3E30) (Kk21)
Tin TiEn Tin Thn Tin
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-A 413221 7951 6,835 92,593 580,600
Changes from financing activities: ~ BEEHEEHNEE:
Proceeds from bank loans FERZEEE 868,290 - - - 868,290
Repayments of bank loans BRETER (770,95) = - = (770,295)
Proceeds from other loan EHEFAETE 34,451 - - - 34,451
Repayments of other loan BEEMER (115) - - - (115)
Proceeds from a director’s loan —LEEETFETE - 8,000 - - 8,000
Proceeds from loans of Mr. Bao BREETHENE = 2577 - - 24577
Advance from a family member of ~ AEEFEMSRUNBR
Mr. Bao - - 208 - 208
Repayments to a family member of ~ EEBELETREE
Mr. Bao - - (450) - (450)
Total changes from financing cash flows  BER S REEHHETER 132,331 32,571 (242) = 164,666
Other change: Efp2E:
Exchange realignment EfRg 41,348 569 506 6,99 49419
At 31 December 2017 RZE-+5+-A=1+-H 646,900 41,097 7,099 99,589 794,685
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

27. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK 27. CEBRZRAINETER
DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH BeRBEEEEEBEERAEME
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW EREBER (&)
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing (MEZBFIELENRBEHIRGE)

activities (continued)

Amounts due to
related parties
Amounts due to  included in other

Bank and and loans from payables and  Amount due to an
other loans shareholders accruals associate Total
(note 32) (note 29) (note 30) (note 21)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEREMER
EffRRF7ER FEREHERZ Eff-HKe
RAREMER RERRER EANEGBERFA e @it
(H332) (Hritae) (HH3E30) (M)
TEn Tin TiEn TER TiEn
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\5-f-A 646,900 41,097 7,099 99,589 794,685
Changes from financing activities: ~ BEEBELHEH:
Proceeds from bank loans FETZeEE 207,618 - - - 207,618
Repayments of bank loans BRROER (182,704) - - - (182,704)
Proceeds from other loans EHEFAETE 201,975 - - - 201,975
Repayments of other loans EREMER (37,584) - - - (37,584)
Proceeds from loans from shareholders  REREE 2 /5308 - 94,800 - - 94,800
Repayments of loans from shareholders R EEE 2 F1/5308 - (29,660) - - (29,660)
Repayment to shareholders AREER - (31,962) - - (31.962)
Repayments to related parties REEALER - - (109,669) - (109,669)
Repayment to an associate Rl S - - - (79,785) (79,785)
Total changes from financing cash flows  BER &k SE £ EEIAE 189,305 3,178 (109,669) (79,785) 33,09
Other changes: B2
Exchange realignment EiAE (42,701) (2.214) (330) (5,164) (50,409)
Addition through acquisition ARMENBARRE (H338)
of subsidiaries (note 38) 47,060 - 103,070 - 150,130
Discount at inception of loans RERRETEEE
from shareholders - (17,185) - - (17,185)
Imputed interest of loans RERREFMERS
from shareholders - 8,750 - - 8,750
Total other changes Egsas 4,359 (10,649) 102,740 (5,164) 91,286
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\E+-A=1-H 840,564 63,626 170 14,640 919,000
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28. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

28. ENERAKREE

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—Z2-N\EF —E—+tF

FEx FHET

Accounts payable JERTBR K 50,349 10,665
Bills payable JEN R & 607,783 807,198
658,132 817,863

The bills payable were mainly issued to the Major Supplier
for the “trading of purchased coal” operation.

The Group was granted by its certain suppliers with credit
periods normally ranging from 30 to 90 days (2017: 30
to 90 days). The ageing analysis of accounts payable of
the Group presented based on the invoice dates was as
follows:

RNERTIERBAKKE S | X5
mEE2HEFHIERARKKERSE
[RARZMS

AETHERRNASEE T RN T30
Z90H(ZZE—+%F : 30290H) 2%
R -RREAH REZEHER
ZAREBEMERZEHESTIT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —E—+tF

FET FHET

0 — 90 days 0Z290H 21,493 1,995
91 - 180 days 91%£180H 3,779 1,162
181 — 365 days 1812365H 19,299 145
Over 365 days HBi1E365H 5,778 7,363
50,349 10,665

As at 31 December 2018, bills payable of approximately
HK$485,851,000 (2017: approximately HK$694,928,000)
were secured by the pledged bank deposits of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$461,487,000 (2017:
approximately HK$616,880,000) (note 27(a)).

R—E—N\F+_A=+—8" EfH
= & 49485,851,00058 t( — & — +
£ 1 #7694,928,000/ 7T ) AR E=E 2
IR IR 1T 177K 49461,487,00078 7T( —
T—+4 : 49616,880,000/8 7T ) 1E A
R (HIzE27(a))°
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

28.

29.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, bills payable of approximately
HK$152,387,000 (2017: approximately HK$164,802,000)
were guaranteed by Henan Zhongfu Industrial Company
Limited* GA R FEXRH AR AR or its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Zhongfu Group”), the
major customer under the “trading of purchased coal”
operation (the “Major Customer”).

As at 31 December 2017, bills payable of approximately
HK$72,044,000 were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Bao, the
spouse of Mr. Bao and/or the Major Customer, which
were fully settled during the year ended 31 December
2018.

#  For identification purpose only

AMOUNTS DUE TO AND LOANS FROM
SHAREHOLDERS

28.

29.

BNERRRRE &)

RZE—NE+=—A=+—8 " FEf
= $£ 49152,387,00008 (=& — +
F 1 #9164,802,00078 7T ) B/ FE AR F
EEBRMHBER AT KENERR(H
BPEZEE ) BIBAKKES | %
BHEERF((XEEF]))ER-

R-E—+E+_A=+—08" FER
Z 472,044,000 THBEE - B
EENEBLE XZEEFFHLRE
R BERBE-_FE—N\F+=A
=t+—HIEFERELEE-

BARRAEARRKERRERK

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-NEF —E—+tF
FHET THTT
Current RED

Amounts due to shareholders (note (a)) JE{SAXER X IE (FIzE(a)) 9,135 41,097

Non-current FERE
Loans from shareholders (note (b)) K EBERER(FIEE®D)) 54,491 =
63,626 41,097

Notes:

(@)  Current portion of amounts due to shareholders
The balance of current portion of amounts due to
shareholders as at 31 December 2018 included the
followings:—

(i) Balances amounting to approximately
HK$1,297,000 (2017: approximately
HK$16,047,000) were advanced from Mr. Yang
Hua, a shareholder of the Company, who was also
a director of the Company till 8 February 2018 and
chief executive of the Company till 31 December
2018; and

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

B &E -

(@) ERBRRFIBEZ RS D
R-—_E—NF+=-_A=+—H E
IR R IR B0 58 B 15 A
T&E: —

(i) HBEEE(BARARKRE:
RZZE—N\F=A/\BAIIR
BARREBERNR=_Z—N
F+-_A=+—HIEAEAR
AT ) RENBELY
1,297,000 L (=& —
£ : 4916,047,000 7T ) : K
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO AND LOANS FROM
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current portion of amounts due to shareholders

(continued)

(i)  Balance amounting to approximately HK$7,838,000
(2017: approximately HK$25,050,000) were
advanced from Mr. Bao.

These balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Non-current portion of loans from shareholders

On 14 February 2018, the Group entered into loan
agreements with Mr. Bao, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Li, all of
them are shareholders of the Company in which Mr. Bao
and Mr. Li are also directors of the Company. Pursuant to
the loan agreements, these shareholders agreed to provide
unsecured and interest-free loan with an aggregate
amount of RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$683,100,000) for a term of three years to the
Group. The loans are repayable in full or by instalment to
further negotiations, within 36 months of the drawdown
date. During the year, aggregate loans amounting
to RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$94,800,000) have been advanced from Mr. Bao, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Li, these loans will be repayable in full
within 36 months since the drawdown date. The effective
interest rate at 6.90% for imputed interest expense for
these interest-free loans is determined based on the cost-
of-funds of the Group per annum. Movement has shown
as below:

29. BYBRRRERRERRERK

(&)

BfsE: (4&)
() RENBRERFEZRBID (&)

(i)  #97,838,000/8 T (—FE—+
£ 1 #925,050,000/% 7T ) B #4
BHELERE-

ZERBEREER 2ERARE
KIEE -

by REBRRERZERBISD
R-ZE—NFE-_F+WB K&EE
BELEE REERTHRE(HA
ARABBRE BAEERFTEENR
KARER) L ER G - RIEE
HinE ZERRRAERAAEEIRE
#4858 A R%600,000,0007T (HEE
R #9683,100,000% 7T ) B £ K #
BEF AH=F -BRARRER
HEffE361E A A2 EpEE sk o B8
E(HE—ISER) RAFE B
A EE 4 A R 80,000,000 (48
B 12#794,800,000/8 ) NEREE
S REERFHRERMY ZEE
KA FRE B #E36(E A AR EE
BE-ZEREEFNGEENERAX
ZEB R RIEZ6.90%E N A E R F
FHRESKALETE - ZEFIN T

HK$'000
FEx
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—HA—H -
Proceeds from shareholders’ loans BN ENTECT ] 94,800
Discount at inception (note (i)) s IRAE (FFEEG) ) (17,185)
Early settlement by the Group (note (ii)) REBREHEE (MIEEG)) (29,660)
Unwinding of imputed interest (note (i) HEF BB (M) 8,750
Exchange realignment PE 5, & (2,214)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+-A=+—H 54,491
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO AND LOANS FROM 29. BB RMRERKEBRRER
SHAREHOLDERS (continued) (&)
Notes: (continued) Msk: (&)
(b) Non-current portion of loans from shareholders by KREBRERZIERBILD (&)
(continued)
Notes: B 5

(i) The discount of the loans from shareholders at inception
was recognised as deemed capital contribution from
shareholders as other reserves in the equity of the Group
(note 36(a)(iii)). The corresponding unwinding of imputed
interest is recognised as finance costs in the consolidated
income statement of the Group (note 7).

(ii) During the year, the Group voluntary repaid
RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$29,660,000) to the shareholders.

iy RERERZOOMEER AR
RIERAKE RIS T OHMFEE
PREE AR (HiEE36(a)ii)) o &
BREMBERENARERS
W R R RRAEKA (HET7) o

(i) FAR AEEBERAKEE:R
AR %25,000,0007C (1BE R4
29,660,000/ 7T) °

30. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 30. HibEENFIE - EFTERANRE
DEPOSIT RECEIVED Wizs&
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+tF
FE T FABTT
Current B
Accruals FEET &R 293,640 198,757
Other payables (note (a)) H b e 3E (B 5E @) 243,774 216,068
Contract liabilities/receipts in advance & #4918 f& /TEU KB (Kt E(b))
(note (b)) 13,247 43,253
Deferred income (note 33) FEIEWA (BF5E33) 786 -
551,447 458,078
Non-current E1355 )|
Deposit received (note (c)) Bz e (F17E)) 2,165 -
553,612 458,078

1 82 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &( % —

30. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND
DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The balances of other payables as of 31 December 2018
included the followings:—

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The balance amounting to approximately
HK$170,000 (2017: approximately HK$7,099,000)
was advanced from a family member of Mr. Bao;

As at 31 December 2017, the balance amounting to
approximately HK$22,814,000 was advanced from
Gongyi Hotel Company Limited* (Z& M EHEH R
‘Ad]) (“Gongyi”). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, Gongyi is an independent third party.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
balance was fully settled;

The balance amounting to approximately
HK$6,986,000 (2017: Nil) was advanced from an
individual. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the individual is an independent third
party; and

The remaining balances of approximately
HK$236,618,000 (2017: approximately
HK$186,155,000) mainly comprises accrued coal
mines related removal and relocation expenses,
payables to suppliers for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and certain miscellaneous
expenses payables.

These balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand or within one year.

At 31 December 2018, receipts in advance from customers
are contract liabilities and the Group is required to refund
to the customers if the customers cancel the orders.
However, the Group does not expect to refund any of
the advance payments. The Group does not separately
presented this item on the consolidated statement of
financial position as, in the opinion of directors of the
Company, the amount involved was not material.

e MR EmRMNE

= F-N\F+ A=+ AUFE

30. HiEAFIE B ERARE
WRE (&)
B &E -

(a)

BE_FT-\F+-A=1t—8"
HBBRRERBREEATS
IH: —

()  #9170,0008 T (=T —+:
497,099,000/ JT ) ) 22 %8
BREN—BRENKE R

(i) RZE—tF+ZA=+—
B ' #922,814,0007 T &) 4 58
HEEMEEARAA ([
Z)RHE-ARFTESEER
B EBEERBUSE=H-BE
—E-N\FE+-A=+—QH1k
FEHRBOCRBLEE:

(i)  #96,986,0008 7L (= F —+
FEAT)NBRES B
ARBC-ARFEEERR -
ZEARBULE=T R

(iv) #R%E#%9236,618,000/8 70 ( —
T — 4+ :49186,155,000/8
JL) EE B IER ST IR
FERRRBERAS W
R Bs I 5 ff e A A FE R A E
B TREMEERS -

ZERBEREER 2ERARE
REEIN—FAER-

RZZE—NF+ZR=+—H #&
WEFPHRARANBERAEEA
REFHHRIERRETEF A
i 7N &= B TR B 3 R IE (T TR
P -ANARREERR FIFE
BAITER BAKBEYRNEE
MBRRRANEBE25IZ AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

30. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND
DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued)

Notes: (continued) MaE: (&)

(b)  (continued) (b)y (&)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

- Coal business contracts =

When the Group receives a deposit before the
customers obtain the coal from the predetermined
location, this will give rise to contract liabilities,
until the revenue recognised exceeds the amount
of the deposit. The Group typically receives certain
deposit on acceptance of coal sales orders, which is
negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

- Building materials contracts -

For major building materials contracts, the Group
generally receives certain deposit from customers
when they sign the building materials contracts,
which is negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers. These deposits are recognised as a
contract liability until the revenue recognised
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

The significant decrease in contract liabilities in the
year ended 31 December 2018 was mainly due to
more advances received from customers in prior year
which was recognised as revenue during the year.

30. HESRIE -
Wik€ (&)

FEstERARIE

HERBENABSEBKCER
B — R BRI E S0 T

BIRETEE K
EAKENEF B BT K
AR RATR B RS EHE
ERMAaE EECHEIBRA
BEREKEA AEE—KR
BRI B AT B RIS T
Ze BREREEERPRE
75 o

BMAK

REBRMENME  AKE
—REPRETEM B KR U
ETRe BRERELERER
Fur - ZEREAB/AL
BfE BEEMERRABBIR
LR

RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
IEEE - AHEBEXRERDE
BRHR LFERINEFTE
NHREZ IR FEAER AR
]\o

Movements in contract liabilities BREBENEH
HK$°000
FERT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—N\F—HA—H 43,253
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of TAFIE N BENFARRKRAEER
recognising revenue during the year that EHBERD
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (36,470)
Increase of receipts in advance from customers & 28Uk ZXIE 1% 0 1,575
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FERAWERBATARE 7,131
Exchange realignment PE 5, 5 & (2,242)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—H 13,247
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—N\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

30. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 30. Htt R FRIE - Bt E AR E

DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued) WikE (&)

Notes: (continued) s : (4&)

(©)  One of the subsidiaries of the Company entered into (0 ARA—HEWBRARIHE —BBILE
a rental agreement with an independent third party to =hEINEERE WHBEESET
lease its certain property, plant and equipment for a lease ME- -BEKZE HEARI0F-
term of 10 years. Pursuant to the rental agreement, the BIEHE R BLE=FERZ
independent third party paid RMB4,000,000 (equivalent M8 A Al X {5 A R #4,000,0007T
to approximately HK$4,554,000) to that subsidiary as a (FBE R 44,554,000 7T ) * 1ERIZ
deposit. The deposit is refundable at the end of the lease oA EEANHALERKFRE-
term. The effective interest rate at 7.91% for imputed ZEETHHERN SR ERA X
interest expense for this deposit is determined based on TON%ERZIMBERAREFNES
the cost-of-funds of that subsidiary per annum. KA ETE o

HK$°000

FEx

At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—NFE—H—H =
Deposit received BlE e 4,554
Discount at inception (note 6) MiaIr R E (fizEe6) (2,458)
Unwinding of imputed interest (note 7) HER S E# (MEE7) 72
Exchange realignment PE 5, & (3)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H 2,165

*  For identification purpose only LER - %
31. PROVISION FOR RECLAMATION 31. FAEERRE
OBLIGATIONS

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FET THTT
At 1 January »—A—H 99,480 90,222
Provision made during the year FREHE 6,087 2,345
Exchange realignment PE W B8 (5,403) 6,913
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 100,164 99,480

REERERERAT 2018558 185



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

31.

32.

PROVISION FOR RECLAMATION
OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Provision for land restoration, environmental restoration
and safety costs pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations
and current mining activities are determined by
management based on their best estimates. However,
the estimate of the associated costs may be subject to
change in the near term in view of the effect of land and
the environment from current mining activities becomes
apparent in future periods. The amounts provided in
relation to restoration and safety costs are reviewed
regularly based upon the facts and circumstances
available at the time and the provisions are updated
accordingly.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

31. HEZARE &)

RIBHRRE T BR O] SR B SRAB RIS P
EZETHER REERMZEMA
ZREHEEEESEGMER -
A ERIRE 2 RKBEHBE LK
REFEZRRENARKEHEERFH
B HEERAZGRERAANSEA
B FRAERRLZERAZEES
BIEERMANEE REREHETR
- AR REHD 5 R

32. RITKREMER

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —E—+tF
FET TFHETT
Current RE

Bank loans (note (a)) SRITER(MI5E@)) 563,257 610,998
Other loans (note (b)) H &R (FIEDb)) 198,943 2,521
762,200 613,519

Non-current R B
Bank loans (note (a)) RITER (M5 @) 51,232 -
Other loans (note (b)) EaEZ(MEDb)) 27,132 33,381
78,364 33,381
840,564 646,900

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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%—?\Aﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘%

—NF+-A=+—HIFE

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 32. § HERE)
Detail annual effective contractual interest rate and ﬁ,nﬁﬂ El’\] BEREXFNERAMEEH
maturity is as below: T
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
Annual Annual
effective effective
contractual contractual
interest rate interest
Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
BEREH BEREH
ERE FFI=
(%) ZH FERT (%) 35 FHBT
Current e
Secured Pogiigiid 3.30% - on demand 153,400 3.20% -  on demand 119,895
4.57% ARER 4.35% BIREK
Secured B 5.87% — 2019 295,715 4.35% — 2018 110,588
8.00% —ZE—hE 8.00% —ZT—N\F
Unsecured i 4.85% - on demand 170,774 4.79% -  on demand 204,126
10.43% ARER 10.68% BIREK
Unsecured i 1.20% - 2019 142,311 4.79% — 2018 178,910
12.80% —ZE—hE 13.64% —ZT—)\F
762,200 613,519
Non-current E7 )]
Secured FERIK R 5.87% - 2020 - 78,364 8.00% 2019 - 2020 33,381
8.00% 2021 —hE
—E-EF ETTF
EE-—-F
840,564 646,900
I I
Notes: B & -

(@ As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of approximately
HK$153,400,000 (2017: approximately HK$167,925,000)
were secured by certain accounts receivable (note 25) and
certain mining rights of the Group (note 18). A bank loan
of approximately HK$56,925,000 (2017: approximately
HK$60,037,000) was secured by a mining right of the
Group (note 18).

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of approximately
HK$273,238,000 (2017: approximately HK$256,959,000)
were guaranteed by the Major Customer.

*==—/\¢+ A=+—8" fE

TE X 49153,400,0005% 7T ( —
—ti : #9167,925,000/% 7T ) Lx%
H’étlﬁzﬁﬁ%x(réﬁ%zs>&$%@”
THRaEfE (M sE18) I - SRITE K
#956,925,000/8 ¢ ( =T — ti-é@
60,037,000/ 7T ) LAZN 55 [ A BR A A
AR (HIEE18) ©

*==—/\¢+ BA=+—8" fE
TE X #9273,238,000% 7T ( —
—ti : #9256,959,0007 7T ) M uZ

FTERFER

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z_—FE—\F+_-_HA=1—HIFE

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, no bank loans (2017:
approximately HK$96,059,000) were jointly guaranteed by
Mr. Bao directly/indirectly and the Major Customer.

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of approximately
HK$142,015,000 (2017: approximately HK$149,914,000)
were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Bao, the spouse of Mr. Bao
and the Major Customer.

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of approximately
HK$96,772,000 (2017: Nil) were secured by land use
rights (note 16) and jointly guaranteed by Mr. Zhang
and Henan Minan Real Estate Development Company
Limited* CT B RZEHERZEBR A8 ), an entity
incorporated in the PRC which is beneficially owned and
controlled by Mr. Zhang.

On 25 and 26 June 2018, the Group entered into
agreements with a financing company, an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group has agreed
to transfer the ownership of certain machinery and
equipment under production of building materials (the
“Machinery and Equipment 1”) to the financing
company as disclosed in note 15, at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB169,660,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$193,140,000) and
lease back the Machinery and Equipment | for a period
of 1 year, subject to the terms and conditions of the
agreements. The transaction was completed in June
2018. The financing company will return the ownership
of the Machinery and Equipment | to the Group if all the
rental fee has been settled fully. Despite the agreements
involve a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted
for the agreements as collateralised loan according with
the actual substance of such agreements. This loan
was secured by stand by letter of credit issued by a
bank for RMB170,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$193,543,000).

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

32. RITREMER(#)
GEINC))

(a)

(b)

(%)

RZZE—-N\NF+=ZA=+—H"
RITERZEBT(ZE—EF: 4
96,059,000/ 7T ) B LA EE
BENZEBERFHARER-

RZE—-NE+=-A=+—8
1TE 142,015,000 70 (==
— £ 1 #49149,914,000/5 7C) B &
SE BRENEBIRZEIERR
HEER-

RZZE—-—N\NFE+=ZA=+—8"
$R1TE R 496,772,000 T (=&
—tFE) AT FERE (M
16) | WHEREERAERERE
EMZEER AR (BRI EE M
RN R E B SR M HIA
ERE) HERIER-

R—_ZTE—-—NENA-_F+HBEK
Zt+tAH AEEE-—EREA
R(ABILFE=H)FT L=
Bl AEEEREBSE TEE
BV REE ((MEREE
—HAMEEEZETZAME QA
(WM EE1SATIEEE) - BREAL
AR #169,660,0007T (% R4
193,140,000/ 7t ) + M 78 [0 #4 83 &
BE— R —F (XRRAZ M=
HUER R -1 ) cZRER=ZFE—N
FRNAEK -WABHEBAEE
HEF BMERR SRR —
NAEEERETAEE -BREZB
EARHAENERFEN BXEE
BRIBEZEHENELD & ZHRY R
BB ER - ZERURITEEN
AR #170,000,0007T (& R4
193,543,000/ 70 ) 2 B RE AFEE
-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

#

(continued)

On 6 July 2017, the Group entered into an agreement
with another financing company, an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group has agreed
to transfer the ownership of certain mining machinery
and equipment (the “Machinery and Equipment
11") to the financing company as disclosed in note 15,
at a consideration of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$34,155,000) and lease back the
Machinery and Equipment Il for a period of 3 years,
subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement. The
transaction was completed in July 2017. Upon discharging
all the Group’s obligations under the agreement, the
financing company will return the ownership of the
Machinery and Equipment Il to the Group for a nominal
amount of RMB1. Despite the agreement involves a legal
form of a lease, the Group accounted for the agreement
as collateralised loan according with the actual substance
of such agreement.

For identification purpose only

33. DEFERRED INCOME

32. RITREMERE)
MEE: (4)

(b)

#

(%)

R=T—tFtAXRE REHHE
F—HERMERR (ABIE=F)
R — i Bl AEEER
EASE THREMEE R ([H#Es
EB[E=OMBEEEZETZR
BEAT (WM IS E)  KRE
A AR #30,000,0007T (HHE R L
34,155,000 7T ) + W HH B #28 &%
= BIRR =F (RN & M &
RGN  ZRHRZE—CF+
A - EAREBMRZBEE AT
EEBRETE ZRMERARBUA
REITTHEZE S EBHBREED
BERRETAEB -BREZX M=
HRBEEEEEN  BREERE
ZHENEEEZBBERERE
b N

T

33. IEIEWA

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E2-N\EF —E—tF

FET FHET

Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEREFAE - -
Additions through acquisition of BBWENRBARIRE

subsidiaries (note 38) (FftzE38) 5,164 -

Amortisation for the year F (1,115) -

Exchange realignment ME 5, R R (121) -

Net carrying amount at 31 December A+ —-A=+—HBZKEFE 3,928 -

Less: Current portion (included in other J& : 73D (B FE R EA

payables and accruals (note 30)) R FIE R ERTE

(Ff#5£30)) (786) -

Non-current portion SERBNEL S 3,142 -

MEEREREMRAR 2018FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

33.

34.

i#f—EE

Bl £

DEFERRED INCOME (continued)

The Group received government subsidies for capital
expenditure incurred for the plant and machinery. The
amounts are deferred and amortised over the estimated
useful lives of the respective assets.

DEFERRED TAX

As at 31 December 2018, all tax losses and deductible
temporary differences of the Group have no expiry
dates under the current tax legislation except for the
tax losses amounting to approximately HK$349,624,000
(2017: approximately HK$448,582,000) incurred by
three subsidiaries in the PRC, which will expire after 5
years from the year in which the losses were incurred.
The Group has taxable losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$1,080,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,252,000). The unused tax losses are subject to the
approval by the respective local tax authorities. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams.

Movement in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the
year is as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 —F-NFF+ZH=1T—HIFE

34. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

e

34. IEFERTA ()

Fair value
adjustments
Amortisation  on property,
allowance on plant and
mining rights equipment,
for tax purpose  prepaid land
Impairment of in excess lease payments ECL on
mining rights of related and inventories accounts
and property,  amortisation arising from and bills
plantand for accounting the acquisition receivables and
equipment purpose of subsidiaries contract assets Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE BER
AERBAE RE BEMLi
MENERE HEARRE
REER AHERG(BE WENELAR  AEWRIR
N% BER HEHRARME ELZEEZ RERANEE
REAE  HEREH) NVPERE ZHEAREESR Hit @t
TER TEL TEL TAL TER TER
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+%-F—H (28,079) 28,079 = = = =
(Credited)/charged to (BR)/fERANES
profit or loss (note 9) (MizE9) (1,640) 1,640 = = = =
Exchange realignment 5 A% (2,189) 2,189 - - - -
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+ZA=1—
1 January 2018 BRR=ZE-N\E-F—
A (31,908) 31,908 - = - -
Additions through acquisition of EBKENBAFE
subsidiaries (note 38) (Piz38) - - 2,719 - 400 3,119
Charged/(credited) to & /(&R EE
profit or loss (note 9) (MizE9) 1,005 (1,005) (509) (2,406) 279 (2,636)
Exchange realignment [ A% 1,614 (1,614) (67) 97 (24) 6
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZR
Er=H (29,289) 29,289 2,143 (2,309) 655 489

As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$2,488,000 (2017:
approximately HK$3,632,000) in respect of the aggregate
amount of temporary differences of approximately
HK$24,877,000 (2017: approximately HK$36,319,000)
associated with the undistributed earnings of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries have not been recognised. No
deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of
the differences because it is considered that the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC will not pay any dividend to their
overseas holding companies in the foreseeable future
and the Group is in a position to control the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

R-ZE—-NE+-_A=+—H &&
EETHBRARRD AR 2 Bt
= F 48 %8 4924,877,00078 t( = =
—+ 4 : 4936,319,000/% 7T ) HHE
7 & [ R RE 7 IR B & £ #92,488,000
BIT(ZZF—+14F : 43,632,000/ 7T)
HIBARER AR EERRELRIE
BETHAERAEBRFEZHEB AT
WAR AR RS RIGIMER A
BRI AR B - B R & B a] 2 i
EMBARIZIRERE  BZE=8
HTERA R Z AR A D o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. R
Number
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEC BT ERMR of shares
‘000 HK$°000
K% & E FTHET
TR
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, A =ZE—+F—H—H *
1 January 2018 and —E—+tF+=-A=1+—8"
31 December 2018 —E-N\F-HA-HBRK
—E-NF+-_A=+—H 30,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RA-—Z—+F—H—H —%
and 1 January 2018 —+F+A=tT—HR=F
—N\FE—H—H 712,674 71,267
Shares issued in consideration for the RN B A7 MmETRERD
acquisition of subsidiaries (note (a))  (Kf{3E(a)) 127,500 12,750
Issuance of shares pursuant to the BIEREEEEITRG
subscriptions (note (b)) (MH3E(b)) 200,000 20,000

At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+_RA=+—H 1,040,174 104,017

Notes: B 5 -

(@) Pursuant to the SPA (as defined in note 38) in relation (a) WBEABBAWESEETRAEZRZ
to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Goal BEtE (T RME38) A F]
Getter, the Company had issued 127,500,000 new 2T H BT (B0.15 178 31T
ordinary shares at a market price of HK$0.151 at the 127,500,000/ #T L @A% - AL E
date of issuance for settlement of the consideration. KEBE-REZAFEZ19,253,000
The fair value of the consideration was approximately BT H R 4912,750,0004 7T K& 49
to HK$19,253,000, out of which approximately 6,503,000/ 7T 5 Bl FE 8RB 2N K A%
HK$12,750,000 and HK$6,503,000 were recorded in MEBIRER E — FHEBH N
share capital and share premium account respectively. 38 ¢

Further details are set out in the note 38.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the two subscription agreements dated 31
October 2017 entered into between 1) the Company
and Retop International Investment Limited, a company
which is wholly owned by Mr. Bao, a substantial
shareholder of the Company; and 2) the Company and
Mr. Li, an executive director and substantial shareholder
of the Company, respectively (the “Subscription
Agreements”), in which Retop International Investment
Limited and Mr. Li had conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company had conditionally agreed to allot
and issue of an aggregate of 100,000,000 new ordinary
shares to Retop International Investment Limited and an
aggregate of 100,000,000 new ordinary shares to Mr. Li
at the subscription price of HK$0.20 per share respectively.
Part of the proceeds of HK$20,000,000 were received
before 31 December 2017 and recognised as other
reserves as at 31 December 2017 (note 36(a)(iii)). The
remaining proceeds of HK$20,000,000 were received on 3
January 2018.

The proceeds of HK$40,000,000 over the nominal value
of HK$20,000,000 was credited to the share premium
account. All of the conditions precedent set out in
the Subscription Agreements had been fulfilled and
the subscriptions were completed on 3 January 2018.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 13 October 2017, 18 October 2017 and 3
January 2018, and the circular of the Company dated 28
November 2017.

36. DEFICIT IN RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the consolidated financial
statements.

e

— - NF+_A=+—"HILFE

35. IRA(48)
i ()

(b)

BEBENARREIRAEKRIRES
RAR (RBEEE(RRARIEEZR
R)E2EHE)  R2)AAFHEZEE
E(RARRAHTESTRFERE)
ARFTLMASEAE=T—tF+
A=+—RA0mmhRERH ([&
Bzl WhEBEEREERA
RIEFEEEFREREZEREM
AARIEBBEGERE D B E &
2174 100,000,000 /% 7 & 38 I
TIHABEEREBR AR LG #
100,000,000/% 3 & i@ A% T 2 58 4
REEAEER020B T - BHATE
FXIE20,000,000 TR —F —+F
+—A=+—BHAKETR=-F
—tF+t-A=+—H®ERAEHEAM
it (FI#E36(a)i) ) < 82 T FT 1S 3K
1§20,000,0008 L ERN =T — N\ F
—A=B%3-

Ff 18 3K 3840,000,0005% 7T A &
20,000,000 7T &) &b 7 E 5T A IR (7
B - RERRETETE L IRE
HEER RBESER=_Z—/\F
—AZHEXK FERELEAQA
BfA-_ZT—+t&+A+=0 -=
T—+tF+ATNBR=ZZT—N\F
—AZBZREURAAT BEA
—ET—+tF+—A=Z+/\Bz@

36. f# @& Al

(a)

A%
AR R [ B 4 2 B
BREZBRGAMBRE 265
BEBEHRNZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

36. DEFICIT IN RESERVES (continued)

(@) Group (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium account of the Group includes
the premium arising from issue of shares of
the Company at a premium.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose from
the purchase of the Company's share for
cancellation and represents a transfer from
the Company’s retained profits equivalent to
the nominal value of the shares purchased for
cancellation.

Other reserves

Production maintenance fee and safety fund

Pursuant to regulations in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group were required to
make a transfer of production maintenance
fee and safety fund to other reserves based on
fixed amounts per tonne of raw coal mined
(net of usage). According to the relevant
regulations, production maintenance fee,
safety fund and other expense of similar
nature are required to be charged to cost
of production and credited to reserve.
Accordingly, the related funds are appropriated
from retained profits.

Available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve/fair value reserve (non-recycling)

As at 31 December 2017, the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve (which grouped
as other reserves in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity) represented accumulated
gains and losses arising on the revaluation of
available-for-sale investments of an associate
that have been recognised in OCI.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

36. DEFICIT IN RESERVES (continued)
(@) Group (continued)

36. "EEA(E)
(a) AE£EE(E)
(iii) bz (&)

(iii) Other reserves (continued)

Available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve/fair value reserve (non-recycling)
(continued)

The associate designated the listed equity
securities at FVTOCI (non-recycling), as the
investment is held for strategic purposes.
Available-for-sale financial assets were
reclassified to financial assets measured
at FVTOCI (non-recycling) upon the initial
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.
The available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve were reclassified as fair value reserve
(non-recycling) at 1 January 2018, which also
grouped as other reserves in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

At 31 December 2018, the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) also includes accumulated
gains and losses arising on the revaluation of
financial assets at FVTOCI of the Group that
have been recognised in OCI.

Cash advanced for the subscription of
ordinary shares of the Company

Deposit of approximately HK$20,000,000
was received before 31 December 2017 from
Retop International Investment Limited, an
entity indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Bao,
for the subscription of ordinary shares of
the Company which was completed on 3
January 2018. Substantive conditions including
approval from shareholders of the Company
were satisfied before 31 December 2017 and
hence the amount was recognised in equity
under other reserves as at 31 December 2017.
The deposit was transferred to “share capital”
and “share premium” when the relevant
shares were issued on 3 January 2018 (note
35(b)).

AR E 2 IREE
N TFlERFE (T2
=) (&)

BtE A BIEE LW RAE
HRAFEFAEMEE
YWes (TR 88) AAZER
BRBHERRBEAN R
“E-NE—-—H—-HBHEX
EREBUBREERFI
Wik AEKESREES
MOBERRNFEFAR
fhEmPREFENEmME
E(TA88E) A HEER
BEEMREREN_T—\F
—A—HEHIBRARF
BERE(CT A S ) - WA

ERAEHRIHIBLAH
i i 5

RZZE—N\F+ = A
=+—H AFEBEBCR
) NEEASEEA
FEFAEMEAKZE
e MEEMELARN
ZEtE R EE 252
BEDREMES KaET

27
e

FRAEA N\ F] Z @Rz TATT
B

¥ 4 #920,000,0007% 7T T3
R—ZZE—+F+ = A
=+ —BAIRHRELRRQR]
TEBR(N=—ZT—N\F—A
= HRER) MR RRERE
BRAGR(BEEREEZE
BEMNER) MWW -BE M
(R IEA QA AR R it
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BTREAIRA] R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

36. DEFICIT IN RESERVES (continued)
(@) Group (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Other reserves (continued)

Deemed capital contribution from
shareholders

During the year, loans of aggregated
amount of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$99,480,000) were advanced
from the shareholders of the Company. These
shareholders’ loans are unsecured interest-free
and will be repayable in full within 36 months
since the drawdown date. These shareholders’
loans are discounted as detailed in note 29(b).
The difference between the principal amount
and discounted amount at the drawdown date
was deemed as capital contribution from the
shareholders to the Company and recongised
in other reserve.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Group arose as a
result of (i) the Group reorganisation in 1997
and represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
under the reorganisation scheme and the
nominal value of the aggregate share capital
of the subsidiaries then acquired; (ii) the
Group reorganisation in 2007 and represents
the reduction of capital of HK$64,137,000
pursuant to a special resolution passed
on 1 November 2007; and (iii) the Group
reorganisation in 2012 and represents the
reduction of capital of HK$641,407,000
pursuant to a special resolution.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 3.6.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arose from the
capitalisation of retained profits of a PRC
subsidiary.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

B2 NF+-_A=1+—HIFFE

36. R A (Z)

(a) A&EBE(E)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Hfttfdfe (&)
HIERRHEE

FR - ARARBRRERES
K45 A R #80,000,000
7 (FRE 7R #799,480,000/8
TLMER - ZERRE K
HAEEKHReE  WiEEa1R
HY B HA#E361E A N R HE
B ZERRETITEHAR
B 5£29(b) IR EX B B Ky A
CRHEENECHEIMER
WREREE AR RAAE
BEWREAb P RER

BA R

AEBEZHARBBKBTIRER
IWR—AhhtEFHETZE
B=H iERESEEER
FFEARE ZEBEITRG
AEEMEEBENB AR Z
BABEEZZ58 ()R
—ETLFETZERE
M THERE ST LF
+—A—BRAZERR
& TR A& 4864,137,000
B RNRZE——4F
EITZEEEAR  JHERE
BRRZRRDEAX
641,407,000 7T, ©

E X RS
R Bk B B I R E
O 7 B R o
BIF T 5 24 - SRR IEIE
PR EE3 6 57 B R AT B
Iz

B #E
BEARFEETBER —HEF
BB~ R E R B s A B AR
fEmELE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EmRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

36. DEFICIT IN RESERVES (continued)
(@) Group (continued)

36. EEE A (E)
(a) AE£EE(E)
(vii) ZEAES
BIEHERE R BER - AEE
ReEB B AR BLEE
ERBERIER T  HEH
B F(mA) 2 EF
BEAETAESUER
BERY A RENELIA
EBTIEFSBH A -

(vii) Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations, the Group's PRC subsidiaries are
required, at the discretion of their directors,
to appropriate a certain percentage of
their profit after tax, if any, to the statutory
reserve fund for the future development and
capital expenditure on staff welfare facilities

purposes.
(b) Company (b) Z&2AF
Total
Capital reserves/
Share redemption Other  Accumulated (deficit in
premium reserve reserve losses reserves)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5/ (ffE
ROEE REABEGRZE Hte ke 25 EE Ba)aE
FTHT T THET TR THET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—F—H 235,334 50 - (206,236) 29,148
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZEEBERE
loss for the year - - - (124,097) (124,097)
Cash advanced in relation to  B@RBLAKRLIRE
subscription of ordinary (Bi5E36(a)iii)
shares (note 36(a)(iii) - - 20,000 - 20,000
At 31 December 2017 and ~ RZZ—+F+_f
1 January 2018 =+—ARRZZ-N
F—H—H 235,334 50 20,000 (330,333) (74,949)
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZEERERE
loss for the year - - - (26,936) (26,936)
Shares issued in RUEEM B A RmE TR
consideration for the B {7 (PFH3E35(a) &38)
acquisition of subsidiaries
(notes 35(a) and 38) 6,503 - - - 6,503
Issuance of shares pursuant — 1RIERE BTN
to the subscriptions (Bft&E35(b) % 36(a)iii))
(notes 35(b) and 36(a)iii) 20,000 - (20,000) - -
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+=AH
Er=1[ 261,837 50 - (357,269) (95,382)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37.

Jinfeng, a 90% owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Xingan, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, have
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The NCI of
all other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the
Group are considered to be immaterial.

(a) Jinfeng and its subsidiaries

I 12 R A2

RRABHEFIO% 2 B A
INGIE Z= R I v SN

gRA

7Ek%ﬁﬁ

AR ([ EERER D FTA
HiWIERANEEEB100%ER 2
MIB A A2 FEIEA S R BT ERX

(a) EERHHNEBAF

Summarised financial information in relation to FANERESENENB AR 28T
Jinfeng and its subsidiaries for the year, before intra- BEH (R EE A 7L
group eliminations, is presented below: BB
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\#F —FT—+tF
FExT FET
As at 31 December R+=—B=+-—H
NCI percentage JEERERE DL 10% 10%
Current assets MEVEE 992,393 1,321,134
Non-current assets EMBEE 596,199 674,088
Current liabilities mENBE (2,337,946) (2,578,769)
Non-current liabilities ERFAaE (41,772) (132,969)
Net liabilities BERA (791,126) (716,516)
Accumulated balance of NCI JEPEIRRERS v R ERR (82,839) (67,935)
For the year ended 31 December BZ+_-_A=+—HALFE
Revenue Wz 751,057 498,328
Loss for the year FREE (132,559) (174,873)
Loss allocated to NCI IR 2 B 18 (13,117) (17,487)
Cash flows from operating activities &EZ/EEN IR SR E 81,373 (237,326)
Cash flows from investing activities &&EBZIRERE (10,768) (56,371)
Cash flows from financing activities FEEZE IR SRS (214,899) 207,019
Net cash outflows RE&RHFE (144,294) (86,678)
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(a) Jinfeng and its subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

37. FFERER(#)

(a) EERHMNBEAR(E)

On 2 May 2017, an entity indirectly held by Mr. Bao
acquired the 10% equity interest in Jinfeng from the
previous equity holder. Mr. Bao became the non-
controlling interest of Jinfeng since then. Details of
transactions with Mr. Bao are disclosed in note 41.

Xingan

(b)

Summarised financial information in relation to
Xingan from 3 January 2018 (date of acquisition of
Xingan) to 31 December 2018, before intra-group

eliminations, is presented below:

R-E—tFAHA-H 8%4%
REFEN —HERBRATRRK
BEErI10%BHE- IR Bk
AT SR IFHERRR - HE
REMR ZFHBEM T4 T

E;Eo

HZ
EHEZE T —N\F—H=H
(KBEHZBAH)E_T—N\F
TZA=T—RAZHMBERR
SEAE A FIHEE AT 8t a0
N

2018
HK$'000
—E-NEF
FHxT
As at 31 December Rt+t=-—HA=+—H
NCI percentage EIERER A DL 49%
Current assets mMENE B 297,805
Non-current assets ERBEE 262,871
Current liabilities mENafE (452,287)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (59,417)
Net assets EEFH 48,972

Accumulated balance of NCI

For the period from 3 January 2018
(date of acquisition of Xingan) to
31 December 2018

Revenue

Profit for the period

Profit allocated to NCI

IR 2 REHERR

23,996

R-ZZB-NE-A=H (KBEZ
ZA)EZE-N\F+_-A

=+—HHHE

Hs A

DECEFFE IR 25 A

198,008

8,536

4,182
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(b) Xingan (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

37. FFIEMAERS(2)
(b) R ()

2018

HK$000

—E-N\F

FERT

Cash flows from operating activities KEEEBZHERE (78,347)
Cash flows from investing activities BTG CRERE (17,919)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEFHIHRERE 275,390
Net cash inflows REeERAFHE 179,124

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (“SPA")
dated 13 October 2017 entered into between the
Company and an independent third party to acquire
all the equity interest in Goal Getter, together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Goal Getter Group”)
(the “Acquisition”). The nominal consideration for the
Acquisition of HK$25,500,000 was settled in form of the
allotment and issue of an aggregate of 127,500,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company.

The Goal Getter Group is principally engaged in
production and sale of building materials, of which all
of its operations are carried out by Xingan, a subsidiary
which 51% is held by the Goal Getter Group.

The directors of the Company considered that the
Acquisition allows the Group to explore a new income
steam, diversify the Group’s business segments to engage
in the production and sale of building materials and
improve the Group'’s revenue and results.

The Acquisition was completed on 3 January 2018.
The fair value of consideration of approximately
HK$19,253,000 for 127,500,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company at the issue date was determined by
reference to the closing market price of the shares of the
Company at HK$0.151 per share at the issue date which
was also the date of completion of the Acquisition on 3
January 2018.
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Acquisition-related costs (included in
administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2018)

Analysis of net cash inflows arising on the
Acquisition:

Consideration paid by cash

less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. WiEHIE ARl (&)
As at
3 January
2018
HK$'000
R=-ZB-N\F
—A=H
FET
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the — AUEE =18 HHIMFTURE & E KRR
date of the Acquisition are as follows: Bur :
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Y5 - B Nk (FisE15) 207,400
Prepaid land lease payments (note 16) TEf AR E RIE(FisE16) 71,530
Inventories e~y 9,682
Accounts and bills receivables and contract EURBER R EBE RS NEEFEE
assets, net (note (a)) (Fff5E(a)) 49,448
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfFXIE - 24 K H & U 518
(note (b)) (Pt 5E(b)) 10,041
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEEAE 19,586
Accounts and bills payables JER R R R IR (62,709)
Other payables and accruals H At < 5RIE R FEET B (104,034)
Amount due to a related party JEfS— B REEA T IR (103,070)
Bank and other loans HRITREMEK (47,060)
Deferred income (note 33) FEIEUA (BF5E33) (5,164)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34) EEBIEBE(MEE34) (3,119)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR EEFELTE EATE 42,531
Non-controlling interests (note (c)) FEERRAE 2 (B EE(C)) (20,649)
Bargain purchase arising from the Acquisition WS EEEL 7 #BEE (M)
(note (d)) (2,629)
19,253
Fair value of consideration shares Bip 2 REAFE 19,253

HUEERABOKAGIABRE

—E-N\&F+=
TR )

REBSERRES
FREDAT

MR & AHRE

o EERHRE R

A=+—HILtFEEH
3,112
MNIESRE
HeEEY 19,586
19,586
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%

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

The

The gross contractual undiscounted balances amounted
to approximately HK$56,133,000. The fair values of these
accounts and bills receivables and contract assets at the
acquisition date were estimated to be approximately
HK$49,448,000, based on an assessment of the expected
credit risks of the balances. The fair values include
allowance of expected credit loss of approximately
HK$6,685,000, which is estimated based on the
estimated credit risk of the debtors, over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted with forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The gross contractual undiscounted balances of deposits
and other receivables amounted to HK$4,581,000. The
fair values of these deposits and other receivables at the
acquisition date were estimated to be HK$4,581,000,
based on an assessment of the expected credit risks of
the balances, which is estimated based on the estimated
credit risk of the debtors, over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

The non-controlling interests which represent 49% equity
interest in Xingan recognised at the acquisition date were
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the identifiable net assets of Xingan at the
acquisition date.

The nominal consideration and the nominal issue price
for the Acquisition of HK$0.2 per consideration share
were determined after an arm’s length negotiation made
between the Group and independent third party at the
time when the agreement was entered into. The major
contributing factor to the gain on bargain purchase arising
from the Acquisition was the effect arising from the
nominal issue price determined at premium compare to
the market price at the agreement date and acquisition
date.

acquired business contributed revenue of

approximately HK$198,008,000 and net profit of
approximately HK$7,829,000 for the period from 3
January 2018 to 31 December 2018. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2018, there are no material
difference in the consolidated revenue and consolidated
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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38. WWEEMIB AR (&)

B &E -

AR BAEBRRBRENAE
56,133,000/ JT © 1R 15 ¥ 45 #4 78 HA
= E R M % E KRR R
&m#&émEEMW%E%%
N F{E1E 54 549,448,000 Tt
ATFEREEHEEBEREEBGLY
6,685,000/ 7T - H AR I & 75 A 78 B
FHR MG EERRMGE  LAT
ESEATUENKANE HAIH
HEMEERMEL R

(a)

Ze REMEBURRBNGHRITE
ﬁ*ﬁ%i@ % 44,581,0007 7T © 1R 15 ¥
EHREHEERBROTE ZEFR
H&EMEWEEMW%E%%@
F(E {45t A4,581,0008 T HIRE
B ATBHFHOGEHEERBG
e WIARTEREET L E R KA
B NWATEIEERHER A -

(b)

FW%E%%*%%?@%%%%
SR AR 25 Ty A UK BB B AR IE 1R
%m%ﬂkT%%ﬁ?@@m%ﬁ
LLBIEE & -

(o)

WEEENREKERERERTE
FRRER170.278 7T TP 5T 3L 1
BRAEFHEFIE =TT N FER
BRET WBSHEMELNZER
BRENERRKAZRNGERS
TE )4 2 BT ERS B B B R

BHUNMSERBLAEENS
r

(d)

RZE—N\F—A=BZEZ=_Z—\F
+—A=+—BHM KWEEEEE
I 2§ #9198,008,00058 7T & % F B 49
7,829,000 e MKEEEN _F
—NE—A—B%4L BBE_FT
—N\E+-_A=+—BLEENEAE
W KA BIBTEEAEE -
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39. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the
following capital commitments:

9. R

(a) BAXEFH
RZZE—NF+=—A=+—8"
NEBAB AT E KA

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF ZE—tF
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted but 25T 4B RBEEHHEARFIS ¢
not provided for:

Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT BB 1 &) - 25,500

Acquisition of property, plant WHB % - B K s
and equipment 4,091 768
4,091 26,268

In addition, Tairun's registered capital is
RMB20,000,000, of which RMB10,000,000 has
been paid-up as at 31 December 2018, and the
Group therefore committed at 31 December 2018
to further invest in Tairun, an indirectly owned
subsidiary in which the Group has 60% equity
interest, amounting to RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,831,000) (2017: Nil).

Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2018, total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of land and buildings and office
equipment payable by the Group are as follows:

foh FEOEMELABARE
20,000,000t EHE & A R ¥
10,000,000 R = — N\NE+ = A
=—+—HE#R ALAEER_Z
—N\FE+—_A=+—BEAHE—FE
BERAEEREEE60%MENNH B
RAFE A AREE6,000,0007T
(FBE 7 496,831,000 T — T —+
&F o E)o

(b) REHEHAE
KEBEREEA
R_E-N\F+ZA=+—8"
REBERES A BEHLLHELOR
T RIEFRPAERERNZ
Aie&EBNNREEB RN
B

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-NEF —E—+tF

FET FET

Within one year —FR 1,022 1,072
In the second to fifth years inclusive £ -ZFEhF(BIEEEME) 177 1,185
1,199 2,257
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39. COMMITMENTS (continued)

—E-NF+_A=+—HILFE

. HGE ()

(b) Operating lease commitments (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

The Group leases certain properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to
ten years (2017: one to ten years), without option
to renew the lease term at expiry date. None of the
lease includes contingent rentals.

The Group as lessor

As at 31 December 2018, total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of certain property, plant and
equipment by the Group are as follows:

(b)

ReEEARm(E)
EEBERERBA (E)

AEERBEEENVEESTY
XM ZREMNE /Y —E
THE(ZE—tF: —E1+5F)
RIER B AR ZEXD - MO
ENAEE -

AEFHEBHBEA
RZEBE—NF+_A=+—8"
AEEFE T BEKEE
BN A] R S E H E B R 2R B K
HERKFEEREINT ¢

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F ZE— t¢

Within one year —F R 3,462 =
In the second to fifth years inclusive £ -ZERE(BIEEEME) 13,847 -
After five years & 16,155 -
33,464 =

The Group leases its properties under operating
leases. The lease runs for an initial period of ten
years (2017: Nil), without option to renew the lease
term at expiry date. The lease does not include
contingent rentals.
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 28 July 2015, Jinfeng entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement 1”) with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the parties have agreed to provide
mutual guarantees with respect to each other. Both
parties agreed that should any party (including its
subsidiaries and holding companies) (“Borrower A")
apply for a loan(s) from a bank or financial institution
(“Lender A"), if the Lender A so requires, then
the other party shall provide a guarantee(s) for the
obligations of Borrower A under the loan on the terms
and conditions contained in the agreement. The total
amounts to be guaranteed by each party shall not
exceed RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$60,037,000). The effective period of the Agreement
| shall be from 28 July 2015 to 28 July 2018 (“Effective
Period 1”). For each guarantee to be provided by
each party within the Effective Period I, the maximum
guarantee period is three years from the date of the loan
agreement. As of 31 December 2017, there were no
outstanding borrowing which is guaranteed by Jinfeng in
relation to the Agreement I.

On 13 April 2017, lJinfeng entered into an agreement
(the "Agreement I1”) with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the parties have agreed that should
any party (“Borrower B"”) apply for a loan(s) from a bank
or financial institution (“Lender B”), if the Lender B so
requires, then the other party shall provide a guarantee(s)
for the obligations of the Borrower B under the loan on
the terms and conditions contained in the agreement.
The total amounts to be guaranteed by each party shall
not exceed RMB9,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$10,807,000). The effective period of the Agreement
shall be from 13 April 2017 to 12 April 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, a bank borrowing amounting
to approximately RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,405,000) has been withdrawn
by Borrower B and pursuant to the Agreement Il, the
corresponding amount has been guaranteed by Jinfeng
accordingly. The guarantee period of the guarantee
provided by Jinfeng is one year from the date of the loan
agreement. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
such bank borrowing had been fully settled by Borrower
B, as such there is no outstanding borrowing which is
guaranteed by Jinfeng in relation to the Agreement Il as
at 31 December 2018.

40. SEAREE
A —E

e MR

at

—AFt+tA=Z+N\B KRQAa
MEErENBARCLEHE — BB
FE=FrI— OB EHE—])
Bt €5 RELARELXRER
EHERE MEN—F(BEEHRBEA
AR AR ERAAD AERTIT
TREB(ERAADBEZER @
BRAAZSK - BB —FH ERE &
HIER R IEEABERAARERTH
EBRHEER SHBTFERZER
T BB A R¥50,000,0007C(HE
A #760,037,00078 7T ) ° 3 — Z B &K
HA—E—hHFLtA-+t/N\HE-Z
—NEFELtA-+NBEZRH-—1-
MEFRBRP—AETFIRIEZSE
ERME RAERBABER DR
B =F RN _ZE—+EF+= A
=+ B TERSE0HEER

BAREREE -

R_ZE—tFMNA+=ZH ¢LE—
BB E =R —E( HE
— D) Bl gFtE mERMN—F
([ERABMABITH S BB E
RABHBER  B—HEREHZ
FRE &R AR BE RABRERT
MESIREER(MERABENR) &
FETHERZBENBEBARE
9,000,0007T ( #8 & 7 %10,807,000/%
T BRI A T —+tF
A+=HZ=ZT—N\FWMA+=H-

RZZE—+F+-_A=+—"H HAE
#7,000,0007¢ (8 & M 498,405,000/
TO) ZRITERE BERABEA IR
BiHhE - @B HERSLEE
R BRHEERNERBAER G
HEE—F-HE2_ZT—\F+_A
=t+—BIEFE ZBTEECHES
BN BE &AL F Atk R=ZZE—\F
+-—A=t—H8 YEASEMpE_
BRAOKEEEE-
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Agreement | and the
Agreement Il were expired and no provision for the
financial guarantee was made. As at 31 December 2017,
no provision for the financial guarantee was made as,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair value of the financial guarantee is insignificant at
initial recognition. The directors of the Company do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against
the Group under the guarantee as of the end of each
reporting period.

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

(a) Compensation of key management

40. LAREB(E)
R-B—N\E+=—A=+—0 %%
—RipE DRI W EBR SRR
EHBBE- R _T—+&+= 8
=+—B BEEDT S EREE
REZARADNEERA BBEEER
NEEABBEHATERK - HESR
SHIK KR AIEER AT A IR
BIRRAAEEIRERE -

41. BEAELRS
B A BT MEE MM REY X
SRS RETRBEATHNE
NENTEARS

(a) TEEEBAEZHME

personnel
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\E —E—+tF
FET FEIT
Short-term benefits: HHAfE A -
Fees, salaries, allowances and wWE Fe R REMD
other benefits in kind Bz 5,567 5,306
Post-employment benefits: BERL R A
Retirement benefit RIREFET B R
scheme contributions 36 43
5,603 5,349

(b) Financing arrangement

Details of amount advanced from and interest-
free loans advanced from shareholders and family
member of Mr. Bao are disclosed in notes 29 and
30.

Details of guarantees provided by Mr. Zhang and a
company controlled by him, Mr. Bao and his spouse
are disclosed in the notes 28 and 32.
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42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42. ZERHszERMEEREH
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY EEHME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and RKEEBR _Z—NER_ZT—+F
liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 +- A=+ HHERZEMEEME
are categorised as follows. See notes 3.14 and 3.15 EEEEEIRIZ N R ETHE
for explanations about how the category of financial EEemI ANy EHEHE
instruments affects their subsequent measurement. ZRE  FH20ME3.14%3.15 ¢
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —FT—+tF
FERT FATT
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESHEE - 710
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRAFEFAEMEEYZEZ
TREE 682 -
Financial assets measured at amortised R tER RNt 8 2 £ LB E
cost
— Accounts and bills receivables — RN N EE R A B E
and contract assets 454,569 221,340
— Deposits and other receivables —&E RHE M EWFRIE 14,373 375,594
— Pledged and restricted — B REZREIERITER
bank deposits 656,651 616,880
— Cash and cash equivalents — B4 RS ZEMEIER 35,789 170,878
1,162,064 1,385,402
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKAFTECEmAE
amortised cost
— Accounts and bills payables —ERERRER 658,132 817,863
— Amount due to an associate — B — & & A R IR 14,640 99,589
— Amounts due to and loans — AR SR IE K 2R B AR R
from shareholders B 63,626 41,097
— Other payables, accruals —HEfENHIE BT ERK
and deposit received Bz 527,906 414,825
— Bank and other loans —RITREMER 840,564 646,900
2,104,868 2,020,274
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
results from both its operating and investing activities.
The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the directors of the
Company meet periodically to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage the Group’s exposure to market
risks, including changes in interest rates and currency
exchange rates. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. The
Group's exposure to market risk is kept to minimum. The
Group has not used any derivatives or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment
Risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and its investing activities.
The carrying amounts of the financial assets
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk.

Carrying amounts of the financial assets presented
in consolidated statement of financial position
are net of impairment losses, if any. The Group
minimises its exposure to the credit risk by
rigorously selecting the counterparties, performing
ongoing credit evaluation on the financial
conditions of its debtors and tightly monitoring the
ageing of the receivables. Follow-up actions are
taken in case of overdue balances.

The credit risk on pledged and restricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents is also
limited because the Group’s pledged and restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are all
deposited with major banks located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. BiEERETERSMITASA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE (&)

(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(a) ERERREBEN(E)

(continued)
Risk management (continued)

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group's exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 20.7% (2017: 95.5%) of the Group's accounts
receivable was due from a major customer of the
Group.

The Group does not hold any collaterals or other
credit enhancements over accounts and bills
receivables, contract assets and deposits and other
receivables.

Other than those disclosed in note 40, the Group
does not provide any financial guarantee at the end
of the reporting period which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are
subject to the expected credit loss model:

- accounts and bills receivables and contract
assets arising from contracts with customers;
and

—  deposits and other receivables.

While pledged and restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

B ERE (&)

AEEEBREFERERANER
BE MAEERREERER—
BAMEAEE Z EERBRR G

EEBKF -

AEEZ FERRFEZEEAR
FZEBIE RS2 - R4 H
R AEEERETEERRET
Z2ER REAAEE —ZEXE
BRIHERERZ207% (==
—+% :955%)°

2455 T 4 9 B R R SR 4
A WEE RIS REMRENR
5  E R S B A 5 B304
g o

BR P SE40RTHIR B B 51 XS 1
R AEBWEREREMNSARE
EASEERBOIBER -

EHEERE
AEEREMBXBHEREER
BARXENSHEE -

- HEEFANELNEYER
RMEBEREHNEE Rk

- REREMEBUEIR-
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets

The Group applies HKFRS 9 and measures expected
credit losses based on a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all accounts and bills receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts
and bills receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The contract assets relate
to balance under the retention period and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the
accounts receivable for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for accounts receivable are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

The estimated ECL loss rates are estimated based
on the Group’s estimates of the market borrowing
rates for each of the groupings, less risk-free rate,
which reflect the credit risk of the debtors, over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is
updated. The Group has identified the default risk
forecast for energy industry in the PRC to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in
these factors.
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BEEAREEREMIAZD
B (&)

(a) ERERREBEN(E)

EHREERE (&)
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KB HEERE TR HE B
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RETERBEEEE  BERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. BiIRERTERSHM I A A

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEE)
(continued)
(a) Credit risk and impairment assessment (a) EHERERESTG(E)
(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EHEERE (&)
Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets FEWBRZN R ZR G & #) B E
(continued) (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December R-E—-N\F+-_A=1+—BK
2018 and 1 January 2018 (on adoption of HKFRS —E—N\F—A—HERKEB
9) was determined as follows for accounts and bills I TSRS YERISE 95k » HHR) i e
receivables: WEER R EHREE < EERER
T
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
FHMERR HREAE EBERFE REFE
TET TET TER

Ageing based on the EREEAHIERR

invoice date
As at 31 December 2018 R=F— &
+=-A=+-8H

0 - 90 days 0£90H 2% 213,353 (4,127) 209,226
91 - 180 days 91£180H 2% 224,489 (5,388) 219,101
181 - 365 days 181£365H 8% 26,304 (1,982) 24,322
Over 365 days iR3E365H 100% 49,816 (49,816) -
513,962 (61,313) 452,649
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BHEERX  REAE BERE REFE
TET TET TET

Ageing based on the HERNBZHHZRER

invoice date
As at 1 January 2018 R=ZZE—N\FE—H—H
0 - 90 days 0Z90H 4% 88,074 (3,735) 84,339
91 - 180 days 91£180H 5% 109,332 (5,161) 104,171
181 — 365 days 1812365H = - - -
Over 365 days tBi@365H 65% 60,294 (39,046) 21,248

257,700 (47,942) 209,758
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets
(continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December
2018 was determined as follows for contract assets:

43.

HEERBEEREMIAEZA
E (%)

(a) ERRBREBERME (&)

THREERE (&)
JEWRA K ZR R A B E
(&)

BEZEE R-_T—\F+=
B=t+—BRAYEEETZE
BEENT

Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HHEEE IRE A EBEEE REFE
TAER THERT FTHERT

Ageing based on the EREEAHIERR

invoice date
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z—/\fF
+ZA=+-—H

0 - 90 days 0£290H 1% 203 (3) 200
91 - 180 days 912 180H 2% 428 (9) 419
181 - 365 days 1812365H 5% 1,375 (74) 1,301
Over 365 days R3E365H 100% 365 (365) -
2,371 (451) 1,920

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. BiEERETERSMITASA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(continued)
(a) Credit risk and impairment assessment (a) 1= FA | B B R B 54 (22)
(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) CHEERME (&)
Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets JEUTBR N R Z 18 o & #) B EE
(continued) (&)
The closing loss allowances for accounts and bills RZE—+F+-_A=+—HHK
receivables and contract assets as at 31 December EWERR R EZHE A K& ERH
2017 reconcile to the opening loss allowances on 1 REEBEHE _T—N\F—H—
January 2018 and to the closing loss allowance as at HrHEEEER _—T—N\F
31 December 2018 as follows: + = A=+—HHEREEREE
HERIAR -
Accounts and
bills Contract
receivables assets
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE UK BR X
REE EREE
FATT FATT
At 31 December 2017 — calculated HZ - —tF+ = H
under HKAS 39 =t—H-BREFESS
HRIZEIRETE 36,360 -
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 BBV B REERF W
(note 2(b)) 278 (Krat2mb)) 11,582 -
At 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 R_ZE—N\&FE— A —BiRESE
B R s ERIE 95 47,942 —
Additions through acquisition BRWENBARRNE
of subsidiaries 6,685 =
Increase in loss allowance FARNEREREERE
recognised in profit or loss 3 0
during the year 9,156 470
Exchange realignment PE 0 o & (2,470) (19)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZFE—-NFE+=-A=+—H 61,313 451
The acquisition of Building Materials Business WM RSB B BRI N
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of #912,038,0007% o ( Fff 7%5) #
approximately HK$12,038,000 (note 5) contributed mMEHEHILE—_T—-N\F+_A
to the increase in the loss allowance during the year = +—BIEFEEERHELEN-

ended 31 December 2018.

BMEERZERERAR 2018FFH
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets
(continued)

Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets
are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in
a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to
make contractual payments for a period of greater
than 1 year past due.

Impairment losses on accounts and bills receivables
and contract assets are included in net impairment
loss on financial assets under the consolidated
statement of income statements. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables, are
assessed on 12m ECL basis as there had been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

To measure the expected credit losses, deposits
and other receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The estimated
ECL loss rates are estimated based on the Group's
estimates of the market borrowing rates for each of
the groupings, less risk-free rate plus certain credit
risk premium, which reflect the credit risk of the
debtors, over the expected life of the debtors within
1 year and are adjusted forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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. REREEREMTIAZA
B (&)

(a) ERERREBEN(E)

TREERME (&)
EREARZERE B E

(%)

REBERRRBARBNEE
I & A 12 1 Y O TRHRRS - T AR
e WESENKREIAHERE
E(EPER)EBAREELS
BRI & FRETE] - A KR BERR 8
HiaE — FHEAaONR e

FEMR A M BB M A KB BRI
BEEEFAGERERNERE
ERERERFE  REREHE
FORERYE - 5 AMERIEE &

H b 1 #E K A S R Z & JE &
E
REHRAFTENEMEREE
(BRZE MEAMBKFIR)HTE
HEEBRER2MEAEHREE
BEETHE RRBE B RER
PAZRAE & R fea 3 S 8 1 0

R ERHEEEER SRIEHR
FEERRBEMRE LA ME
WRIRETT oM - hEt TREEE
BEERESREASEEEHALN
—FEHAFHARE S ENT S
BB R A FT - B B B Kl = 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z_—FT—NF+-_H=1+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. BiEERETERSMITASA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEE)
(continued)
(a) Credit risk and impairment assessment (a) EHAEREBESE(Z)
(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) cHEERE (&)
Other financial assets at amortised cost HEin#img AR @&
(continued) E(#%&)
The loss allowance for other financial assets at RZE—+F+_A=+—HIL
amortised cost as at 31 December 2017 reconciles B AT EZEM S MEER
to the opening loss allowance on 1 January 2018 BREE_ZT—-N\F—A—HH
and to the closing loss allowance as at 31 December HyEERER T —N\F+=
2018 as follows: A=+—BrEREREEEZ S
BRADT :
Deposits and
other
receivables
HK$'000
BRERHEME
W=
AT
At 31 December 2017 — calculated under #HZE=-"Z—+F+=-_A=+—H—1IF
HKAS 39 BERBGERFEINRTE 49,806
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 (note 2(b)) HRMBBHBMELNEIR 2 E
(KtaE2(b)) 29,288
At 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 RZZE—NF—A—HBREEFEHB
wEERE %R 79,094
Written off T 85 (73,263)
Exchange realignment FE 5, 5 (302)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H 5,529
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
accounts and bills receivables and deposits and
other receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of receivables
were assessed based on the incurred loss model.
Individual receivables which were known to
be uncollectible were recognised in a separate
provision for impairment.

The Group considered that there was evidence of
impairment if any of the following indicators were
present:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
and

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised were written off against the provision
when there was no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE_—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR  43.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
accounts and bills receivables and deposits and
other receivables (continued)

The movements in loss allowance for accounts and
bills receivables and deposits and other receivables
under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 December
2017 are as follows:

BHEREEREMIAZA
FE (&)

(a) ERERREBEN(E)

SREERE ()
IR RS RIS RH
1t JE AR R AEL 4076 BT 0 IR
(%)
RE-F—tF+-A=+-A
IS - R ES B EHEAIE30
Bt EOBRER R B R RES
R E A B R

wmR
Accounts and Deposits and
bills other
receivables receivables
HK$'000 HK$'000
EWERRR BERHEAM
=i FEUR R
FAETT FATT
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+F—H—H 33,806 46,479
Impairment loss on H th & R IR (B B 1B
other receivables - 455
Exchange realignment PE 0 o & 2,554 2,872
At 31 December 2017 RZ_ZE—+F+=-_A=+—H 36,360 49,806

As at 31 December 2017, due to the significant
financial difficulties of several counterparties, the
Group determined accounts and bills receivables,
and deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$36,360,000 and HK$49,806,000 respectively.
Based on this assessment, impairment loss on
deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$455,000 was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2017.

RZF—tF+ZA=+—H"
AREEHF I HREEM R
HoAKEETREBERLE
B e REAMERKIESD BA
36,360,0007% 7T &2 #749,806,000
BT REZFE RBEZT
—tF T A=t+—RLFERE
IR R A AR IRR E B
#7455,000/8 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
Financial instruments bearing variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the
Group’s bank and other loans are disclosed in note
32. The Group's exposures to fair value interest rate
risk and cash flow interest rate risk on financial
liabilities are minimal. The directors of the Company
consider the Group's exposures to cash flow interest
rate risk on bank balances as follows:

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group's loss after income tax and accumulated
losses to a possible change in interest rates of
+/-0.5% (2017: +/-0.5%), with effect from the
beginning of the year. The calculations are based
on the Group’s bank balances held at the reporting
date. All other variables are held constant.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

43,

BHEREEREMIAZA

FE (&)

(b) RFEmEER(E)

REEDH (&)

Increase/
(decrease) in
loss after
income tax and
accumulated
losses

HK$'000

#i,/ (D)
BRAITBB&
EBERRTEE
FET

31 December 2018

+0.5%
-0.5%

+0.5%
-0.5%

31 December 2017

+0.5%
-0.5%

+0.5%
-0.5%

The assumed changes in interest rates are
considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions and
represents the management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the
period until the next annual reporting date.

The sensitivity analysis included in the consolidated
financial statements of the year ended 31 December
2017 has been prepared on the same basis.

The Group manages interest rate risk by monitoring
its interest rate profile reqgularly. The Group adopts
a policy of ensuring that most of its borrowings are
on a fixed rate basis. The policies to manage interest
rate risk have been followed by the Group since
prior year and are considered to be effective.

—F-\%t-A=t—H

“E—tHF+-H=+—H

1,066
(1,066)

598
(598)

FIE HRBREDERRS
TSR AA I A4
Rr8D WATEEHRET
— (B4R B L HR IR
S Lt UEEE

BE_ZT—tH+_-_A=+—H
IR ZEAMBMERAE 2 H
RED T HERBRELERE -

AEEEBERERNERESE

BHEMERRER

AREERA—IA

BER BEREZHEFTGERE
FERREZE - WIARN KRR E R
KRB LFEEHAEE S
BWRBITZAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The sales and purchases of the Group are
predominantly in RMB which is the functional
currency of the related group entities. The directors
of the Company therefore are of the opinion that
the Group’s sensitivity to the changes in foreign
currencies are low and the Group and Company do
not hedge their foreign currency risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its financial obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management.

The Group’s objective is to ensure adequate funds
to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities. Cash flows are closely monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group will raise funds
from the realisation of its assets if required. As at
31 December 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$888,441,000 (2017:
approximately HK$618,182,000) and a capital
deficiency of approximately HK163,467,000 (2017:
approximately HK$76,588,000). The liquidity of
the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain adequate cash inflows from operations
and from the measures adopted by the directors
of the Company as detailed in note 3.1 to meet its
debt obligations.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered as
effective in managing liquidity risks.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % —NF+ZH=1+T—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. BiEERETERSMITASA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (&)
(continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d "BESERGE)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

TERABHARITRNE %/ﬁﬁ%
AEETRAE S

(e)

Within 6 Over 1 year Total
months or 612 but within Over undiscounted Carrying
on demand months 5 years 5 years amount Discount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AMAARS RE  BE-F@ RITR
RER T=f8A LER AENE ag ig:) REE
T THL TR THL TET FHEL TET
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+=A=+-8
Accounts and bills payables EREFREE 658,132 - - - 658,132 - 658,132
Amount due to an associate [ a5 14,640 - - - 14,640 - 14,640
Amounts due to and loans ERRRFERRERRER
from shareholders 9,135 - 65,140 - 74,275 (10,649) 63,626
Other payables, accruals AHEREE EHERR
and deposit received Bl e 525,741 - - 4,554 530,295 (2,389) 527,906
Bank and other loans BIREMER 771,958 3,000 93,579 - 868,537 (27,973) 840,564
1,979,606 3,000 158,719 4,554 2,145,879 (41,011) 2,104,868
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t£+=A=+-8
Accounts and bills payables EREAREE 817,863 - - - 817,863 - 817,863
Amount due to an associate [ a0 - - 99,589 - 99,589 - 99,589
Amounts due to shareholders ENRERE 41,097 - - - 41,097 - 41,097
Other payables and accruals HihEfFERESER 414,825 - - - 414,825 - 414,825
Bank and other loans RITREMER 589,959 33,207 36,051 = 659,217 (12,317) 646,900
1,863,744 33,207 135,640 - 2,032,591 (12,317) 2,020,274
Financial quarantee issued: BETHBER:
Maximum amount quaranteed (note 40) B ER&A S (Af7#40) 70,844 - - - 70,844 - 70,844

Business risk

The Group’s principal activities include production
and sales of coal and trading of purchased coal in
the PRC. The Group's financial performance are
influenced by the changes in prices of coal, as well
as by the Group’s ability to maintain or renew all
requisite certificates, permits and business licences
from relevant regulatory authorities in the PRC
which is required for the Group to operate in

production and sales of coal in the PRC.

() EWEM
REE EBEH ARG LR
RS A R B A
5 - A EE 7 5 RETRES

BRAEEETEREH

= A rkh
EED:LEEEI

R ERAEENTBELEER
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁwﬁﬁ E’Jﬁﬁﬁma At

EMERNR 28N
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #EHZ_—ZT—NF+_-H=1—HIF

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(f)

Fair values of financial instruments

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group’s financial instruments measured
at fair value across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement with fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:—
Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not

available.

Level 3: fair values measured using significant

unobservable input.

Financial assets at FVTOCI is measured at fair value
and is classified as a Level 3 fair value measurement.
The fair values of unlisted equity investments have
been estimated using market approach based on
market price to net assets ratio and adjusted for
the lack of marketability, which are the significant
unobservable inputs. The market price to net assets
ratio and the discount for lack of marketability
applied to this valuation technique are 2.19 and
15.9%.

The valuation requires the directors of the
Company to make estimates about the market
price to net assets ratio and the discount for lack
of marketability. The directors of the Company
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in OClI, are reasonable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(f)

Fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

Should the market price to net assets ratio increase
or decrease by 5%, the fair value of the financial
assets at FVTOCI would be increased or decreased
by approximately HK$47,000. Should the discount
for lack of marketability increase or decrease by
1%, the fair value of the financial assets at FVTOCI
would be decreased or increased by approximately
HK$9,000.

The movements during the year in the balance of
level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

43,

e )

E_F-N\Fr-A=1+—HIFE

BHEREEREMIAZA
FE (&)

(f)

EMIAEZRAVEGE)

s T 353 (B A% BL)F & B L R4 hnsk
BA5% - Bl A E AEHAM
ZHRENSBREELFEKIL
DNsR A #747,00058 7T o MRS
45 7 B 1 B 37 28 15 N sk
1% AR AFEFAEMEE
WM& mEEQAFESRD K
#AN499,00058 7T ©

FIMAFEFELEHZFAE
E)) N

Financial
assets at
FVTOCI
HK$'000
RAFEEFA
H{h 2 mH &
WemEE
FHET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—N\&—H—H 710
Total gain recognised in other REMARE W BN R R /IR
comprehensive income as change in the ANFEGFAEMEZER G RAR
fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI B RAFEZH) (5t A&GE 2 HEKER
included in consolidated statement of =)
comprehensive income 8
Exchange realignment & 5, 5 (36)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-—NFE+-_H=1+—8H 682

During the year, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (2017: Nil).
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

FR F-EREF_EBRZHE
YWEERATVESE BemE
ERERABEHREARELS
ZER(ZE—tF E) KK
= B BOR R EERR A E R &R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE—FT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(f) Fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include accounts and bills receivables, contract
assets, deposits and other receivables, pledged and
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, deposit received, amounts due to and
loans from shareholders, amount due to an
associate and bank and other loans.

As at 31 December 2018, all financial instruments
measured at amortised costs are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values, except
the amounts due to and loans from shareholders
amounting to approximately HK$63,626,000
(2017: approximately HK$41,097,000). As at 31
December 2017, all financial instruments are carried
at amounts not materially different from their
fair value except the amount due to an associate
amounting to approximately HK$99,589,000. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair value of the balance has not been determined
as the timing of the expected cash flows of these
balances cannot be reasonably determined because
of the relationship.

44, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost. the Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from that of prior year.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which included outstanding borrowings of approximately
HK$1,393,928,000 as disclosed in note 3.1, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital
and deficit, as disclosed in notes 27(b), 35 and 36,
respectively.

The Group actively and reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Amounts due to shareholders, which were previously
included in other payables and accruals in the
consolidated statement of financial position, were
represented as single line item in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
in order to conform with the current year’s presentation
and disclosures.
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46. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

Information about the statement of financial position
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46. BRI AR K

BRAARRD BN ERE R BIORRD

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BROT : —
follows:—
2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt aF —Z2-NEF T —+tF
FET AT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 19,253 -
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits BRFRIE ke R
and other receivables H b fE U s IE 334 337
Cash and cash equivalents BeMR4EEER 439 15,262
773 15,599
Current liability RBAEE
Other payables H o JE S I8 11,391 18,780
Net current liabilities RBEEEE (10,618) (3,181)
Total assets less HEERRBARS
current liabilities 8,635 (3,181)
Non-current liability RBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FET— M B A7) 2 5KIB - (501)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (86 2E 8,635 (3,682)
EQUITY % A R 2
Share capital A AR 104,017 71,267
Deficit in reserves it 15 T A 36(b) (95,382) (74,949)
Total equity/ Bz (BEREH) BHE
(capital deficiency) 8,635 (3,682)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Dong Cunling
BEFRKR
Director

EF

Sun Shusheng
BREXE
Director

EF
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